
PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA 

DECEMBER 14, 2023 

5:01 P.M. 

Commissioner's Chambers, Okaloosa County Administrative Complex 1250 Eglin Parkway 
N, Shalimar, FL 32579. 

Commissioner Phyllis Enzor, District 1 Commissioner Jack Beery, District 2 
Chairman Jeremy Stewart, District 3 Commissioner Vacant, District 4 
Vice-Chairman Commissioner John Collins, District 5 Okaloosa County School Board Rep., Bill Smith 
Eglin Air Force Base Representative, Jack Kiger 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 (NO OCTOBER OR NOVEMBER 
MEETING) 

D. OPEN TO PUBLIC (FOR ANY ITEMS NOT QUASI JUDICIAL ON THIS AGENDA) 

E. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

F. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

G. ACCEPTANCE OF THE AGENDA 

H. OATHTAKING 

I. DISCLOSURES 

J. OLD BUSINESS 

None 

K. NEW BUSINESS 

a. Applications for Development Review 

None 

b. Public Hearings 

Agenda Item #1: - Consideration ofthe Third Amendment to the Development Agreement by and between 
the Board of County Commissioners and Patriots Ridge LLP, for the purpose of establishing development 
rights for certain real property located within the unincorporated area of Okaloosa County; providing 
assurances in accordance with existing laws and policies subject to the conditions of the agreement; and, 





insuring that the agreement is in compliance with applicable provisions of Section 163.3220-163.3243, 
Florida Statutes, and the Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan. 

L. OTHER BUSINESS 

The January 11, 2024, Planning Commission Meeting will be held at the Commissioner's Chambers, 
Okaloosa County Administrative Complex 1250 Eglin Parkway N, Shalimar, FL 32579 

M. ADJOURNMENT 

2 





PLANNING COMMISSION 

MINUTES 

SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 

5:01 P.M. 

The regular meeting of the Okaloosa County Planning Commission was held Thurnday, September 14, 2023, 5:01 p.m., 
Commissioner's Chambers, Okaloosa County Administrative Complex 1250 EglinParkwayN, Shalimar, FL 32579. 
Board members in attendance were Jeremy Stewart, John Collins, Phyllis Enzor, and Jack Bee1y. 

Eglin Representative Scott Davidson was not in attendance. 

Okaloosa County School Board representative Bill Smith was not in attendance. 

Growth Management Staff in attendance were Elliot Kampert, Director, Randy Woodruff, Deputy Director, Leslie Adams, 
Planner I, and Martina Barrow, Planner I. 

County Attorney Kirsten H. Mood was in attendance and County Attorney Kerry Parsons was in attendance via Zoom. 

Speaker recognition forms were submitted by persons wishing to speak as follows: 

Agenda Item I: Ray Greer- 2910 Kerry Forest Pkwy, Tallahassee, FL-Applicant 

Agenda Item 1: RandyHernch-5671 Willow Ln, Crestview, FL- Unknown 

Agenda Item 1: Linda Samper-5794 Wayne Rogers Rd, Crestview, FL- Unknown 

Agenda Item I: Roberto Samper-5794 Wayne Rogers Rd, Crestview, FL- Opponent 

Agenda Item 1: David Danyo - 6048 Garden City Rd, Crestview, FL - Unknown 

Agenda Item 2: Brad Mainor - 6575 Hwy 189 N, Baker, FL -Applicant 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Chairman Jeremy Stewart called the meeting to order at 5:01 PM. 

B. ROLLCALL 

Martina Barrow conducted roll call. 

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR JUNE 8, 2023 MEETING. 

Motion to approve minutes made bv Phvllis Enzor and second bv Jack Beerv. --- 4 aves. Motion Passes. 

D. OPEN TO PUBLIC (FOR ANY ITEMS NOT QUASI JUDICIAL ON THIS AGENDA) 

None. 

I of5 SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 

(SHALIMAR) 





1'1!&'~~~~-
E. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

None. 

F. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 

None. 

G. ACCEPTANCE OF THE AGENDA 

Motion to accept the agenda as written made by Jack Beery and second by Phyllis Enzor. -- 4 ayes. Motion 
Passes. 

H. OATH TAKING 

Martina Ban-ow administered the Oath for all speakers. 

I. DISCLOSURES 

County Attorney Kirsten Mood read disclosures to the Board. Chairman Stewart replied he had spoken with the 
applicant regarding Agenda Item I and is familiar with the property. Commissioner Stewart replied yes, he could 
render a fair and impartial decision regarding the agenda items. 

J. OLD BUSINESS 

None 

K NEW BUSINESS 

None 

a. Applications for Development Review 

None 

b. Public Hearings 

AGENDA ITEM 1: 534016-BCC-2023 & 534019-BCC-2023 - Consideration of a request changing the use of 
land submitted by Raymond Greer, on behalf of Willow Creek Plantation, LLC, relating to property located north 
ofUS 90 just to the east ofBob Silces Airport and directly south of Wayne Rogers Road. The request is to change 
the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map (FLUM) from Rural Residential (RR) to Low Density Residential 
(LDR). If the FLUM amendment is approved, the applicant has submitted a companion request to rezone the 
property from Rural Residential (RR) to Residential- I (R-1 ), or a more restrictive zoning district. In addition to the 
proposed Future Land Use Map Amendment and Rezoning, a proposed amendment to the Okaloosa County Land 
Development Code is also being requested. The proposed Land Development Code Amendment will establish 
Section 3.11.00, 125-Acre Willow Creek Plantation at Crestview Overlay District. Said overlay will limit the 
overall density of the property to 250 residential units, establish a height limitation, require dark sky lighting 
principles and provide coordination with Eglin Air Force Base. This is the Transmittal hearing for state agency 
review. 

Randy Woodruff presented Agenda Item I to the board. 

2 of5 SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 

(SHALIMAR) 





Chairman Stewart called Ray Greer to speak. 

Mr. Greer gave a brief description ofproposed changes. 

Commissioner asked Mr. Greer where the storm water runoff would go. 

Mr. Greer replied that the county's stormwater management plan says that runoff must be contained on the 
property. 

Commissioner Collins asked how this would affect Bob Sikes area of influence. 

Mr. Greer replied that the property is located outside of the impact zone and the overlay district covers any 
additional affect to the airport. 

Discussion ensued. 

Commissioner Enzor asked which property they are planning to run sewer lioes through. 

Mr. Greer replied exactly which county owned property they have plans for. 

Chairman Stewart called for Randy Hersch to speak. 

Mr. Hersch addressed the board with his concerns: too many developments on Airport Rd, road impacts, traffic 
impact, school capacities, and pedestrians on Airport Rd. 

Chairman Stewart called for Linda Samper to speak. 

Ms. Samper addressed the board with her concerns: traffic impact, construction traffic in the neighborhood, wear 
and tear on the roads, and children playing in the road. 

Chairman Stewart called for Roberto Sarnper to speak. 

Mr. Samper addressed the board with his concerns: traffic impact, construction traffic in the neighborhood, 
children playing in the road, enforcement of speed within neighborhood, and lot sizes. 

Chainnan Stewart called for David Danyo to speak. 

Mr. Danyo addressed the board with his concerns: traffic impact and road issues. 

Commissioner Beery stated that he appreciates the public for coming and speaking their concerns. 

Discussion ensued. 

Chairman Stewart called for Ray Greer to speak. 

Mr. Greer addressed the concerns raised. Mr. Greer explained that the county is currently working on planning 
further road development and the development order process has traffic analysis as part of the process. Mr. Greer 
stated that today is here for a request to rezone, Future Land Use Map Amendment, and establishing an overlay 
district. 

3 of5 SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 

(SHALIMAR) 





Chairman Stewart asked ifthe lots would be adjacent to Fairchild Rd. 

Mr. Greer stated they would build a road to connect the development to Fairchild Rd. 

Discussion ensued. 

Commissioner Collins clarified that this request was only about smaller lot sizes, not about allowing more lots. 

Discussion ensued, 

Chairman Stewart called for a motion. 

Motion to recommend approval ofAgenda Item I as written to request a change to the Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation for the subiect property from Rural Residential (RR), to Low 
Density Residential (LDR) or a more restrictive FLUM designation, made John Collins and second by Phyllis 
Enzor. -- 4 ayes. Motion Passes. 

Motion to recommend approval ofAgenda Item I as written to request to rezone the property suburban Rural 
Residential (RR) to Residential-I (R-I), or a more restrictive zoning district, made by John Collins, and second 
by Phyllis Enzor. --- 4 aves. Motion Passes. 

Motion to recommend approval ofAgenda Item I as written to amend the Okaloosa County Land Development 
Code by creating Section 3.11.00, 125-Acre Willow Creek Plantation at Crestview Overlay District, made by 
John Collins, and second by Phyllis Enzor. - 4 aves. Motion Passes. 

AGENDA ITEM 2: 536316-BCC-2023 & 536318-BCC-2023 Consideration ofa request changing the use ofland 
submitted by Seaside Engineering on behalf of Lucy C. McC!endon, owner, relating to a portion of parcel 31-4N-
24-0000-0003-0070, property located at 1275 Georgia Avenue, Baker, Florida. The request is to change the 
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation for the subject property from Low Density 
Residential (LDR) to Commercial (C), or a more restrictive FLUM designation. If the FLUM amendment is 
approved, request to rezone the property from Residential-I (R-1) zoning district to General Commercial (C-3), 
or a more restrictive zoning district. The subject property contains 0.96 acres, more or less. 

Randy Woodruff presented Agenda Item 2 to the board. 

Chairman Stewart called Brad Mainor to speak. 

Mr. Mainor gave a brief description ofproposed changes. 

Chainnan Stewart called for a motion. 

Motion to recommend approval ofAgenda Item I as written to request a change to the Comprehensive Plan 
Future Land Use Map (FLUM) designation for the subiect property from Rural Residential (RR), to Low 
Density Residential (LDR) or a more restrictive FLUM designation, made Jack Beery, and second by John 
Collins. -- 4 ayes. Motion Passes. 

Motion to recommend approval ofAgenda Item I as written to request to rezone the property suburban Rural 
Residential (RR) to Residential-I (R-1), or a more restrictive zoning district, made by Jack Beery, and second 
by Phyllis Enzor. - 4 aves. Motion Passes. 

4of5 SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 

(SHALIMAR) 





L. OTHER BUSINESS 

The NOVEMBER 8, 2023, Plaillling Commission Meeting will be held at the Commissioner's Chambers, 
Okaloosa County Administrative Complex 1250 Eglin Parkway N, Shalin1ar, FL 32579. 

M. ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman Stewart adjourned the meeting at approximately 5:51 p.m. 

Prepared by: _ _ 
Martina Barrow, Recording Secretary 

Date 09/15/2023 

5 of5 SEPTEMBER 14, 2023 

(SHALIMAR) 









AGENDA ITEM 1 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

AGENDA REQUEST 

TO: HONORABLE CHAIRMAN & MEMBERS OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION 

THROUGH: Elliot Kampert, AICP, Director 

FROM: Randy Woodruff, AICP, Deputy Director 

SUBJECT: Third Amendment to the Development Agreement by and between the 
Board ofCounty Commissioners and Patriots Ridge LLP 

DATE: December 14, 2023 

BCC DISTRICT: (1) Commissioner Mixon 

PLANNING COMMISSION DISTRICT: (1) Commissioner Enzor 

PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration of the Third Amendment to the Development 
Agreement by and between the Board of County Commissioners and Patriots Ridge LLP, 
for the purpose of establishing development rights for certain real property located within 
the unincorporated area of Okaloosa County; providing assurances in accordance with 
existing laws and policies subject to the conditions of the agreement; and, insuring that 
the agreement is in compliance with applicable provisions of Section 163.3220-163.3243, 
Florida Statutes, and the Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan. 

BACKGROUND: The Okaloosa County Board of County Commission approved the 
original Patriot Ridge Development Agreement at their regular meetings held on October 
10, 2019 and November 5, 2019. This development agreement encompassed a total of 
approximately 416.60 acres and vested the property for a density of no more than 570 
single-family residential lots (see Exhibit 1). After duly noticed public hearings 
conducted on August 30, 2020 and September 1, 2020, the Okaloosa County Board of 
County Commission adopted the First Amendment to the Development Agreement that 
increased the number of allowable units from 570 to 676, added additional phases (16th 

Phase) to the development schedule, and required additional transportation improvements 
(see Exhibit 2). After duly noticed public hearings conducted on February 9, 2023 and 
March 14, 2023, the Okaloosa County Board of County Commission adopted the Second 
Amendment to the Development Agreement that decreased the number of allowable units 
from 676 to 657, recognized transportation improvements performed by the developer to
date, clarified the area of the parkland to be donated as 186.13± acres, and specified 
remaining transportation improvements (see Exhibit 3). 





The applicant has filed applications with the County for a Third Amendment to the 
Development Agreement between the Board of County C01mnissioners and Patriot 
Ridge, LLP for the purpose of amending the Development Agreement and Park Donation 
Agreement to reflect the value of the 186.13± acre parcel as provided in the appraisal. 
While the Development Agreement and Park Donation Agreement estimate the value of 
the 186.13± acre parcel as $2,050,000, an April 2023 appraisal perfonned by a real estate 
appraiser licensed in the state of Fl01ida detennined the value of the property to be 
$4,500,000. The County finds it is in the best interest of the public to amend both the 2nd 

Amended Development Agreement and the Park Donation Agreement with donor to 
recognize the value of the parcel as detennined by the recent appraisal. The Amended 
Park Donation Agreement will be presented to the Okaloosa County Board of County 
Commissioners as a separate agenda item. 

The proposed Development Agreement by and between the Board of County 
Co1mnissioners and Patriots Ridge LLP is hereby reviewed in accordance with applicable 
provisions ofSection 163.3227, Florida Statutes as defined below: 

(a) A legal description of the land subject to the agreement, and the names of its legal 

and equitable owners; Provided 

(b) The duration of the agreement; Provided 

(c) The development uses pennitted on the land, including population densities, and 

building intensities and height; Provided 

(d) A description of public facilities that will service the development, including who 

shall provide such facilities; the date any new facilities, if needed, will be 

constructed; and a schedule to assure public facilities are available concun-ent 

with the impacts of the development; Provided 

(e) A description of any reservation or dedication of land for public purposes; 

Provided 

(f) A description of all local development pe1mits approved or needed to be approved 

for the development ofthe land; Provided 

(g) A finding that the development permitted or proposed is consistent with the local 

government's comprehensive plan and land development regulations; Provided 

(h) A desc1iption of any conditions, tenns, restrictions, or other requirements 

detennined to be necessary by the local government for the public health, safety, 

or welfare of its citizens; Provided and 

(i) A statement indicating that the failure of the agreement to address a particular 

pennit, condition, tenn, or restriction shall not relieve the developer of the 

necessity of complying with the law governing said permitting requirements, 

conditions, term, or restriction. Provided 





(j) A development agreement may provide that the entire development or any phase 

thereof be cmmnenced or completed within a specific period oftime. Provided 

PUBLIC COMMENT/OPPOSITION: Staff has not received any fotmal 
complaints/opposition to the proposed Second Amendment to the Development 
Agreement. 

STAFF POSITION: Staff supports the requested Third Amendment to the Development 
Agreement by and between the Board of County Cmmnissioners and Pattiots Ridge LLP. 

PUBLIC NOTICE: The proposed agenda item was properly advertised in the Northwest 
Florida Daily News on November 29, 2023; and public notice, via certified, return
receipt letters, were provided to all property owners within 300-foot radius per Section 
1.11.02, of the Okaloosa County Land Development Code (see Attachment G). 

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the Commission consider the facts 
presented herein, as well as any facts that may be presented at the public heating, and 
then make a favorable rec01mnendation to the Board ofCounty Cotmnissioners. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS: Public hearing by the Board of County 
Commissioners is scheduled for January 3, 2024. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

A - Location Map 
B - Aerial Photo 
C - Existing Land Use Map 
D - FLUM/Zoning Map 
E - GIS Analysis 
F -Florida Statute 163.3227 
G - Legal Advertisement 

EXHIBITS: 
1. Original Patriot Ridge Development Agreement 
2. First Amendment to the Development Agreement 
3. Second Amendment to the Development Agreement 
4. Park Donation Agreement 
5. Third Amendment to the Development Agreement 
6. First Amendment to the Park Donation Agreement 





ATTACNMl:NT - A 

PATRIOT RIDGE PH 1- 16 

Legend 
N 

- Roads 

Location Map s 





ATTACHMENT - B 

PATRIOT RIDGE PH 1- 16 

Legend 
LJ Parcel Lines 

Aerial Photo s 





ATTACHMENT - C 

PATRIOT RIDGE PH 1- 16 

Existing Land Use Map s 





ATTACHMENT - D 

PATRIOT RIDGE PH 1-16 

FLUM Legend ZONE Legend 
- MU LOR - MU R-1 

- AG - AA 
s 

FLUM & Zoning Map 





ATTACHMENT E 

GIS ANALYSIS RESULTS 
Date: 1/09/2023 

Project: PATRIOT RIDGE PH 1- 16 

Property Address: LOCATED WEST OF LNE OAK CHURCH RD SOUTH OF AIRMANS MEMORIAL 
RD, CRESTVIEW, FL 

Zoning: MU, R-1 & AA 

FLU: MU, LDR, &AG 

Fire District: NORTH OKALOOSA Commissioner District: 1 Census Tract: 020700 

Soil Type: 4 - Chipley Foxworth - nearly level and gently sloping, somewhat poorly drained and moderately 
well drained soils that are sandy throughout 

6 - Dorovan - nearly level, very poorly drained soils that are organic - usually in freshwater swamps or 
drainage ways. 

8 - Kinston-Johnston-Bibb - soils on floodplains and along creeks etc., poorly drained, nearly level. 

12-Lakeland sand- 0 to 5% slope, excessively drained, penneability is rapid, the available water capacity is 
very slow, and rnnoff is slow. 

13 - Lakeland sand - 5 to 12% slope, excessively drained soils usually leads to drainage ways and around 
depressions, pe1meability is rapid, the available water capacity is very slow, rnnoff is slow. 

20 - Udorthents - nearly level feet. The soil material is used primarily for use in the constrnction and repair
of roads and as fill material for foundations. 

23 - Troup Sand - 0 to 5% slopes, well drained 

24 - Troup Sand, 5 to 8% slope, well drained uplands soil 

36 - Bonifay Sand, 0 to 5% slope, gently sloping, well drained 

37 -Bonifay Sand- 5 to 8% slope, well drained, permeability is rapid in the surface and subsurface layer, 
landfills or septic tanks should have limitations 

Wind Zone: LESS THAN 140 MPH 

Flood Zone: X 500 Year Flood Plain Map Number: 1209 1CO 2551 & 2601 

Storm Surge Area: NO 

Urban Development Area: YES Water Efficient Area: YES 

Wells: None 



Environmental Data: None Historical Data: None 

Wetlands: Uplands & Wetlands 

Water and Sewer: OCWS Within 3 mile of an Airport: NO 



_

_

ATTACHMENT F 

Chapter 163 Section 3227 w 2022 Flolida Statutes - The Florida Senate Pagel of 1 

The Florida Senate 
2022 Florida Statutes 
__________,_,_.,__ __,,__ , __,. __ _ ...... . _ .. • ·-- --- ... 
Title XI Chapter 163 
COUNTYORGAN£ZATfON AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL .PROGRAMS 
RELAT[ONS 

_________ _ ,. .______-·--·--· ______ ____ __ Entit'e Chnptel' 

···-·- ·- · ----- · · · · ·- · - -- - ·- ·-· ·-·---- ---· --.. - ..,- ,._ _, 

SECTION 3227 
Recjuhements of a development 
agreement. 

163,3227 Requirements of a developmeut agreement.
(1) Adeveioptnent agreemetJt shall i'ndtic(e the following: 
{a) A legal description of the lnnd subject to the agreement, and the names of its l.egnl nnd equitable owners; 
(b) T11e< durMion ·of the ag1·eeme11ti 
(c) The development uses pennitted on the land, including population densities, tmd building intensities and 

heighti 
(ci) A descrip tfoi, of public focilitles thc).t will service the dev.elopment, including who shall provide such facilities; 

the date any new facilities, if 1weded, will be construded; and a schedule to assure public facilities are available 
COLYCU!'l'ent wHh the impocts or the develop·1nent; 

(e) A description of any,reservation or dec_Ucation of land for public purposes; 
(f) A description of all loc11! development permits apprnved or needed to be approved for the development of the 

land; 
(g) A finding that tlw development perrultted or propos~ is c011sistent with the local gov1.munent's 

compreI:iensfve plan <1nd land development regulations; 
(h) A desct:l_ptlon o_f any condition~, terms, 1·estrictions, or otbet· requirements determined to be necessary by the 

local governinentf.or the public health, safety, or welfare of its citizens; and 
(i) A St!ltementindica!:i.ng that U1e failW'.e of the agreement to address a particular permit, condition, term, or 

restriction shall not i'elieve.the deve)oper of the necessity of complying wlth the law governing snid permitting 
requirements, condlt-ic;ins1 terin, or restrictjo11. 

(2) A deveiopment agreernent may provide that the enlire development or any phase thereof be commenced or 
completed within.a s__pecifis: period of ticrte. 

Hlstoey.~ s. 23, ch. B(l-191; s. 31, ch. 91-45. 

Disclai,mer: The information on this system Is unverified. TheJournals or printed bills of the respective chambers 
should be consulted .for official purposes. 

Copyright© 2000· 2022 State of Florida. 

https://flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2022/0163.3227 10/.3 l /2022 

https://flsenate.gov/Laws/Statutes/2022/0163.3227
https://St!ltementindica!:i.ng




EXHIBIT 1 

t:-: : r -s ·.:: i: Co:)Y 
!~~AMl ?SZ L? /l L/l0i~ 
l : l :J : 1J'3 ?M 
J D Pe -:1 .:.)•:: !.: I T. , 
r_"' l 5 r 1< • • ,- ;~ i. c -:: 1.l i. t 
C"o:Jr ·.: 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into this ~h day of
November 

______..., 2019, by and between the Okaloosa County Board of County Commissione rs (the 
"County") and Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida limited liabi lity partnership ("Developer") for the purpose of 
establishing development right of the Developer for certa in rea I property located with the unincorporated 
area of Okaloosa County, Florida, as more particularly described herein; providing assurances to the 
Developer that It may proceed with the Project in accordance with existing laws and policies subject to 
the conditions of this Agreement; and Insuring that this Agreement is In compliance with applicable 
provisions of Sections 163.3220-163.3243, Florida Statutes, and the Okaloosa County Comprehensive 
Plan. 

ARTICLE I, RECITALS 
WHEREAS, the Intent of the Florida Local Government Development Agreement Act (the "Act") Is explicitly 
provided in Section 163.3220(2), Florida Statutes, which sta tes as follows: 
(2) The Legislature finds and declares that: (a) The lack of certainty in the approval of development can 
result in a waste of economic and land resources, discourage sound capital investment planning and 

financing, escalate the cost of housing and development, and discourage commitment to comprehensive 
planning: (b)Assuronce to a developer that upon receipt ofhis development order(s) he may proceed with 
existing laws and policies, subject to the conditions of a development agreement, strengthens the public 
planning process, encourages sound capita/ improvement planning andfinancing, assists In assuring there 
are adequate capital facilities for the development, encourages private participation in comprehensive 
planning, and reduces the economic costs ofdevelopment. 

(3) Inconformity with, In furtherance of and to implement the Local Government Comprehensive Planning 
and Land Development Regulation Act and the Florida State Comprehensive Planning Act of1972, it is the 
intent of the Legislature to encourage a stronger commitment ta comprehensive and capital facilities 
planning, ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development, encourage the efficient use 
of resources, and reduce the economic cast ofdevelopment. 

(4) This Intent 1~ affected by authorizing local governments to enter into development agreements with 
developers, subject to the procedures and requirements of ss. 163.3220-163.3243. 
(5) Sections 163.3220~163.3243 shall be regarded as supplemental and additional to the powers conferred 
upon local governments by other Jaws and shall not be regarded as In derogation of any powers naw 
existing. 

WHEREAS, the Okaloosa County Land Development Code has been adopted by Ordinance No. 91· 1, as 
amended, and does contain Section 1.11.05 "Development Agreement" which specifically authorizes the 
County to enter Into development agreements with developers; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer wishes to develop a 570 lot single family residential development project which 
will be comprised solely of residential and accessory uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has control of 416.60 +/-acre parcel of property (the "Property") locat ed as 
more particularly described In Exhibit A, which possesses the required characteristics to accommodate 
the proposed general plan for development of the Proper ty, which has been submitted by the Developer 
under the name of Patriot Ridge Master Plan (the ''Project"); and 

Page 1 



•:;•!: !' t, l f 1,7-;! A 't i~:.1 :;,. An·:1 
·:·,:,r:ce(:•~: ·.::-:-,r.,y 
:1.?.'\t-1IP.~:~, l2/t;/20L9 
l.;.i.'.·1:4.J :?N 
J\_) f'(.'.'.)'.:'.:):;),:, fl I 
:~],:;::}: t-f C.irr:: 1-1.ic 
C;-.,qr.1·. 

WHEREAS, the Property 1, currently zoned by the County for resldentia Iand mixed u,e and the Developer 
has submitted a development order application with the County, which ,eek, to develop to an extent 
which Isles, than the maximum development density allowed for the zoning district; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will be developed In up to fifteen (15) phases over• period of five (5) years and 
therefore the Developer Is desirous of agreeing upon and memorlallzlng Its development rights with 
regard to the Prope,rty ln contractual termSi and 

WHEREAS, It ts In the best Interests of the County and Its citizens that the development of the Property 
be completed In a planned and orderly fashion giving consideration to the subjects addressed by this 
Agreement; and 

WHeREAS, the Developer and the County have agreed upon terms and conditions relating to the 
development of the Property, development rights, and beneAts to the County and Its cltiiens which are 
acceptable to the Developer and acceptable to the County, and the Developer and the County have 
deemed It appropriate that the terms and condition, of their agreements be reduced to written form; and 

WHeREAS, the benefits to the county as a result of entering Into this Agreement are unique to the 
particular circumstances of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Act provides a means for the Developer and the county to document the assurances 
sought by each and commitment to the terms and obligations of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Section 163,3225, Flor!da Statutes, the County has held two 
public hearings with respect to this Agreement, those being held on October 10, 2019 and Movember s. 
2019 respectJvely, with due public notice provided for each as required by law, 

NOW THEREFORE, Jn consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth he/eln and other 
good and valuable consideration, the Developer and the County enter Into this ·oevelopment Agreement 
and do hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE JI. DoFINITIONS 

The following definitions shall apply to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If a word, term or 
phrase Is not defined In this Article, Its meaning shall be as defined In the Okaloosa County land 
Development Code, • 

2.1 "Comprehensive Plan" means the adopted Okaloosa county Comprehensive Plan, ordinance No, 90· 
1, as subsequently amended. 

2,2 "County'' means Okaloosa County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida. 

2,3 "Developer" means Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership, and Its lawful successori 
In title and Interest, 

lage 2 

3:~:~ - Mlrt'JC~j 31.lpp1)::-t.\,rq D0,;:,:mc:lt3 - ] L/S/;~GU 
rJ.:::ec: R.?.AMi:RSZ ~;:/ll./2r)l'~ lll; 11:42. p~,J 

https://C.irr::1-1.ic


~~r::Lt!aJ A 1't•J0 Anj 
.-:·~.in:"?.('t r;c,py 
t~AML~Si 12/11/20lj 

_fi.) f-8ct'_:,'..l!;k l .f 1 

::'let;,. ·1[ C.i..1.,;1).L.._ 

C:::iu.::t~ 

2.,4 
11Land De 11elopment Cade 1' means the Okaloosa county Land Development Code, Ordinance No 91~1, 

as subs0quent/y arnended, 

2.5 '1Nlalntenance11 means servicing, support1 and up~eep of al! rnfrastrw:tures servicing the Project. 

2.6 "Owners Association" means the nan-profit corporatian(s) established as a m;;indataty owners 
association for the governance of the use of the property subject to this Agreement. 

2.7 "Project" means the proposed residerltia/ development, Patdot Ridge Master Plan, and all supporting 
uses and amenities authorized blf this Agreement, as more partlculat!v described herein. 

2..8 /(Property'' means the real propert•/ more particularly described as Exhibit A upon which the Project 
w/11 be developed, 

l.9 1
'Rlght~of~W3v" means the area whlch may be dedicated to the countl( or such other governmental 

entity allowing access for public works1 utilities, and public access, or ta the communlty association foe 
members' use and access. 

ARTICLE Ill, ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS 

The essential requirements of taw for this Agreement as prescribed by Section. 163 ,32271 Florida Sta tutes1 
are addressed as follows: 

3.1 legal Description -A legal description of the property to be developed subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement Is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and Incorporated herein by reference. 

3.2 Duration.of Agreement-The duration of this Agreement shall be for five (SJ years commencing with 
the effective date of this Agreement. This Agreement may be extended by the mutual consent of the 
parties for an additional five (5) years. 

3.3 Development Uses 
A. The parties do hereb'I agree that the Developer Intends to develop a resldenUal development 
consisting of a maximllm of 570 single family units and all associated roadways, stormwate, 
treatment, landscaping, and other lmpro11ements as may be req ulred by the Land Development code; 
and could, but are not obligated to, build and develop accessory usesand structures Including storage 
areas, parking lots and/or garages. Building density shall be no more than four (4) units peracre, and 
building height shall not exceed 45 feet. 
B, The Project described In section 3.3(a) may be del/eloped In up to fifteen (15) phases through the 
terrn of this Agreement, Prior to the development of each phase, the Developer shall submit to the 
County all notices and/or contributions provided for In tl1ls Agreement. Development authorl,ed by 
this Agreement shall be In conformance with the terms of this Agreement. The proposed phasing is 
prnvlded by the attached Exhibit C, 

3.4 Pubfle ~adlltles, Infrastructure i:apacljy, and C•oaclty.Reservatlon - The Developer, at its expense, 
will supply adeqUate publ!c fadlitles, lnfrastructure, and services to serve the Project concurrent with the 
Impact which creates the need for the following services: 

https://Duration.of


C\1,:t;.l::!.+I 1\ Tr-~-; A;·I 
c~, r r~.:-::i:: c,~,r-•Y 
fRAMl~~z lJ/ll/2G1~ 
l: 15;•!3 PM 
J::; P·')·:i·:::,.::,,:;;,: 1:T. 1 

,:;~_f::.'"i: '>t .::Le :·d. r: 
(·-:11,, rt 

A. Solid Waste Dlspossl..., Collection service for' the Praject wllf be In accordanc:e with the franchise 
agreement between Okaloosa County and the franchised hauler. The Public Works Dlvfslon has 
!ndlca tad there Is sufflclent capacity to handle the solid waste from the proposed development. 

B. Stormwater M;;magement-The Developer shall design and construct or ca use to be constructed 
at Its expense, a stormwatcr management system or systems to serve alt parcels within the project 
boundary or ex!stlng facl!ities shall be shown to accommodi:l te all a, a portion of the requrred 
storm water management system, All stormwater management system improvements tocated with 
the Project will be: (1) designed and constrllcted to County and State standards and (2) all 
Improvements located outside the boundaries of Individual parcels which are not dedicated to the 
County wfll be maintained as common element~ by the Owners Association. The County wlll no-t be 
responsible for any construction or maintenance costs associated with the stormwater drainage 
system within the Project unless It Is dedicated as a public facility and formally accepted after the 
completlan of the requlred bonding and watranty per!od, The project wide systems are Intended to 
provide the primary treatment capacity for all development with the Project. • 

C. Transportation and Roads -

1. The Developer has submitted to the County a comprehensive Traffic Impact Analysis for the 
Project prepared by Southern Traffic Services, Including land use and transpoltatlon capacity 
analysis data for the purpose of determining the Impact the Project will have on all roadway 
segments included 1n the County's Transportation Concurrency System, a copv of which ts 
attached hereto as Exhibit Band Incorporated herein by reference, 

2, The proposed trtps resultlng from the development of the Project exceeds the capacity available 
alang ,segments of SR 8S and PJ Adams Parkway. The parties agree that the Developer may 
address the capacity constraints In the Impact area by applying the mitigation payment set forth 
ln the Traffic Impact Anarysis (the "Mltigat!on Paymene1) to certain transportation 

!mprovernents1 tis set forth below, 

3. In consideration of the Mitigation Payment, which provides value and capacity enhancement to 
the County roadway system, the County agrees to reserve atotal trip capacl~/ of 2 P.M, Peak 
Hour trips In relation to the segment of State Road 85 (from Stilwell Avenue to CR 188 -Airport 
Road), 80 P,M, Peak Hour trips In relation to the segment ofltata Road 85 (from Antioch Road 
to 1-10) and 20 PM Peal< Hour trips In relation to the segment of PJ Adams Parkway (from 
Antioch Road to Wild Horse Drive), 

4. rhe total budgeted construction cost of phase one of the PJ Adams Parkway Widening project 
Is $5,300,000, which will create One Thousand Eighty-One (1,881) trips, Based on the Parkway 
Widening project, the parties agree the Developer's calculated Mitigation Payment amount is 
$287,334. The parties agree the estimated construction cost for operational Improvements, 
described In section 8 below, exceed the calculated Mitigation Payment and no Mitigation 
Payment shall be made by the Deveiopet to the County, 

5. In addition to the Impact the development will have on the roadway segments Included In the 
County's Transportation Concurrency System, the development also will Impact several other 

Paga 4 

8CC - )-lir. 1..1':.~~-:3 1? 1:f!p~:,:~r:::.n~J Dn:'::l.lfH<"}Oi:S - li/S/2019 
~;-~er.: ~RAl"LH~SZ l2/l.l/2~H9 Ol:.17:<12 i?M 



r·,~~t.l{i.-;;..I i\ '(':·,_1<~ .t,.r·:I 
r: J' !. ;,,:: 1: (':,vi 
\ 1.Rl\,:tJ mi!:~ I. 2 / 11./; 'i l. ::, 
L: lS: '11 ['~'! 
,J:J i;..;:,,;; ;•)1::;.; J .t / 
~~=~.:i~ ~,r r~i.rc:,:L•; 

roadwEys segments in its service area that are not tnduded ln such system, which ar2 currently 
operating at or above their capacity. The Traffic Impact Analysis identifies these roadw.ay 
segments and recommends opNational irnpro'lement5 required to retain, or Improve, the level 
of service, 

6, The Developer agrees to provide the operational lmprovernents and cash payment set forth 
below. The estimated cost of the Deve[oper's total out of pocket cost for surveying, soil testing, 
design, other soft costs and construction for such Improvements Is $1,300,524. 

7. The proposed operational improvement{s) shall be made in a public/private partnership with 
the County participating In the construction of the operational Improvements as hereinafter set 
forth. 

8, ~lotwfthstanding any other provision of this Agreement or the Traffic Impact Analysis, the 
Developer and the County hereby agree to mal<e the foflowlng lmpro11ements: 

a) The Developer shall pay $30,000.00 to the County on or before January l, 2021 to be used 
by the County for plr.mned Improvements to Jo.hn King Road; and 

b) The Developer shall construct southbound dual left turn lanes on SR85 at the Intersection 
with Live Oak Church Road with the outside lane used for Live Oak Church Road turning 
movements and the inside Jane striped for a le~ u-turn comblnation, or as otherwise 
approved by the FOOT, and shall construct awestbound right turn lane on Live Dal< Church 
Road from SR 85 to the current entrance to the CEFCO. Upon approval of this Agreement, 
Developer shall submit the plans fol such Improvements to the FOOT and the County within 
nlnet11 {90) days, shall vigorously pursue obtaining approval ofsuch plans and shall complete 
these Improvements within Melve (l2) months a~ar obtaining such approval; and 

cl The County shall add a project to the County Capital Improvement Plan to widen the bridge 
on Live Oak Church Road, located 0.8 miles east of SR 8S; and 

d) The Developer shall widen Live Oak Church Road to four 14) lanes from SR85 to Shoal River 
Drive transitioning to two (2) lanes at that Intersection with a right turn on to Shoal River 
Drive. In addition, the Developer shall also construct westbound dual left turn lanes from 
Live Oak Church Road onto SR85, or as otherwise approved by the FOOT. Upon receipt of 
the plans from the County for the bridge widening on Live Oak Church Road, the Developer 
shall submit the pl,ns for such Improvements to the FOOT and the County within ninety 
(90) days, shall Vigorously pursue obtaining approval ofsuch plans and shall complete these 
Improvements within twelve (12) months after obtaining such approval or within twelve 
(U) months after the County completes the bridge widening, whichever comes later. 

9. The Developer shall construct or cause to be constructed a roadway system that wlll be privately 
maintained within the Project, which will be available to serve all primary and accessory uses. 
As such, the roadway system shall be owned and maintained as a private common element of 
the Project by the owners Associations. The County will not be responsible for any construction 
or maintenance costs assoclatGd with the internal roadways of the Project. The roadways w/11 
be designed and constructed to County standards. As all roads will be low speed and low 
volume, all roads with the development shall be considered local roadways as defined In section 
6.03.03 C of the Okaloosa County Land Development Code, 

Page 5 

https://30,000.00
https://roadw.ay


r;:,:.!::.!fL-::J A 'tL"•B A1·:·.l 
C0rrs::·~1; t;'.opy 
[-UH\)rU-'. S 7, 1 '-!. ( l L/'? 1 F ~, 
1:1):,)'.~ ?/ti 
JD P-=.d·::o-..:'.,·. l l, 
,:1•~::k ,1':'. c1r,::.1.1lt 
-::-=:-'J [. 

10, A roadway connecting Airman's ~,lemorial Road <1nd Skyllne Cirtle shall not be gated nor shall 
the roadway be restricted to public use in any way, The Developer shall provide an easement 
over the roadway connecting Airman's Memorial Road and Skyline Circle for public access and 
shall construct th!s roadway with a stabllized base for construction traffic before any bu!fding 
permit Is Issued for any phase beyond phases 2, 3, and 4. The Developer shall not be responsible 
far monitar'lng construction tra fflc on any roadway. 1he roadway shall be paved and upgraded 
to Coun t·t standards when the prope(ty adjacent to the roadway is platted. 

D, Parks and Recreational facilities -The oevelopershall satisfy concurrency requirements for parl,s 
and (ecreatlon as provfded In Sectlon 6,07 of the Land Development Code as follmvs; 

1) The Land Requirements described in Section 6.07.03 result In five 15) acras of land required 
to be dedicated since the total acreage of the proposed development Is less than five hundred 
ISOO), The acreage requirement will be met through the dedication of a +/" l.39 acre site In 
Phase 3 of the development for construction of a Private Neighborhood Parl< which shall be 
awned and maintained by the Homeowners Association arid, through the dedication of a 
minimum of+/" 187.43 acres for a Public Neighborhood Park, as shown on the attached 
Exhibit D and as described by the legal description attached as Exhibit 0, to provide access to 
the Shoal River. The Public Neighborhood Park shall have a minimum 40' wide access, In an 
upland area, connecting the park to Shoal River Drive on the east side of the parl< and shall 
have a minimum 10' wide access1 !nan upland area, connecting the park to Shoal River Drtve 
on the west side of the park as shown in E:<hfbit D, To aid with privacy and security to adjacent 
resident/al lots directly east of the access points, the County shall cansttuct and maintain a 6 
foot tall pr1vacy fence, from wood or tan vinyl, along the east side of the 40' wide and 10' 
vvide- actc'!SS polnts ar such time as any Improvements are constructed over such access, The 
privacy fence shall not blocl< sight distance at the Intersection of Live Oal< Church Road and 
Shoal River Drive, Tho Public Neighborhood Park shall be owned and operated by the County, 
The Developer may modify the legal description of the property to be conveyed far the Public 
Neighborhood Park prior to Its conveyance ~rovlded that its configuration and general 
location Is substantially the same as shown al Exhibit D. The Private Neighborhood Park shall 
be dedicated to the Homeowners Association prlot to or In connection with the plat for Phase 
five as shown by Exhibit C. The Public Neighborhood Park shall be dedicated to the County, 
by warranty deed Including any underlying mineral rights that developer owns, prior to the 
recording of any plat for the proposed development, Based on the amount that Developer 
paid for the land Included within the Project, the acreage being dedicated to the County for 
the Public Neighborhood Park would be approximately $2.05 million, 

2) The Developer plans to Improve the Private Neighborhood Park with open fields, a 
playground, bathroom facilities and other active uses including, at Developer's option, the 
construction of a swimming pool and related facilities, The Improvements to the Private 
Neighborhood Park shall meet the requirements of Section 6.07.06 of the Land Development 
Code for the construction of facllltles. The lmptovements to the Private Neighborhood Park 
shall be required to be completed prior to the plat being recorded for that phase of 
development as provided for by Exhibit C. 

·---------
Pilgd 6 

BC•_~ - ~•Jln1_;·:.'?.s .~•.lP[J-)'.'.:"f:i!q L1 o-.:::=.t:a-~;y•:.':l - ll/':J/2;)}j 
:J~-.ic f1.~A~!Tf<.£Z .l2/U/..-'.~J'~3 0~:.l 7:~2 PH 



!;'<;i;~.ir:t-,,:J !', .:.'t'tJ,:; p.,:,·J 
i:::•11 r,:,,:1: ,_:,:,py 
.8Y,AMIP:;,',7. 11/ll./,.!·J.l:.l 
l: J:) : 4 ~ FM 
,Jc, Pe-c:;:•:i•i: :,. r r, 
,::L-:'.•i.<.; •.;C Ci.r,·;~q:,,;; 

E, Potable Water- Potable water will be provided by Okaloosa county Water & Sewer (''OCWS"), 
which has verified it has overall system capacity to serve the proposed development. 

F, sanitary Sewer-

1. The Developer wJH connect Phases 1-9, 11, and 13-14 to the public sewer system, provided 
by OCINS. OCWS currently h'1s wastewater treatment and dfsposal capaclty available for 
these phases at the Jerry D. Mitchem Water Reclamation Facility at the Bob Sikes Industrial 
Park, Capacity ls reserved via payments of Capacity Expansion Charges, at rates established 
by the current Water & Sewer Ordinance at the time of payment 

2.. During future engineering design, for reasons pertaining to pump station or line capacity, 
OCWS reserves the right to allow phases or po;1rcels to h~11e on-sit(! treatment system~ [as 
approved by the Florida Department of Health), provided the lot size meets the minimum 
requirements and agravity sewer main or low pressure sewer main Is not avallable ln apubltc 
right-of-way or easement adjacent to the phase or parcel, 

3. For any lots with , p1oposed low pressure sewer system and/or Individual grinder stations, 
the Developer will setup a central management entity (such ass Homeowners Assocfatfon). 
OCWS will not own, operate, or maintain private grinder stations or plumbing. 

4, The proposed development, other proposed developments not part of this Development 
Agreement, and ex/sting sewer demand requires off...s!te lrnpmlfements to the, Brr,wn Place 
liftStation and construction of a new master II~ station to be caHed the Shoal River landing 
Lift Station, with associated farce rna!n Improvements. Developer hereby agrees to 
contribute $S7,895 to the cost of the upgrade to the Brown Place Lift Station within ten (10) 
days of receipt of notification of Developer from OCWS that appropriate Purc:hase Orders 
hclV~ been issued, Developer hereby agrees to contribute $187,142 to the cost of the Shoal 
Rlver Landing lift Sta ~lon wlth associated forci! main Improvements: within ten (10) days of 
receipt, of notification based on the following schedule; 

a. Twentv percent (20%), or. $37A28.40, upon approval of cost sharing agreements and 
allocation of the County funds for the construction by the Board of County 
Comm!ssloners; 

b, Forty percent 140%), or $74,856.80, upon receipt of all permits for the construction and 
commencement a f procurement of mate dais and equ1pmentj and 

c, Forty percent {40%)i or $74,856.80, upon the start of constructfon oF the lift station and 
associated force main Improvements, 

5, As public central sewer service ls not curre11t/y avallable to serve Phases 101 12, and 151 

sewage treatment wfll be provided through the Installation of on-site treatment systems as 
approved by the Florida Department of Health, 

3.5 Cancuuem:y-Through .section 3,4,C, above, the concurrency reqliirements for traffic and roads have 
been satisfied by the Developer, The terms of this agreement shall not be construed to Imply approval 
for water, waste1Nater, stormwater, parks, or solld waste concurrency nor shall it relleve the 
developer from complying with all applicable rules and/or regula tlons pertaining to this development, 
This agreement ls applicable to only the specific items expressed herein and the Developer shall 

Page 7 

https://74,856.80
https://74,856.80
https://37A28.40


r,41 '. j f:.~·3•;l A 'i'H~!-) i'.f'".I 

~;:(i ;' t:z. '::I~~ i t/ 2 81 -~ 
l:"i.:J: 1;1 L'M 
,!G Pf:~-:;:r,;•;s: l"'.:, 
,,:~,,i 1:I.: (>f' (~.: r--::-~i t 
C.JC..f t: 

comply wlth all other requirements of the Okaloosa County Land Development Code In tt1elr effort to 
obtain development approv~I. 

3.6 Con~lstern:y -The de11elopment al1thori~~d by thl.s Agreement is consl~tent with the goals, objectives, 
and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and appllcabl~ development regulat1tins in effect at the time 
of the e:<.ecutlon of this Agreement. 

3.7 Requll'pd Permits - The Developer shall obtain, or cause to be obtainedi u/1 requisite County permits 
and authorizations to allow construction of the development contemplated herein Including, but not 
lim!ted to, an Okaloosa County Development Order, Okaloosa County Stormwater Permit, and an 
Okaloosa County Underground Ut!lity Permit. Failure of this Agreement to address a particular 
permit, condltlon1 term or restriction, Including permits or authorizations rssueci by agencies othar 
than Okaloosa County, sha II not relleve the Developer from the necesslty of complying with the laws 
governing such permit requirement, condition, term or restriction. 

3,8 Additional Cohdltions - The Developer, its successors and assigns1 agree to provide all necessary 
facillties and services required far development of the Property In accordanee with the. terms of this 
Agreement. The parties hereto do agree that the Developer may act In reliance upon this Agreement. 
Nothing herein, however, Is Intended to preclude the Cotrnty from eKercising Its proper regulatory 
powers to protect the health1 welfare, and safety of the public, 

ARTICLE IV. AGREEMENT AND COVENANT 

4.1 8y execution hereof, the County acknowledges and agre~s that this particular Agreement WIii 
encourage proper use of the Property, promote economic use of land re:i.;ources of th~ County, pfovlde 
for public facilities and use, and encourage private partidpatloi:i in the compret,ensive planning process, 
The County acknowledges and ag(ees that It Is exerclsfng Its sound discretion In thi-5 inst&nce by entering 
fnta· this Agreement to achieve mutual benefits that are particular and unique to tha circumstances 
underlying this Agreement. 

4.2 This Agreement Is assignable by the Developer and shall be binding upon, and Inure to the benefit of, 
all heirs, successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

4.3 To the eatent that the Developerfalls to perform any of the actions or requirements contained In this 
Agreement, the County shall provide written notice to the Developer of his failure to comply with the 
terms of this Agreement. Within thlrW (30) days of the receipt of such notice, and In the event that the 
Developer fails to cuie such Failure within thirty (30) days after receipt of .such notice, the County shall 
suspend and hold in abeyance all applications for or issuance of an 11 development orders or bullding 
permits for the Project until the failure Is cured and no further phases of the Project shall be reviewed, 
permitted, or otherwise approved. At such time a, the Developer cures the performance failure then the 
review and processing ofappllcatlon.s For a development order may resume, 

4.4 Any notices required to be given or elected to be give.n by either of the parties pursuant to the terms 
of this agreement shall be deemed effective provided when placed in the United States Mail, certified 
return rece lpt requested, of placed In the hand.s of an overnight delivery service . 

.... ··-- --- ---------------------------
Page 8 

!](7'.' - Mi.r;:.:·:!:':i S:.:n.,(.1 ': 1.: ~n-.;.r ~>):: 1.1:1:,~\;-tt~s - l LI) 1~ 1')l ::i 
r.J:,;,,~c: l:Wi'-.i'fT.tlf.'.Z lUlll<:JI.•) n1:1·,;:,12 ?H 



Gert.Lfie;:t A 'frue An.J. 
Correct Copy 
RRAMIRF.Z 12/11/2019 
1:.15:48 FM 
JD Peacoi;k I I, 
Clark af Ci.rcuit 
Cou.rl; 

As to the Dev.loper: 

Gregory E. Matovlna 
Patriot Ridge, U.P 
12443 San Jose aoulevard, Suite 504 
Jacksonville, FL 32223 

As to the county: 

Elliot Kampert 
Growth Management Director 
Okaloosa County, Florida 
1250 N Eglin Parkway 
Shalimar, FL32579 

And acopy to: 

County Attorney: 

GregoryT. Stewart 
County Attorney 
1500 Mahan Drive, Suite 200 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

(This space intentionally left blank) 

Pago 9 

!Jso:Jr: P.RA~HREZ 12/L1/2C!9 01:17:'12 l?M 



r_;:..::ct:l.t'i•."!j A 'J'ru-:, ,i~nr;I 
C:n: .r:0•,;t Cupy 
Pf1.•t1.:,11:r1.r;:;, t2ilJ/;:01~ 
l: 1'5: ,12 f?M 
JIJ P'-:'.l.;;l·J•1•:;:-: I f1 
(:J-:=-1r-k rJt Cir,;:uLt 
C,:i!Jrt:. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals this 5thday o/Noveniber 
,019, 

OKALOOSA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSI. 

By ~;4 .f/;:/4u:. , 
Charle$ K. \JVindes, Jr, ~ 
Cha lrman, Boa rd of County Commissioners 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 5thday of l1ovamber 2019, by 
as Chairman of the Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY 

COMMISSIONERS, on behalf of the Board, who Is personally known to me, 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 
C: 

S£ ;C.~
County Attorney 

Signed, sealed and delivered In the presence of: 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF OKALOOSA Notaty Public, State of Florida, My Commission Expires: 

DEVELOPER 

Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida limited liability partnmhlp 

By: A.,,.,,, ~ Gtegory E. Matovlna, Managing Partner of Pattlot Ridge, 
LLP 

Page 10 

B('•--; •· M1nui::~.:1 Supp•J:::-ti.n~) \JQ\";1,1.rr1c~rli:::'l - l.l/5/2i)l';} 
r,ha?.:: P?..A~HRi!:3 12/11/2019 01:17:~?. !?M 



EXHIBIT "A" Page 1 of 6 

---1""'""~•..,,u G Gustin, Cothern & Tucker, Inc, 
-:::::~-::::::,•:,•· !':~.=.:_ ~ LANDSURIJEl'ING 



EXHIBIT "A" Page 2 of 6 

PARCEL 1 

ATRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, AND IN SECTION 33, 
TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, TALLAHASSEE, MERIDIAN, Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER DF SECTION 4, 

TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, AND RUN NORTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" WEST 2919,27 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" WEST 280,94 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88 
DEGREES 56'32" EAST TO THE CENTER LINE OFA GULF POWER COMPANY POWER LINE RIGHT OF WAY 
607,99 FEET; THENCE NORTH 03 DEGREES 47'49" WEST 3400,26 FEET ALONG SAID POWER LINE RIGHT 
OF WAY TO A FENCE ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF GULF POWER COMPANY SUB-STATION PROPERTY; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 35'57" EAST 769,27 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID GULF 
POWER COMPANY PROPERTY; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 39'03" EAST ALONG EXISTING FENCE 384.72 
FEET TO THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF GULF POWER COMPANY POWER LINE RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE 
NORTH 87 DEGREES 55'17" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF GULF POWER COMPANY POWER 
LINE RIGHT OF WAY 3586,04 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE SOUTH 01 
DEGREES 32'39" WEST ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 33, 2614.99 FEET TO THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 02'13" WEST ALONG THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 33, 1319.43 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG THE SOUTH 
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 33, NORTH 89 DEGREES 03'21" WEST 1317 ,92 FEET; THENCE SOUTl-108 
DEGREES 14'36" EAST 983.22 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 07 DEGREES 57'45" EAST 985.60 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 88 DEGREES 56'32" WEST2637,36 FEET TO THE WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE 
NORTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" WEST 279,27'FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

LESS AND EXCEPT: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23WEST, 
Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE GO SOUTH 08°09'08" EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 4, A DISTANCE OF 1406,70 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUE SOUTH 
08°09'08" EAST A DISTANCE OF 220.43 FEET; THENCE GO NORTH 74'32'36" EAST A DISTANCE OF 255.72 
FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE GO SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 130.00 FEET FOR AN ARC DISTANCE OF 133,44 FEET {CH. 127 .66'; CH. BRG. -
SOUTH 77'53'33" EAST) TO A POINT ON THE SAID CURVE; THENCE GO NORTH 86'56'52" EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 77.74 FEET; THENCE GO SOUTH 04'33'30" EAST A DISTANCE OF 218.29 FEET; THENCE TO 
NORTH 85'58'10" EAST A DISTANCE OF 275.00 FEET TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY OF A COUNTY 
ROAD; THENCE GO NORTH 04'47'30" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR 430.13 FEET; 
THENCE GO SOUTH 88'58'10" WEST A DISTANCE OF 133,24 FEET; THENCE GO SOUTH 03'41'21" EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 30,00 FEET; THENCE GO SOUTH 88'58'10" WEST A DISTANCE OF 605.37 FEET TO THE 

POINT OF BEGINNING. 

LESS AND EXCEPT: 

CHANAN ESTATES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOI( 21, PAGES 77-79, OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 



EXHIBIT "A" Page 3 of 6 

SHOAL LANDING EAST, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN PLAT 8001( 11, PAGE 18, OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

TIMBERLINE ESTATES AT SHOAL RIVER GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BODI( 10, PAGES 32 AND 33 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

LAKESIDE EAST AT SHOAL RIVER COUNTRY CLUB AND RESORT ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT 8001( 8 PAGE 94 AND AMENDED IN PLAT 8001< 10, PAGE 25 OF THE RECORDS OF 
Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

RIVERSIDE NORTH AT SHOAL RIVER COUNTRY CLUB AND RESORT, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BODI< 8, PAGE 93 AND AMENDED IN PLAT BODI< 10, PAGE 26 OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

PINNACLE POINT AT SHOAL RIVER GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BODI< 10, PAGE 96 OF 
THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

A PARCEL OF LAND SITUATED IN SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, Ol(ALOOSA 
COUNTY FLORIDA, AND BEING A PORTION OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2961, 

PAGE 4776, ALSO BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT A FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE 
MONUMENT), STAMPED L.B. #5024, MARl<ING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF CHANAN ESTATES· FIRST 
ADDITION AS RECORDED IN PLAT BODI< 24, PAGE 58 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE PROCEED SOUTH 12 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY 
BOUNDARY OF CHANAN ESTATES· FIRST ADDITION, FOR A DISTANCE OF 174,00 FEET TO A FOUND 4 

INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT), STAMPED L.B. #5024; 

THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY PROCEED SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 28 
SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 188,94 FEET TO A FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT 
(PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT), STAMPED L.B. #5024; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WESTERLY 
BOUNDARY OF CHANAN ESTATES· FIRST ADDITION PROCEED SOUTH 80 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 55 
SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 106,25 FEET TO A1/2 INCH CAPPED IRON ROD LB #7191 ON THE 
EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SHOAL LANDING EAST, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BODI( 11, PAGE 18 OF THE 
Ol(ALDOSA COUNTY PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE PROCEED NORTH 09 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 37 SECONDS 
EAST ALONG SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SHOAL LANDING EAST FOR A DISTANCE OF 94,00 FEET TO A 
FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT) WITH NO 
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID EASTERN BOUNDARY PROCEED NORTH 
14 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 22 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 43.47 FEET TO A FOUND 4 INCH X4 INCH 



EXHIBIT "A" Page 4 of 6 

CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT) STAMPED LB, #4150, ON THE 
NORTHERN BOUNDARY OF SAID SHOAL LANDING EAST; THENCE PROCEED SOUTH 77 DEGREES 15 
MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID NORTHERN BOUNDARY, FOR A DISTANCE OF 70,62 FEET TO A 
FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT) STAMPED LB, 
114150; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTHERN BOUNDARY PROCEED NORTH 70 DEGREES 45 
MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 115,12 FEET TO A FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE 
MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT), STAMPED LB. #4150; THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
NORTHERN BOUNDARY OF SHOAL LANDING EAST PROCEED NORTH 23 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 00 
SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 213.94 FEET TO A NAIL AND DISC STAMPED LB, #7191 ON THE 
SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AIRMAN'S MEMORIAL ROAD (SO FOOT PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY); 
THENCE PROCEED NORTH 88 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 55 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT
OF-WAY LINE FOR A DISTANCE OF 310,90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT ANY PORTION OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY LYING AND BEING IN ANY 
ROAD RIGHTS OF WAYS, 

PARCEL 2: 

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, TALLAHASSEE 
MERIDIAN, Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING 
AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 5, RUN NORTH 88 DEGREES 31 '37" WEST 2708.41 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 45'55" EAST 2871.69 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES SO'OO" EAST 
2054,04 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE SOUTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" EAST 
ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 5; 2919,27 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT 

RIVERSIDE NORTH AT SHOAL RIVER COUNTRY CLUB AND RESORT, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT BOOI< 8, PAGE 93 AND AMENDED IN PLAT B001< 10, PAGE 26 OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS O.F Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND LESS AND EXCEPT ANY PORTION OF THE ABOVE 
DESCRIBED PROPERTY LYING AND BEING IN ANY ROAD RIGHTS OF WAYS, 

PARCEL 3: 

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 
2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST OF THE TALLAHASSEE MERIDIAN, IN Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 4 
AND RUN SOUTH 88 DEGREES 31'37" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4 FOR 600.00 
FEET; THENCE NORTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" WEST 2644.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 56'32" 
WEST 599,28 FEET TO THE WEST MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE SOUTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" EAST 
ALONG SAID WEST MARGIN 2640.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

PARCEL 5: 



EXHIBIT "A" Page 5 of 6 

THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, 
Ol<ALOOSA 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, LESS AND EXCEPT: 

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 
2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST OF THE TALLAHASSEE MERIDIAN, IN OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 4 AND RUN NORTH 88 DEGREES 31'37" 
WEST ALONG THE SOUTH MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4 FOR 600,00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 08 DEGREES 
10'46" WEST 2644.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 56'32" WEST 599.28 FEET TO THE WEST 
MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE SOUTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" EAST ALONG SAID WEST MARGIN 
2640.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT: 

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, OKALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCE AT A 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT (NO IDENTIFICATION), MARl(ING THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF LOT 42, BLOCI( C, LAKESIDE EAST AT SHOAL RIVER GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB (AMENDED 
PLAT), AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOO!( 10, PAGE 25, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA·COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 140.38 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 07 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF • 
586,18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 718.31 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 07 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 600.58 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SHOAL RIVER DRIVE (66 FOOT PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY); SAID 
POINT BEING A POINT ON A CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 2345, 77 
FEET; THENCE, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGlE OF O DEGREES 06 MINUTES 56 SECONDS, A DISTANCE OF 4.73 FEET (CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE= NORTH 85 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST -4.73 FEET), TO A POINT ON A 
CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 1216.16 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 7 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 17 SECONDS A DISTANCE 
OF 158.23 FEET (CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE~ NORTH 81 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST -
158,12 FEET), TO A POINT ON A CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 
1150,16 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 7 DEGREES 27 
MINUTES 17 SECONDS A DISTANCE OF 149.65 FEET (CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE= NORTH 81 
DEGREES 49 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST-149.54 FEET); THENCE NORTH 85 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 41 
SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 91.13 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
PROCEED SOUTH 02 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 80.22 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 87 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 11 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 323,83 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 

https://EAST-149.54


EXHIBIT "A" Page 6 of 6 

NOTE: ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT ALL PONDS, LAKES, DAMS AND RETENTION AREAS (HEREAFTER "LAKES") 
CURRENTLY LOCATED WITHIN PARCELS 1,2,3,4 AND 5, WHICH SHALL REMAIN OWNED BY GRANTOR, 
AMERICAN PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL, LTD., EXCEPT THE; (I) 

"COMMON AREA/RETENTION AREA" LOCATED WITHIN CHANAN ESTATES FIRST ADDITION AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT 8001( 24, PAGE 56; AND (II) THE RETENTION AREA WITHIN FAIRWAY #4 AS DIPICTED 
ON THE GEORGE, NIELSEN & TOOl(E, P.A. SURVEY DATED AUGUST 7, 1991, 

SHEET 2 OF 5; IS BEING CONVEYED TO CHANAN ADARA INVESTMENTS, LLC, A FLORIDA LIMITED 
LIABILITY COMPANY. SUBJECT TO THE RIGHTS OF CHANAN ESTATES PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, 
INC., BY VIRTUE OF THE DEDICATION AS SHOWN IN PLAT BOOI( 24, PAGE 56, LYING WITHIN PARCEL 1. 



PATRIOT RIDGE 
PROPOSED PHASING SCHEDULE 
EXHIBIT C 

PHASE# GENERAL LOCATION 

1 West of Lakes A and B 

2 Between Lake Cand Shoal River Drive 

3 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit One) 

4 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Two) 

5 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Three) 
INCLUDES PRIVATE NEIGHBORHOOD PARK 

6 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Four) 

7 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Five) 

8 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Six) 

9 Chanteuse Parkway extension 

10 Between Lake Cand Skyline Circle 

11 Off Airmens Memorial Road 

12 Adjacent to Lake E 

13 Between Chan an Estates and First Addition 

14 South of Shoal River Drive 
INCLUDES PUBLIC NEIGHBORHOOD PARK 

15 Off Timberline Drive 

TOTAL 

TRAFFIC 
MAX# MITIGATION 

OF LOTS PAYMENT 

65 $ 36,621 

28 14,085 

60 30,987 

73 36,621 

77 36,621 

51 25,353 

55 28,170 

49 22,536 

18 8,451 

24 11,268 

11 5,634 

8 5,634 

21 11,268 

20 8,451 

10 5,634 

570 $ 287,334 
I 

PUBLIC 
SEWER 
SYSTEM 

y 

y 

y 

y 

y 

-, 

y 

y 

y 

y 

N 

y 

N 

y 

y 

N 

NOTE: Phase numbers/designation do not necessarily indicate the order the phases will 
be developed but are used to match the phases per this exhibit to the phases per the 
Master Plan. I 



* 
~ 

o-l 
0 ► 
;z to z 

Sig~ 
05§ 
;z lo !'I 

i; 
F;Jc 
r;u 

~'" 

EXHIBIT "D" J?age 1 of 4 

.... 

l,, 

~! 
• i:1i 
oO 

g 
\\ 

§ 

-
·\ ' 

'\ 
\ 

lz: ';•"-•• ........... -- j 
~ 
.. I'"••.,. 

~ \ 
lij ~ 

!'I~ \. ~,~ 
11~1 
§!-'ii 

-,.---

i ·---•--··· -l 
' 

'" '"::-· r---.-,r](·, 

\_,~ 

/i 

\l' 

I\ ~~~!!(! 

" ti; '" 

I:> t

,! ~ 
SEil SHEET 2 FOR OESCl<IPTION ,\NO SURVEY REPORT 

DONATION PARCEL AT SHOAL RIVER GOLF AND COUNTRY CLUE! IN SECTIONS 4 & 
1, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 24 WEST, Ol(ALOOS,\ COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

~<~ 
ft~"• r ~ i ; 

kAlll.\ 
,. (Pt,r BO,_·-~,

N5'Wao·;- - \92u'.&, 
.,. ' -·""( V 

)"" ifrii--- ,~ -",r;;(
4
1;1.lf'::'J-"'·~::il:/,

-----t~mf;!El I s~m., 
\ -- [ ...,•• , •~ !'j ..~n., °t\\\ !IiJ 
ll ; !~~/ 
-~ Iii ~,,[it( 

'"\ I m'--IS,I/•,...., \ '\ \ ; 
Lr......) 8 b 

r-- ·-ts, z !?.'\ !!:I•~, 6 

l :,,.o ·\ "' c,)m,t..,';;/ -.. -.:r·· fan ·· ·,
',...,, \ ~ /"":::,,...._) 

'--.........:··..,, "\ \\ 

~ 9,,,,_ 
0 r•..pa
'C '>'o; 

I
C 

..) I .,,.,_ --t- \ 

--·- \,;::::,,,'-iii·1.1r'!-¾1~ ""rt-i;~l'd1+ -
,.~ • ···--·-!-1.~ ''<.t~ ' ,,,,.., [t"Fn 

( ~- ·t .f! I;[ .1'1,_ '4, lg -l J_j~ """" i!il "~ o ·- ==---J g-~ 4d~Flflll~- N~•30''\!:J ., •----== --~ 1--:J; 
: ~: - - - - '"W\i~! 

"I _, 

" i-~ m 

Fi~~,'\:,,~~ ~►~~ l;6re-
*~ 

~- - -
"i-"'I 

I~ 

llEliallf>nrt,1 Sl(ata 

ttl8fl't ,a l!IIOOtEaQl(I 

fl.M UL! !I\D. 
RID 0, 

omil ff/! 

1§§ 

MUM I!, lU~ PAM, II~~ 
JGSIIUA I\ \WliXI, P,m. N11.~sn11 

16 DEO 2018 

GUSTIN, CO'I'HERN & TUCKER, INC. 
, I.AND SURVEYING 

(86D) 678-5141 ,,B, ~3501 
121 HART STREEff www.gtl,t1UNII111E,Gllm NIOeVILLE, FL 82578 

N(JT VAUO MTIIOLJ/
l!I! SIGNAWII£ ANO 
lHE OIUGIN!L RlolSED 
SEAL OF ! Ft.<ll'JOA 
liOENSEO s<JR\t\'llfl 

!hD MAf>PEll 
O~Dl._ll!N 

180500 
IHIJEN 

180500,0Ba 

SHEET 

1 
DF! 



EXHIBIT 11 D" Page 2 of 4 

-

DESCRIPTIUN (AS WRITTEN): 
OONA'.OON eA!iQEL. LINE TABLE
TI-IAT PORllON Of PARCELS 21 3 AND 5 OF 1HE AMERICAN PAC!flO tNlt1tNA110NAL LTD 
PARCEL J2FF10IAI. RECORDS BODI< 20"511 PAaE 4'776)1 IN SEOTJONS 4 ANO B1 10\l/NSHIP 2 LINEU Otsl'ANCE BEARINGNORTii, NOE 23 WEST1 OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYIN(} SOU'f}f OF SHOAL RIVER DRIVE 
AND A PROPOSED Ol;.VEl.OPMENT ADJACENT lHERETO, LVINQ l::ASl' OF' KAITLYN1S PRESERVE " 23,'4:i H6,t.'.U':S7" E 
(PLAT BOOK 26, PAQE 69), AND BEING MORf: PARTICULARLY OESCR!BEO- AS f"OLLOWSi Lt 111.31 N,f5'14'6o" E 
Bf:GtN AT THE SOUlliE:AST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 5~ 11-IENCI!'. N B1'2B'lO~ WAl.ONO THE " 68,J~ N ~9".1!,l.",13' E 
SOUTH l-lNI:: OF sAID St::OlloN .51 A DISTANCE OF .2708,33 FEET TO lHE SOUTHEASf COANER 

LA 51J,70 N21'os'OO" EOF SAID KAlll.YN'S PRESEn\lEJ 1HENCE N 05'51'.:IO~ E ALONO TH£ EAST l.lNE:: ll/ER~OF, A 
l)l !!i7,1i N 25'00'57• EIJISTAN'CE OF 1tl.16,9B f:"Elff TO A POJNT ON A CURVE. CONOA\ie NORlHERLY AND HA\IINO A 

RADIUS OF 073,87 FEET1 THENOE DEPARTING SAID EAST LmE, PROCEED ALONG SAID OURVE, L6 "-" H l!l'.J:J'."58~ E
'iHmllJGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13'66151", AN ARO DISTANOE OF 238,78 FEET, (CHORO 

" l,f,M N ll'lifl12H~ F;BEA~ING = s 70'30'57" E, CHORD "' 238,20 PEET); lliENCll: N 64'23137" E1 A DISTANCE Or 
23,45 FEE"O TH.ENCE:" N 45"14'58" £, A DISTANCE Of' 81,31 fEE.'11 TT-lENCE N 39'24'43n E', A L6 28,!14 N '1B'60'fir W 
OISTANOE OF' 66.39 l=EET; 1HENOE N 27'09'5!t E'. A DlSTAN"CE OF 56,?0 ri::~r; 'JJ-!ENce: N 

" ::SM, N illl'~a•55~ VI25'00'57" E, A DISTANCE OF 57,1.2 FIU:tTI TliENOE N 10'43'38" E1 A D!STANOE Of 32,08 fEE:T] 
◄ 9,17 fl 8'111 11.9~ £THENCE N 08'68'26" E'1 A DISTANCE OF 34.92 tEETJ 11-IEMCf: N '78'60161n W, A DISTANCE OF L10 

2B,IH tEET: iHENCE N ~8'48166" W, A DISTANOI! Of' 3,'.tS4 fEl;:T; THENCE N 06'61'29" E1 A Lil .57.49 H:r.u's2• 1Y 
PlSTANOE OF 49.17 rge:r: THENCE N 0.1'22'62" W, A OJSTANOE OF' 37,49 f'El.i.Ti THl!NC!i N 

L12 97,!IB H J7'UD'D7" I'::37'0a'Oi'n E, A DISTANCE! Of El7,98 FE£T TO A POINT ON 1HE CURV!D SaU1ttERLY 
i'llGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF lHE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER DRt\11:', L'r1NO IN A CUltVE CONCAVE "' Jt;,OS S 49'\6'156' i:; 
NOR11-/£RLY AND HA~NO A RADIUS OF 4BB,07 Fl;El) THiNo,; ALONO SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY AND 

U4 29,{5 S fi10'-'ll>" WCURVE1 TiiROUOl-1 A l'!EH'fRAL ANGLE Of 17'29-10411 AN ARO DlsYANcE or 149,16 FEET, (CHORD 
BEARING ~ N a5'J9'2J" ~, CHORD = 14!l,l30 F£ET~l Tl-lENCE DEPAA:11NG $AIO RIGHI-or-WAY LI• "' $ ~{)'#'31" W 
UNE, PROCliEO S 4!'1'16-'BB' E, A DISTANcti; Of 38,0l;i FEliT; THENOE S 05'10'28" W, A "" 31,IIQ s l,f.'J5'20" £
n1srANCI; OF ~9.45 F£ETi lHENOE S 20'44'.31" W1 A DISTANCE or 4,66 rEETJ lHENCE: S 

Ll7 a2..2.1 s !&'2G'sa· E14-'J5'20" I!, A DISTANCt OF 31,98 FEET: THENCE S 19'I1'li0P E', A PISTANOE Of' 394,JJ F'EE:.T1 
11-lENClE N 70'40'51 11 E, A DISTANCE OF 666,09 FEET; lllENOC S 18'2B'ae~ rt, A D[STANOlt Of "' 02,1!1 N 7'47'26.- E: 
82,27 FEIT; lliENCE'. N e4•;:Wo2" E, A DISTANOE OF' 411,50 FEEn lHENCE N 07'47'28" E't A ,,. 190,'lfl i,l a:5'{8'211• EDISTANCE; OF 82,l8 FE£T1 THENCE S B3'4B'2P" E, A DISTANCE OF 11iS,7B FEET; 1HENCE N 

'-'' 13,B¾ 11 ,ig•,i11'011• ~08'1.J1 
.35H I;, A DJSTANOE OF 337,31 FEETJ lJ-lENCE' N 49'40106~ E, A Il!STANOE OF 13,84 FS:ETJ 

1HENCE N 07'10'34" W, A DISfANOE. OF 37,80 FEEn THENCE: N D5'38150" W, A O!STA~CE OF U!l 37.89 H :r111'34• W 
54,JO F£~T, lllENCE N 67'18'48" £, A DISTANCE OF 78,JO FEET TO A POINT ON 11-/f;'. 

'-'' ""' N li'J6'50" WA~DRESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY Ul'I€; lHl::NCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY UNI:'., lHE: 
FDLI..OWIWO TVIO (2) OALI..S11) S 8J'50'05" E, A tJISfANCE OF ~60,25 FEET TO A POINT ON A '24 7(1,30 f.1 ma•,ia11 1: 
OURVE CONCAVE NORlHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 2331,34 FE!ffi .2) 1'HENC£ ALONG L2' :ia1>.2& s 83'60'05" E
SAIO CURVE, 'il-lR00GH A CENTRAL. ANGLE OF 00'44109•, AN ARC DISTANCE OF ~9,94 Pe!T, ... :lll,'11 g 42.'02'311" W(CHORD BEARING ,... S a4'01 123~ E, CHDRO = 29,94 FEET)J llfENOE DEPARTING SAID 
~IOHT-OF-WAY, PROOEEO S ao•45•49H £, A DISTANCE Of 81;1,!17 FEET; TJ-JE'NOE S 4.2'02'J8" w. u., i\6,t:S S 15'◄ 6'33_ W 
A DJSTANO£ or 38,71 FEET1 'TT-IENOE S 16'-'18'3311 w, A D/STANOI?: or 46.83 FEET; 11-lE'NOE S 

L2D .}'1.llO S 17'37'tlll~ \y17'J7'58" W, A DISTANCE: OF 47.B0 FEEn lHENCE S 58' □ 4':25" W1 A PlS'J'ANC!i: OF 43,28 FEET: 
s sa:0+125" wTHE:NOE 8 01ill'40~ W, A D)StANCE OF 37,09 FEE'.TJ THENOE S 30'27118" W1 A DISTANCE'. 01"' "" 4l,21i 

66,26 FEET; 11-lENOE S 29'j1'13-" W, A DISTANCE OF 45,86 FEETJ lt-!ENOE S 19'4B'OEI" W, A '" 37.09 s: 1-:zll'~o· w
OISTANCE OF 61.51 FEET; 'fHENCE s 21'151j511 W, A Pl.STANCE Of 47,86 FEET1 1HENCE s 

LJI 66.20 5 J0'2'.7'16" W14'27'8DM W1 A OlsrAN"CE OF li0..28 FE.ET! THENCE: s 87'28 149" l::1 A DISTANCE; Of Sl0,18 
FEETJ THENCE N 03'30'28" WI A DISTANOE or 4-29.48 FEtT TO A PO)NT ON TI-11:: Af!ORESAID "'' +s.aa S 28'11'13" W 
SOU11-/ERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LNE, LYINO IN A CURVE coNcAVE NDR11-/ERLY AND HAVJNO A 

"' 51,St II' ftl',lfi'Oit YIRADIUS OF 23"1,~4 mEn 11-/ENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ANO CURVE, THROUGH A 
C£NTRAL ANGLE Of 04'0!:l'l:l~t, AN ARC DISTANCE OF' 18S,BI FEEr, (CHORD BEARINO .,. N . "' ~'l.D5 S 21'15'J5' W 
87'J8'-'IB" E, CHORD"" 1ilff,7S FW) TO 11-!E NORlHWEST CORNER OF lHE BLOCKER PARCEL 

"'" 5'1,28 s l'4-'l7'SII" W
(ol'FICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3272, PAGE J782)J THENOE ALONG lll< WEST AND SOUTH LlNES 

--1:lfl- - ·06;"!1'1··-- S---BO'<i5'>t!l"·~ -·,HmEo,,-m1notL1ll'llmrTW<r(2JCAusnr,;s0 orc4•s,".:;-on11m11cronmr.nrm.1)2)"
S 87'81'11" E, A DISTANCE OF 718,35 FEET THE SOUlllEAST CORNER OF SAID BLOCKER 
PARCEL, LYINO ON 11-/E E:AsT LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE SOU11-/WEST QUARTER OF lllE 
Af'OR~AflJ SECTION 41 THENCE S 07103°03" E ALONG SAID EAST LINE:, A DISTANCE OF 
20o8,7J 10 ITS INTERSECTION 111TH THE SOUlll UNE OF SAlD SECTION ¾ 11-/ENCE N 87'47'35" 
WALONG SAID SOUTff SECTION UNE', A DISTANC!::" Of 1317,33 Pl:'.ET ro lllf; POll~T Of' 
BEGINNING, SAID PAROEL OOHTAININO 18MJ ACRES, MORE DR LESS, 

SURVEY REPORT 
1, NO 51::ARCH OF lHE PUaLJc RECOROS WAS DON~ BY PUBlJO REOOlms OF OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA,

OUS11N OOlllERN M TUCKER, !NO. VISIBLE EVIDt!NO~ oF 
11ASEM1NTs \\ILL Bo SHOWN HEREON, BIJT No OERTIFICATION •• BEARINOS SHOWN HER110N ARE REFERENCED TO 11-/E LINE 
Is GIWN 'JHAT E'ASEMEtns, DEED O~LA!JSJ UNor;;RGROUNO SOUTI-1 LINE OF SECTION 6, TOWNSHIP 2 NOR'JH, RANG£. 24 
IMPROVEM£NTS DR APPARENT US£$ DO NOT £MIST. WltsT, OKALOOSA OOUNTY, FLORIDA, SAID LINE BEAmNG N 

87'.26110" WAS l?:STAat.lSHED BY STATE PLANE 
2, THIS SURI/EY DEPIOTEO HEllcON WAS PR£PARED IN OOORDINATES, FLORIDA NORTH :IONE, NORTH AMERICAN 

AC □ ORDANCII WITH THE STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FOR DA'JUM OF 19831 THE DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN 
PROFEBSIONAL BURV.YORS AND MAPPERS ~S DEFlNEO IN U,S, SURVEY ,EET,
CHAPTER BJ...17,051 OF' 'J'HE: fl.OR!DA ADMI ISTRAllVE CODE 
As SET FORlll BY THE FLORIDA BOARD OF PRoFEssJoNAL 7, 1HE SURVEY MAP AND SUR\IEY REPORT ARE NOT FULL &
SURv\':YDRS ANO MAPPERS PURSUANT TO SECTION 472.027 OOMPL£1t 1\11HOVT THI! 011-/ER,
OF lHE FLORIDA SiAltlTES, 

3, NO ENVIRONMi:'.lllfAl. JURISDJ □110NAL. LINE'.S HAVE 13EEN 
a, NOTICE OF ~IAE!!ll1Y1 1HIS SURVEY IS OER11FIED TO 1HOSE 

INOl\'!DUALS SHOWN ON THE fAOC lHERSOF, ANY DlllER
DETERMINED BY GUSTIN, 0011-/ERN M lUCKER, INC, .USE, BENEFlT OR RELIANCE BY ANY 01111:R PARTY IS 

4. NO APMREttT USES W11R£ DETERMINED, THIS IS NOT A 
STRIOll.y PROHIBITED AND RESlRIO-lEO. SURVEYOR rs 
RESPON51BLK ONLY TO 11-/0SE 0£RTIFlID ANO HEREBY

BOUNDARY SUR\.'£'1'. DISCLAIM$ ANY OTHER LIABILITY AND HER[BY RESTRICTS 
1!1£ RIGHTS OF ANY OlffER INDIVIDUAL OR FIRM TO U$E 

5, THERE MAY 8[ ADDITIONAL RESTRfOTIONs THAT ARE NOT TJ-lls sURVJ::Y, Wl'll·IOUT EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF lHE 
SHOWN ON llllS SURVEY THA'r MAY BE FOUN~-~N _]iE___, ~ ___ ...~YRVf::X.9B• 

GUSTIN, COTHERN & TUCKER, INC. 180600 "'"' 
~ 121 HAAT STREET www.g~Nrrrnp.t<im NICEVILLE, Fl.. 326711 

LAND SURVEYjNG 
INDD((860) 678 • 6141 L.B. #3801 

180500.06a 
or, 
2 



EXHIBIT "D" Page 3 of 4 

DONATION PARCEL 

THAT PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 3 AND 5 OF THE AMERICAN PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL LTD PARCEL 
(OFFICIAL RECORDS 8001( 2961, PAGE 4776), IN SECTIONS 4 AND 5, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 

WEST, Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY; FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF SHOAL RIVER DRIVE AND A PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT ADJACENT THERETO, LYING EAST OF KAITLYN'S PRESERVE(PLATBOOl(25, PAGE69), 
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 01' SAID SECTION 5; THENCE N 87'26'10" W ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
Of SAID SECTION 5, A DISTANCE OF 2708,33 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID KAITLYN'S 
PRESERVE; THENCE N 05'51'30" E ALONG THE EAST UNE THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1926.96 PEET TO A 
POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 973,87 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID EAST LINE, PROCEED ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLI: OF13'55'51", AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 236,78 FEET, (CHORD BEARING= S70'30'57" E, CHORD= 236,20 FEET); THENCE N 
54'13'37" E, ADISTANCE OF 23.45 FEET; THENCE N 45'14'58" E, A DISTANCE OF 51,31 FEET; THENCE N 
39"24'43" E, A DISTANCE OF 68,39 FEET; THENCEN 27'09'58" E, A DISTANCE OF 56.70 FEET; THENCE N 
25"00'57" E, A DISTANCE OF 57,12 FEET; THENCE N 19"43'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 32,08 FEET; THENCE N 
06'58'26" E, A DISTANCE OF 34.92 FEET; THENCE N 75"50'51" W, ADISTANCE OF 28,94 FEET; THENCE N 
48'46'55" W, ADISTANCE OF 33.64 FEET; THENCE N 06'51'29" E, A DISTANCE OF 49,17 FEET; THENCE N 
03"22'52" W, ADISTANCE OF 37,49 FEET; rHENCE N 37"08'07" E, A DISTANCE Of 97,98 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE CURVED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER DRIVE, LYING IN A 
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 488,87 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF· 
WAY AND CURVE, THROUGH ACENTRAL ANGLE OF 17'29'04", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 149,18 FEET, 
(CHORD BEARING a N 85'39'23" E, CHORD" 148,60 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGH1'-0F-WAY 
LINE, PROCEEDS 4i)'16'56" E, ADISTANCE OF 36,06 FEET; THENCE S 05'10'28" W, A DISTANCE DF 29.45 
FEET; THENCE S20"44'31" W, A DISTANCE OF 4,6_5 FEET; THENCE S14'3S120" E, A DISTANCE OF 31.98 

--+----~-=£IT;_tf:lflli:E_S_1fE11'5.0''-E,A.DISIAflJCEJlE--39.4.3.ilEEI;_TJ{ElllCEJlLZ~:5.1"-E,.A.DJS.T.AIIICE.O.E-5.66,0:,..______ 
FEET; THENCE 518'26'56" E, A DISTANCE OF 82,27 FEET; THENCE N 84'34'02" E, A DISTANCE OF 411.50 
FEET; THENCE N 07'47'28" E, A DISTANCE OF 82,18 FEET; THENCE 5 83'46'25" E, A OISlANCE OF 199,76 
FEET; THENCE N 06'13'35" E, A DISTANCE 01' 337,31 FEET; THENCE N 49'40'08" E, A DISTANCE OF 13,84 
FEET; 'fHENCE N 07'10'34" W, A DISTANCE OF37,88 FEET; THENCE N 05"36'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 54.30 
FEET; THENCE N 57'18'48" E, ADIST~NCE OF 76.30 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGlff-OF-WAY LINE, THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS:1) S 
83'50'05" E, A DISTANCE OF 360,25 FEETTO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING 
A RADIUS OF 2331,34 FEET; 2) THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENrRAL ANGLE OF 00'44109", 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 29,94 FEET, (CHORD BEARING= 5 84'01'23" E, CHORD= 2.9,94 FEET); THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF·WAY, PROCEEDS 80"45'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 86.87 FEET; THENCE S 
42'02'38" W, A DISTANCE OF 38,71 FEET; THENCE S 15'46'33" W, A DISTANCE OF 46.93 FEET; THENCES 
17'37'58" W, ADISTANCE OF 47.80 FEET; THENCE 5 58"04'25" W, A DISTANCE OF 43.26 FEET; THENCES 
01'29'40" W, A DISTANCE OF 37,09 FEET;THENCE S30'2.7'15" W, A DISTANCE OFS6,26 FEET; THENCES 
29"11'13" W, A DISTANCE OF 45,86 FEET; THENCE S 19'48'06" W, A DISTANCE OF 51,51 FEET; THENCE S 
21'15'35" W, A DISTANCE OF 47.85 FEET: THENCE$ 14'27'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 50,28 FEET; THENCE$ 
87'29'49" E, A DISTANCE Of 370,18 FEET; THENCE N 03"30'28" W, A DISTANCE OF 429.48 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, LYING IN A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY 



E:X!lll3l~ "D" J?age 4 of 4 

AND HAVING ARADIUS OF 2331.34 FEE_T; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT•OF-WAY LINE AND CURVE, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04'05'59", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 166,81 FEET, (CHORD BEARING a N 
87°38'48" E, CHORD~ 166,78 Fl:ET) TO 'fHE NORTHWl:ST CORNER OF'fHE BLOCl(ER PARCEL (OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 3272, PAGE 3782); THENCE ALONG THE WEST AND SOUTH LINES THEREOF, THE 
FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS! 1) S 07'0415411 E, ADISTANCE OF 598,18 FEET; 2) Sg7°51'11" E, A DISTANCE 
OF 718,35 FEET TO THESOUTHi:AST CORNER OF SAID BLOCl(ER PARCEL, LYING ON THE EASTLINE OF 
THE WEST HALF OF Trio SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE AFORESAID SECTION 4; THENCE S07"03103" E 
ALONG SAID !.:AST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 20$6,73 TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 4; THENCE N 87"47'35" WALONG SAID SOL/TH SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1317.33 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID PARCEL CONTAINING 187.43 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 

V 



-----

FOR PERMITTING ONLY-NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

-------n-
" " 

-~-~- ~-~]~ -=-'~ 
' , 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I

f-------
1 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

' I II I : 

! I (ul 

i w/z 
O I' ' •" ",

I 
!; k•• MAYmlNA & OOMPAN¥ 

••'-·!•' 
O !'I :i If I; . ; PATRIOT ftlOQE 

JENKINS ENGINEERING, INC. 
Ul ◄ -0,,TIIOMOUlll!lfG l'TIWITlrm..,-o.,TJ~PU>~D,\,,o<I rocliVUli,Fill~D/\»m 
lltOllE.,,,.,1-'1" PIIOI"'""'-"'""' ,.,,,.,.,.,,,,,. """'"''"'-

JElOIVILCOM 
c.o.A. No, es21 

~~ 
<·· "•~ . 
,.

4. J'\ ·:-~ 
. 

,dy' 



EXHIBIT 2 

'DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
SEP O 1 2020 

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement'') is entered into this __ day of 
------~ 2020, by and between the Okaloosa County Board of County Commissioners (the 
"County") and Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership ("Developer") for the purpose of 
establish Ing development right of the Developer for certain real property located with the unincorporated 
area of Okaloosa County, Florida, as more particularly described herein; providing assurances to the 
Developer that it may proceed with the Project In accordance with existing laws and policies subject to 
the conditions of this Agreement; and insuring that this Agreement Is In compliance with appllcable 
provisions of Sections 163.3220-163,3243, Florida Statutes, and the Okaloosa County Comprehensive 
Plan. 

ARTICLE I. RECITALS 
WHEREAS, the Intent of the Florida Local Government Development Agreement Act (the "Act") is explicitly 
provided in Section 163.3220(2), Florida Statutes, which states as follows: 
(2) The Legislature finds and declares that: (a) The Jack of certainty In the approval of development can 
result In a waste of economic and land resources, discourage sound capital investment planning and 
financing, escalate the cost of housing and development, and discourage commitment to comprehensive 
planning: (b)Assurance to a developer that upon receipt ofhis development order(s) he may proceed with 
existing laws and policies, subject to the conditions ofa development agreement, strengthens the public 
planning process, encourages sound capital improvement planning andfinancing, assists in assuring there 
are adequate capital facilities for the development, encourages private participation in comprehensive 
planning, and reduces the economic costs ofdevelopment. 
(3) Inconformity with, In furtherance ofand to implement the Local Government Comprehensive Planning 
and Land Development Regulation Act and the Florida State Comprehensive Planning Act of1972, It Is the 
Intent of the Legislature ta encourage a stronger com.mitment to comprehensive and capitol facilities 
planning, ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development, encourage the efficient use 

ofresources, and reduce the economic cast ofdevelopment. 
(4) This intent Is affected by authorizing local governments to enter Into development agreements with 
developers, subject ta the procedures and requirements ofss. 163.3220-163.3243. 
(5) Sections 163.3220-163.3243 shall be regarded as supplemental and addltionaf to the powers conferred 
upon local governments by other laws and shall not be regarded as In derogation of any powers now 
existing. 

WHEREAS, the Okaloosa County Land Development Code has been adopted by Ordinance No. 91-1, as 
amended, and does contain Section 1.11.05 "Development Agreement'' which specifically authorizes the 
County to enter into development agreements with developers; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer wishes to develop a 67G;+Q lot single family residential development project 
which will be comprised solely of residential and accessory uses; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has control of 476.08~+/-acre parcel of property (the "Property") located 
as more particularly described In Exhibit A, which possesses the required characteristics to accommodate 
the proposed general plan for development of the Property, which has been submitted by the Developer 
under the name of Patriot Ridge Master Plan (the "Project'' ); and 

- --- - - - - ·--- -- -··-- ---
Page 1 



..... ····--·-·•------

WHEREAS1 the Property Is currently zoned by the County for residential and mixed use and the Developer 
has submitted a development order application with the County, which seel<s to develop to an exte~t 
which Is less than the maximum development density allowed for the zoning district; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will be developed In up to slxMeen (1.§S) phases over a period of five (5) years and 
therefore the Developer Is desirous of agreeing upon and memorlallzlng Its development rights with 
regard to the Property In contractual terms; and 

WHEREAS, It Is In the best Interests of the County and its citizens that the development of the Property 
be completed in a planned and orderly fashion giving consideration to the subjects addressed by this 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer and the County have agreed upon terms and conditions relating to the 
development of the Property, development rights, and benefits to the County and Its citizens which are 
acceptable to the Developer and,acceptable jo the county, and the Developer and the County have 
deemed It appropriate that the terms and conditions of their agreements be reduced to written form; and / 

WHEREAS, the benefits to the County as a result of entering Into this Agreement are unique to the 
particular circumstances of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Act provides a means for the Developer and the County to document the assurances 
sought by each and commitment to the terms and obligations of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Section 163.3225, Florida Statutes, the County has held two 
public hearings with respect to this Agreement, those being held on :::/.?:::.-.i'.i.: and ,:_:>,:,:,,:_::\;'"-".I:.: 
respectively, with due publlc notice provided for each as required by law, 

NOW THEREFORE, In conslderotlon of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein and other 
good and valuable conslderatlo~, the Developer and the County enter Into this Development Agreement j 

----·· __,,_a.ud.doJLe.r.ehpg,ea..as.f.o.llo.ws:________.~---------------------------•-··--1 
I 

ARTICLE II. DEFINl'ffONS ! 
The following definitions shall apply to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If a word, term or 
.phrase Is not defined In this Article, Its meaning shall be as defined In the Okaloosa County Land 
Development Code. 

2,1 "Comprehensive Plan" means the adopted Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan, Ordinance No, 90-
i, as subsequently amended. 

2.2 "County" tneans Okaloosa County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, 

2,3 "Developer''. means Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida limited llablllty partnership, and Its lawful successors 
in title and Interest, 

Page2 



2.4 "Land Development Code" means the Okaloosa County land Development Code, Ordinance No, 91-1, 
as subsequently amended, 

2,5 "Maintenance" means servicing, support, and upkeep of all Infrastructures servicing the Project. 

2.6 "owners Association" means the non-profit corporatlon(s) established as a mandatory owners 
association for the governance oflhe use ofthe property subject to this Agreement. 

2,7 "Project" means the proposed resldentlal development, Patriot Ridge Master Plan, and all supporting 
uses and amenities authorized by this Agreement, as more parttcularly described herein, 

2,8 "Property" means the real property more particularly described as Exhibit A upon which the Project 
wlll be developed, 

2,9 "Right-of-Way" means the area which may be dedicated ta the County or such other governmental 
entity allowing access far public works, utilities, and public access, or to the community association far 
members' use and access. 

AR11CLE Ill, ESSENTfAL REQUIREMENTS 

The essential requirements of law for this Agreement as prescribed by Section 163,3227, Fl aridaStatutes, 
are addressed as follows: 

3,1 Le~al Description -A legal description of the property ta be developed subject to the terms arid 
coodltlons of this Agreement Is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and Incorporated herein by reference. 

3.2 Duration of Agreement-The duration of this Agreement shall be for five (5) years commencing with 
the effective date of this Agreement. This Agreement may be extended by the mutual consent of the 
parties far an additional five (5) years, 

3,3 Developtnant Uses 

A, The parties do hereby agree that the Developer Intends to deve-Jop a residential development 
consisting of a maximum of fil.§S+O single family units and all associated roadways, starmwater 
treatment, landscaping, and other Improvements as may be required by the Land Development code; 
and could, but are not obligated to, build and develop accessory uses and structures Including storage 
areas, parking lots and/or garages, Bulldlng density shall be no more than four (4) units per acre, and 
bulldlng height shall not exceed 45 feet. 
B, The Project described In section 3.3(a) may be daveloped In up to fil)lllfteen (J.!jS) phases through 
the term of this Agreement, Prior to the development of each phase, the Developer shall submit to 
the County all notices and/or contributions provided for In this Agreement. Development authorized 
by this Agreement shall be in conformance with the terms of this Agreement. The proposed phasing 
Is provided by the attached Exhibit c, 

3.4 Public Facllttles, Infrastructure Capacity, and Capacity Reservation -The Developer, at Its expense, 
will supply adequate public facilities, Infrastructure, and services to serve the Project concurrent with the 
Impact which creates the need for the following services: 

Paga 3 



A. Solid Waste Disposal - Collection service for the Project will be In accordance with the franchise 
agreement between Of<aloosa County and the franchised hauler. The Public Works Division has 
indicated there Is sufficient capacity to handle the solid waste fronn the proposed development. 

B. Stormwater Management-The Developer shall design and construct or cause to be constructed 
at Its expense, a stormwater management system or systems to serve all parcels within the project 
boundary or existing facilities shall be shown to accommodate all or a portion of the required 
stormwater management system. All stormwater management system Improvements located with 
the Project will be: (1) designed and constructed to County and State standards and (2) all 
improvements located outside the boundaries of Individual parcels which are not dedicated to the 
County will be maintained as common elements by the Owners Association. The Ccunty will not be 
responsible for any construction or malntenance costs associated with the stormwater drainage 
system within the Project unless It Is dedicated as a public faclllty and formally accepted after the 
completion of the required bonding and warranty period, The project wide systems are Intended to 
provide the primary treatment capacity for all development with the Project. 

C. Transportation and Roads -

1, The Developer has submitted to the County a comprehensive Traffic Impact Analysis for the 
Project prepared by Southern Traffic Services, including land use and transportation capacity 
analysis data for the purpose of determining the impact the Project will have an all roadway 
segments Included In the County's Transportation Concurrency System, a copy of which Is 
attached hereto as Exhibit Band incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The propqsed trips re.suiting from the development ofthe Project exceeds the capacity available 
along segments of SR 85 and PJ Adams Parkway, The parties agree that the Developer may 
address the capacity constraints In the Impact area by applying the mitigation payment set forth 
In the Traffic Impact Analysis (the "Mitigation Payment") to certain transportation 
Improvements, as set forth below. 

3. In consideration ofthe Mitigation Payment, which provides value and capacity enhancement to 
the County roadway system, the County agrees to reserve a total trip capacity of §a P.M. Peak 
Hour trips In relation to the segment of State Road 85 {from Stilwell Avenue to CR 188-Airport 
Road), 8.5.(l P.M. Peak Hour trips In relation to the segment of State Road 85 {from Antioch Road 
to 1-10) and 2zg PM Peak Hour trips In relation to the segment of PJ Adams Parkway (from 
Antioch Road to Wild Horse Drive). 

4.. The total budgeted construction cost of phase one of the PJ Adams Parkway Widening project 
Is $5,300,000, which will create One ihousand Eighty-One {1,881) trips. Based on the Parkway 
Widening project, the parties agree the Developer's calculated Mitigation Payment amount Is 
$318,321287,331. The parties agree the estimated construction cost for operational 
Improvements, described In section 8 below, exceed the calculated Mitigation Payment and no 
Mitigation Payment shall be made by the Developer to the County. 

5. In addition to the Impact the development will have on the roadway segments included In the 
County's Transportation Concurrency System, the development also will Impact several other 

Page 4 



roadways segments In Its service area that are not Included In such system, which are curre~tly 
operating at or above their capacity, The Traffic Impact Analysis Identifies these roadway 
segments and recommends operational Improvements required to retain, or Improve, the level 
ol service. 

6, • The Developer agrees to provide the operational Improvements and cash payment set forth 
below, ihe estimated cost of the Developer's total out of pocket cost for surveying, soil testing, 

• design, other soft costs and construction for such Improvements Is $1,300,524, 

7, The proposed operational lmprovement(s) shall be made In a public/private partnership with 
the COLlnty participating In the construction of the operational Improvements as hereinafter set 
forth, • 

8, Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement or the Traffic Impact Analysis, the 
Developer and the County hereby agree to make the following Improvements: 

a) The Developer shall pay $30,000.00 to the county on or before January 1, 2021 to be used 
by the County for planned Improvements to Jo~n l<fng Road; and 

b) The Developer shall construct southbound dual left turn lanes an SR85 at the Intersection 
with Live Oak Church Road with the outside lane used for Live Oak Church Road turning 
movements and the Inside lane striped for a left u-turn combination, or as atherwlse 
approved by the FDOT, and shall construct awestbound right turn lane on Live Oak Church 
Road from SR 85 to the current entrance to the CEFCO. Upon approval of this Agreement, 
Developer shall submit the plans for such Improvements to the FDOi and the County within 
ninety (90),days, shall vigorously pursue obtaining approval of such plans and shall complete 
these Improvements within twelve (12) months after obtaining such approval: and 

c) The County shall add aproject to the County capital Improvement Plan to widen the bridge 
on Live Oak Church Road, located 0.8 miles east of SR 85; and ' 

g)__ihe Developer shall widen Live Oak Church Road to four {4) lanes from SR85 to Shoal River 
D.rllla.tcans ltl.oni1.1g_t0-tw.0_(2)..!anes-a:U:hat.lntetsectlon-Wlth-a-r.lght-twr.11-on-to-Slloal-Rlv.or-e--- --- -- -··· 
Drive. In addition, the Developer shall also construct westbound dual left turn lanes from 
Ll~e-Oak Ch~rch· Road onto SR85, or as otherwise approved by the fDOT. Upon receipt of 
the plans from the County for the bridge widening on Live Oak Church Road, the Developer 
shall submit the plans for such Improvements to the FDOi and the County within ninety 
(90) days, shall vigorously pursue obtaining approval ofsuch plans and shall complete these 
Improvements within twelve (12) months after obtaining such approval or within twelve 
(12) months after the County completes the bridge widening, whichever comes later. 

rl)e)The Developer shall construct a southbound left turn lane on Live Oak Church Road at 
Airmen's Memorial Road with a minimum g_yg_4uength of 100' prior to any roadway 
connection being made fromJ'.h.w_e 16 to any other phas~ In !he proposed development. 

9, • The Developer shall constructor cause to be constructed a roadway system thatwlll be privately 
maintained within the Project, which will be available to serve all primary and accessory uses. 
As such, the roadway system shall be owned and maintained as a private common element of 
the Project by the owners Associations. The County will not be responsible for any construction 
or maintenance costs. associated with the Internal roadways of the Project, The roadways will 

Page 5 

https://30,000.00


be designed and constructed to county standards, As all roads will be low speed and low 
volume, all roads with the development shall be considered local roadways as defined In Section 
6,03,03 c of the Okaloosa County Land Development Code. 

10, TheA roadway connection to11g Airman's Memorial Road In Phase l,6;m~-Sk-yHAe Clrele shall not 
be gated nor shall the roadway be restricted to public use In any way. The Developer shall 
provide an easement over the roadway connection to11g Airman's Memorial Road~,vlme 
~ for public access and shall construct this roadway with a stabll12ed base for construction 
traffic· before any building permit is Issued for any phase beyond phases 2, 3, and 4. The 
Developer shall not be responsible for monitoring construction traffic on any roadway. The 
roadway shall be paved and upgraded to County standards when the property adjacent to the 
roadway Is platted. 

Phase 1 shall also have access to Airman's Memorial Road but shall only have emergency access 
to Skyllne Drive over the existing platted right-of-way owned by the County. The Developer shall 
stabilize the emergency access to permit vehicular access by emergency vehicles and for use as 
an emergency lngress/egrnss for owners in Phase 1 In the event that the access to Airmen's 
Memorial Road ls blocked but such access shall otherwise not be available for public or private 

~ 

D. Parks and Recreational Faclllties-The Developer shall satisfy concurrency requirements for parks 
and recreation as provided In Section 6.07 of the Land Development Code as follows; 

1) The Land Requirements described In Section 6,07,03 result In fl\l'e (5) acres of land required 
to be dedicated since the total acreage of the proposed development is less than five hundred 
(500). The acreage requirement will be met through the dedication of a +/- 1.39 acre site in 
Phase 3 of the development for construction of a Private Neighborhood Park which shall be 
owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association and, through the dedication of a 
minimum.. of.+/-...187,43.aarr;s. far-a...p~blle Nelghborh00d-rar.!(; •••·•shown on-tlae •att-aehed 
Exhibit Dand as described by the legal description attached as Exhiblt D, to provide access to 
the Shoal River, The Public Neighborhood Park shall have a minimum 40' wide access, in an 
upland area, connecting the park to Shoal River Drive on the east side of the park and shall 
have a minimum 10' wide access, In an upland area, connecting the park to Shoal River Drive 
on the west side of the park as shown In Exhibit D. To aid with privacy and security to adjacent 
residential lots directly east of the access points, the County shall construct and maintain a 6 
foot tall privacy fence, from wood or tan vinyl, along the east side of the 40' wide and 10' 
wide access points at such time as any Improvements are constructed over such access. The 
privacy fence shall not block sight distance at the Intersection of Live Oak Church Road and 
Shoal River Drive, The Public Neighborhood Park shall be owned and operated by the County. 
The Developer may modify the legal description of the property to be conveyed for the Public 
Neighborhood Park prior to Its conveyance provided that lts configuration and general 
location Is substantially the same as shown at Exhibit D. The Private Neighborhood Park shall 
be dedicated to the Homeowners Assodation prior to or in connection with the plat for Phase 
Five as shown by Exhibit C, The Public Neighborhood Park shall be dedicated to the County, 
by warranty deed Including any underlying mineral rights that developer owns, prior to the 

Page 6 



recording of any plat for the proposed development. Based on the amount that Developer 
paid for the land Included within the Project, the acreage being dedicated to the County for 
the Public Neighborhood Park would be approximately $2.05 million, 

2) The Developer plans to Improve the Private Neighborhood Park with open fields, a 
playground, bathroom facilities and other active uses Including, at Developer's option, the 
construction of a swimming poo,I and related facllltles, The Improvements to the Private 
Neighborhood Park shall meet the requirements of Section 6.07.06 of the Land Development 
Code for the construction of facilities, The improvements to the Private Neighborhood Park 
shall be required to be completed prior to the plat being recorded for that phase of 
development as provided for by Exhibit C, 

E. Potable Water -Potable water will be provided by Okaloosa county Water & Sewer ("OCWS"), 
which has verified It has overall system capacity to serve the proposed development. 

F. Sanitary Sewer· 

1. The Developer will connect Phases 1-9, 11,-al¾I 13·14 and 16 to the publlc sewer system, 
provided by OCWS, ocws currently has wastewater treatment and disposal capacity 
available forthese phases at the Jerry D. Mitchem Water Reclamation Facllity at the Bob Sikes 
Industrial Parl<, Capacity Is reserved via payments of Capacity Expansion Charges, at rates 
established by the current Water & sewer Ordinance at the time of payment. 

2, During future engineering design, for reasons pertaining to pump station or line capacity, 
OCWS reserves the right to allow phases or parcels to have on-site treatment systems (as 
approved by the Florida Department of Health), provided the lot size meets the minimum 
requirements and a gravity sewer main or low pressure sewer main is not available In a public 
right-of-way or easement adjacent to the phase or parcel, 

3. For any lots with a proposed low pressure sewer system and/or Individual grinder stations, 
the Developer will setup a central management entity (such as a Homeowners Association), 
OCWS will not own, operate, or maintain private grinder stations or plumbing. 

-- -- -4. -Tue--propGsed dsvelGpment,-- other -pmpGsed-developments not part-of thls.-Dev,alopment 
Agreement, and existing sewer demand requires off-site Improvements to the Brown Place 
Lift Station and construction of a new master 11ft station to be called the Shoal River Landing 
Lift Station, with associated force main improvements. Developer hereby agrees to 
contribute $57,895 to the cost of the upgrade to the Brown Place Lift Station within ten (10) 
days of receipt of notification of Developer from OCWS that appropriate Purchase Orders 
have been issued. Developer hereby agrees to contribute $187,142 to the cost of the Shoal 
River landing Lift Station with associated force main Improvements within ten (10) days of 
receipt of notification based on the following schedule; 

a. Twenty percent (20%), or $37,428.40, upon approval of cost sharing agreements and 
allocatfon of the County funds for the construction by the Board of County 
Commissioners; 

b, Forty percent (40%), or $74,856.80, upon receipt of all permits for the construction and 
commencement of procurement of materials and equipment; and 

c. Forty percent (40%), or $74,856,80, upon the start of construction of the 11ft station ~nd 
associated force main Improvements. 

Page 7 

https://74,856.80
https://37,428.40


5. As public central sewer service Is not currently available to serve Phases 10, 12, and 15, 
sewage treatment will be provlded through the installation of □n"slte treatment systems as 
approved by the Florida Department of Health. 

3.5 concurrency-Through section 3.4.C, above, the concurrency requirements for traffic and roads have 
been satisfied by the Developer. The terms of this agreement shall not be construed to Imply approval 
for water, wastewater, stormwater, parks, or solid waste concurrency nor shall it relieve the 
developer from complying wlth all applicable rules and/or regulations pertaining to this development. 
This agreement is applicable to only the specific items expressed herein and the Developer shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Okaloosa County Land Development Code in their effort to 
obtain development approval. 

3,6 Consistency-The development authorized by this Agreement ls consistent with the goals, objectives, 
and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and applicable development regulations In effect at the time 
of the execution of this Agreement. 

3.7 Required Permits -The Developer shall obtain, or cause to be obtained, all requisite County permits 
and authorizations to allow construction of the development contemplated herein Including, but not 
limited to, an Okaloosa county Development order, Okaloosa county Stormwater Permit, and an 
Okaloosa County Underground Utility Permit. Failure of this Agreement to address a particular 
permit, condition, term or restrlctlo·n, Including permits or authorizations Issued by agencies other 
than Okaloosa County, shall not relieve the Developer from the necessity of complying with the laws 
governing such permlt requirement, condition, term or restriction. 

3.8 Additional Conditions - The Developer, Its successors and assigns, agree to provide all necessary 
facilities and services required for development of the Property In accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. The parties hereto do agree that the Developer may act In reliance upon this Agreement. 
Nothing herein, however, Is intended to preclude the County from exercising Its proper regulatory 
powers to.ptatect . .the health, welfa,e, and-safety.of-the publ1c. 

ARTlCLE IV. AGREEMENT AND COVENANT 

4.1 By execution hereof, the County acknowledges and agrees that this particular Agreement will 
encourage proper use of the Property, promote economic use of land resources of the County, provide 
for public facilities and use, and encourage private participation in the comprehensive planning process. 
The County acknowledges and agrees that It Is exercising its sound discretion In this instance by entering 
Into this Agreement to achieve mutual benefits that are particular and unique to the circumstances 
underlying this Agreement. 

4.2 This Agreement is assignable by the Developer and shall be binding upon, and Inure to the benefit of, 
all heirs, successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 

4.3 To the extent that the Developer fails ta perform any of the actions or requirements contained In this 
Agreement, the County shall provide written notice to the Developer of his failure to comply with the 
terms of this Agreement. Within thirty (30) days of the receipt of such notlce, and In the event that the 

Page 8 



Developer falls to cure such failure Within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, the County shall 
suspend and hold In abeyance all applications for or Issuance of any development orders or building 
permits for the Project untll the failure Is cured and no further phases of the Project sh.II be reviewed, 
perrnltted, or otherwise approved. At such tlrne as the Developer cures the performance failure then the 
review and processing ofappllcatlons for a development order may resurne. 

4.4 Any notices required to be given or elected to be given by either of the parties pursuant to the terms 
of this agreement shall be deemed effective provided when placed In the United States Mall, certified 
return receipt requested, or placed In the hands of an overnight delivery service, 

As to the Developer: 

Gregory E, Matovlna 
Patriot Ridge, LLP . 
12443 San Jose Boulevard, Suite 504 
Jacl,sonvllle, FL 32223 

As to the County: 

Elliot l(ampert 
Growth Management Director 
o!,aloosa County, Florida 
1250 N Eglin Parkway 
Shalimar, FL 32579 

And acopy to: 

county Attorney: 

GregoryT. Stewart 
c~unty Attorney 
1500 Mahan Drive, Suite 200 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

(This space Intentionally left blank) 

Page 9 



--- ·--- ··--·---...- ...·--·· --------------·----------------- ·------ •·-T· -i 

Page 10 

i 



SEP O I 2020IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals this __ ilay of _____, 

..,..;nie fore.fl~struf/'=:cknowledged before me this _l_ day of Seefe!pbe,.,- by
1

f<M , ~ ?/'Ohalrman of the OKALOOSA COIJITTY BOA!ID OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS~n behalf of the Board, who I, personally known to me. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

Slaned, sealed and delivered In the presence of; 

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF OKALOOSA Notary Public, State of Florida, My Commission Expires: 

DEVELOPER 

Patriot Rldp, LLP, aFlorida limited liability partnership 

By: Gregory E. Matovlna, Managing Partner of Patriot Ridge,~•, t(flJ~ 
LLP 

Page 11 



-.iw-»flr :IITt 

.'~.:::r.~w: 

KOiJ 
' 

9 ;i:o f afiBd ,,Ii., ,LI8IHX~ 



EXHIBIT "A" l?age 2 of 6 

PARCEL 1 

A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANG€ 23 WEST, AND IN SECTION 33
1 

TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, TALLAHASSEE, MERIDIAN, Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, fLORIDA, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING FROM THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 4, 
TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, AND RUN NORTH 08 DEGREES l0'46" WEST 2919,27 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" WEST 280.94 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88 
DEGREES 56'32" EAST TO THE CENTER LINE OF AGULF POWER COMPANY POWER LINE RIGHT OF WAY 
607,99 FEET; THENCE NORTH 03 DEGREES 47'49" WEST 3400.26 FEET ALONG SAID POWER LINE RIGHT 
OF WAY TO A FENCE ON THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF GULF POWER COMPANY SUB-STATION PROPERTY; 
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREEH5'57" EAST769,27 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID GULF 
POWER COMPANY PROPERTY; THENCE NORTH D1 DEGREES 39'03" EAST ALONG EXISTING FENCE 384.72 
FEET TO THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF GULF POWER COMPANY POWER LINE RIGHT OF WAY; THENCE 
NORTH 87 DEGREES 55'17" -EAST ALONG THE SOUTH BOUNDARY OF GULF POWER COMPANY POWER 
LINE RIGHT OF WAY 3586.04 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECT/01'133; THENCE SOUTH 01 
DEGREES 32'39" WEST ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 33, 2614.99 FEET TO THE 
SOUtHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 02'13" WEST ALONG THE 
SOUTH BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 331 1319,43 FEET; THENCE CONTINUE ALONG THE SOUTH 
BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 33, NORTH 89 DEGREES 03 121" WESf 1317 ,92 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 08 
DEGREES 14'36" EAST 983,22 FEBT; THENCE SOUTH 07 DEGREES 57'45" EAST 985,60 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 88 DEGREES 56'32" WEST 2637,36 FEETTO THE WEST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE 
NORTH 08 DEGREES :l0'46" WEST 279,27'FEETTO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

LESS AND EXCEPT: 

COMMENCE AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23WEST, 
Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA; THENCE GO SOUTH 08'09'08" EAST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID ' 

i ____ ... __-5.E.CIIDlJA,ADIS.T.ANCE.OF...1406,lU.EEELto_Il'JEJ<OINJ'.Of-BEGJNNING;.T.JaENCE.CONJINUE.SOU.nl1---- ------------- - -I 
08'09'08" EAST ADISTANCE OF 220.43 FEET; THENCE GO NORTH 74"32'36" EAST A DISTANCE OF 255.72 i 
FEET TO THE POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE GO SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVETO THE RIGHT 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 130,00 FEET FOR AN ARC DISTANCE OF 133,44 FEET (CH, 127 ,66'; CH, BRG. • 
SOUTH 77'53133" EAST) TO APOINT ON THE SAID CURVE; THENCE GO NORTH 86'56'52" EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 77,74 FEET; THENCE GO SOUTH 04'33130" EAST A DISTANCE OF 218,29 FEET; THENCE TO 
NORTH 85'58'10" EAST ADISTANCE OF 275,00 FEETTO THE WESTERLY RJGHT OF WAY OF A COUNTY 
ROAD; THENCE GO NORTH 04"47'30" WEST ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY FOR 430,13 FEET; 
THENCE GO SOUTH 88'58'1D" WEST A DISTANCE OF 133,24 FEET; THENCE GO SOUTH 03'41'21" EAST A 
DISTANCE OF 30,00 FEET; THENCE GO SOUTH 88'58'10" WEST A DISTANCE OF 605,37 FEET TO THE 
POINT OF BEGINNING, 

LESS AND EXCEPT: 

CHANAN ESTATES, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT AS RECORDED IN PLAT B001< 21, PAGES 77-79, OF THE 
PUBLIC RECORDS Of OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 



EX!!IBlT "A" !?age 3 of 6 

SHOAL LANDING EAS,, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN PLAT 8001( 11, PAGE 18, OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

rlMBERLINE ESTATES AT SHOAL RIVER GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT B00I( 10, PAGES 32 AND 33 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

LAl<ESIPE EAST AT SHOAL RIVER COUNTRY CLUB AND RESORT ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT B00I( 8 PAGE 94 AND AMENDED IN PLAT 8001( 10, PAGE 25 OF THE RECORDS OF 
OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

RIVERSIDE NORTH AT SHOAL RIVER COUNTRY CLUB AND RESORT, ACCORDING TO THE PLATTHEREDFAS 
RECORDED IN PLAT B00I( 8, PAGE 93 AND AMENDED IN PLAT 8001< 10, PAGE 26 OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, , 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

PINNACLE POINT AT SHOAL RIVER GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,AS RECORDED IN PLAT 8001( 10, PAGE96 OF 
THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT: 

A PARCEL OF-LAND SITUATED IN SECrlON 33, TOWNSHIP 3 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, Ol<ALOOSA 
COUNTY FLORIDA, AND BEING APORTION OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS B00I< 2961, 
PAGE 4776, ALSO BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT AFOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE 
MONUMENT), STAMPED L.B. #5024, MARl<ING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF CHANAN ESTATES· FIRST 
ADDITION AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOO!( 24, PAGE 58 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE PROCEED SOUTH 12 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 10 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE WESTERLY 
BOUNDARY OF' CHANAN ESTATES- FIRST ADDITION, FOR ADISTANCE OF 174.00 FEET TO A FOUND 4 
INCH X4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT), STAMPED L,B, #5024; 
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID WESTERLY BOUNDARY PMCEED SOUTH 25 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 28 
SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 188,94 FEET TO A FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT 
(PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT), STAMPED LB, #5024; THENCE DEPARTING SAID WE~TERLY 
BOUNDARY OF CHANAN ESTATES· FIRST ADDITION PROCEED SOUTH 80 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 55 
SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE OF 106,25 FEET TO A 1/2 INCH CAPPED IRON ROD LB #7191 ON THE 
EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SHOAL LANDING EAST, AS RECORDED IN PLAT 0001<11, PAGE 18 OF THE 
OKALOOSA COUNTY PUBLIC RECORDS; THENCE PROCEED NORTH 09 DEGREES BO MINUTES 37 SECONDS 
EAST ALONG SAID EASTERLY BOUNDARY OF SHOAL LANDING EAST FDR A DISTANCE OF 94,00 FEIT TO A 
FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT) WITH NO 
IDENTIFICATION NUMBER; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID EASTERN BOUNDARY PROCEED NORTH 
14 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 22 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 43.47 FEET TO A FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH 



EXl!:CB:C'l' "11" Page 4 of 6 

CONCRETe MONUMEN1 /PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT) STAMPED LB, #4150, ON THE 
NORTHERN BOUNDAIIY OF SAID SHOAL LANDING EAST; rHENCE PROCEED SOUTH 77 DEGREoS 15 
MINUTES 58 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID NORTHERN BOUNDARY, FOR ADISTANCE OF 70.62 FEET TO A 
FOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE MONUMENT (PERMANENTREFERENCE MONUMENT) STAMPED La. 
#41SO;THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID NORTHERN BOUNDARY PROCEED NORTH 70 DoGRor.S45 
MINUTES 35 SECONDS WEST, !'OR ADISTANCE OF 115,12 FEETTO AFOUND 4 INCH X 4 INCH CONCRETE 
MONUMENT (PERMANENT REFERENCE MONUMENT), STAMPED LB, #4150; THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
NORTHERN BOUNDARY OF SHOAL LANDING EAST PROCEED NORTH 23 DEGREES 2B MINUTES 00 
SECONDS EAST, ADISTANCE OF 213,94 FEET TO ANAIL AND DISC STAMP.O LB, #7191 ON THE 
SOUTHERN RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF AIRMAN'S MEMORIAL ROAD (SO FOOT PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY); 
THENCE PROCEED NORTH 88 01!(3REES 59 MINUTES 55 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID SOUTHERN RIGHT
OF-WAY LINEFOR ADISTANCE OF 310,90 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT ANY PORTION OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PROPERTY LYING AND BEING IN ANY 
ROAD RIGHTS OF WAYS, 

PARCEL 2: 

ATRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN SECTION 5, TOWNSHIP 2. NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, TALLAHASSEE 
MERIDIAN, Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING 
AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTIONS, RUN NORTH BB DEGREES 31 '37" WEST Z708,41 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 04 DEGREES 45'55" EAST 2871,69 FEET; THENCE SOUTH BB DEGREliS 50'00" EAST 
2054,04 FEET TO THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE SOUTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" Ell.ST 
ALONG THE EAST BOUNDARY OF SAID SECTION 5; 29f9,27 FEETTOTHE POINT OF BEGINNING 

AND LESS AND EXCEPT 

RIVERSIDE NORTH AT SHOAL RIVER COUNrRY CLUB AND RESORT, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF AS 
----- -···---8!:i::QRQEQJN..eL/IT_BQ_Ql.(8,J'AGE._9,:i IIND.AME~.O.EQJ.NJ!LAUiQOIC10,.PAl3.E.2.6..DE.Il:lE..eu.BL,1..---- -- -- --- _.,_ . 

RECORDS Of Ol<ALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND LESS AND EXCEPT ANY PORTION OF THE ABOVE 
·- • --· • DESCRIBED PRCJPERTY LYING AND BEING·IN ANY ROAD RIGHTS OF WAYS. 

PARCEL 3: 

A PARCE:L OF LAND BEING A PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 
2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST OF TI-JE TALLAHASSEE MERIDIAN, IN OKALOOSA COUMTY, FLORIDA, MORE 
PAlfflCULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 4 
AND RUN SOUTH 8S DEGREES 31'37" EAST ALONG THE SOUTH MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4 FOR 600,00 
FEET; rHENCE NORTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" WEST 2644.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 56'32" 
WEST599,2B FEET TO THE WEST MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE SOUTH OB DEGREES 10'46" EAST 
ALONG SAID WEST MARGIN 2640,00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, 

., 

https://IIND.AME~.O.EQJ.NJ!LAUiQOIC10,.PAl3.E.2.6..DE


EXHIBIT "A" Page 5 of 6 

THE WEST 1/2 OFTHESOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, 
OKALOOSA 

COUNTY, FLORIDA, LESS AND EXCEPT: 

A PARCEL OF LAND BEING A PART OFTHE WEST 1/2 OFTHE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 
2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST OF THE TALLAHASSEE MERIDIAN, IN Ol(AI.OOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FpLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 4 AND RUN NORTH 88 DEGREES 31137 11 

WEST ALONG THE SOUTH MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4 FOR 600.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 08 DEGREES 
10'46" WEST 2644.41 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88 DEGREES 56'32 11 WEST 599.28 FEET TO THE WEST 
MARGIN OF SAID SECTION 4; TH ENCE SOUTH 08 DEGREES 10'46" EAST ALONG SAID WEST MARGIN 
2640,00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

,, 

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT: 

A PARCEL OF LAND LYING IN SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, OKALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

COMMENCE Al A 4"X4" CONCRETE MONUMENT (NO IDENTIFICATION), MARKING THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF LOT 42, 8LOCI< C, LAKESIDE EAST (IT SHOAL RIVER GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB (AMENDED 
PLAT), AS RECORDED IN PLAT BODI( 10, PAGEZS, OF THE PVBLIC RECORDS OF Ol(ALOOSA"COUNTY, 
FLORIDA; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 140.38 FEET TO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 07 DEGREES OD MINUTES 09 SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE Of 
586,18 FEET; THENCE NORTH 87 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 11SECONDS WEST, ADISTANCE OF 718.31 FEET; , 
THENCE NORTH 07 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 600,58 FEET TO A POINT ' 
ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SHOAL RIVER DRIVE (66 FOOT PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY); SAID 
POINT BEING APOINT ON A CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 2345, 77 
FEET; THENCE, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE AND THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF O DEGREES 06 MINUTES 56 SECONDS, A DISTANCE OF 4.73 FEET (CHORD BEARING 
AND DISTANCE= NORTH 85 DEGREES 36 MINUTES 095ECONDS EAST-4.73 FEET), TO A POINTON A 
CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE NORTHWEST AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 1216.16 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE 
ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 7 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 17 SECONDS A DISTANCE 
OF 158,23 FEET (CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE= NORTH 81 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST -
158,12 FEET), TO A POINTON A CURVE, CONCAVE TO THE SOUTHEAST AND HAVING A RADIUS Of 
1150,16 FEET; THENCE ALONG THE ARC OF SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANG LE OF 7 DEGREES 27 
MINUTES 17 SECONDS A DISTANCE OF 149,65 FEET (CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCI:= NORTH 81 
DEGREES 49 MINUTES 02 SECONDS EAST - 149,54 FEET); THENCE NORTH 85 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 41 
SECONDS EAST, A DISTANCE OF 91,13 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE 
PROCEED SOUTH 02 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, A DISTANCE OF 80,22 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 87 DEGREES 51 MINUTES 11 SECONDS EAST, ADISTANCE OF 323,83 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, • 

https://EAST-4.73


----·· •····-· ... 

EXHIBIT "A" Page 6 of 6 

NOTE: ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT ALL PONDS, LAl(ES, DAMS AND RETENTION AREAS (HEREA~TER "LAl<ES") 
CURRENTLY LOCATED WITHIN PARCELS l,2,3,4 ANDS, WHICH SHALL R.EMA!N OWNED BY GRANTOR, 
AMERICAN PACIFIC IN'fERNATIONAl, LTD,, EXCEPT THE; (I) 

"COMMON AREA/RETENTION AREA" LOCATED WITHIN CHANAN ESTATF.S FIRST ADDITION AS 
RECORDED IN PLAT 8001( 24, PAGE 56; AND (II) THE RETENTION AREA WllHIN FAIRWAY f/4 AS DIPICTED 
ON THE GEORGE, NIELSEN & TOOl(E, P,A, SURVEY DATED AUGUST7, 1991, 

SHEET 2OF 5; IS BEING CONVEYED TO CHANAN ADARA INVESTMENTS, LLC1 A FLORIDA UMITEP 
LIABILITY COMPANY, SUBJECT TO THI: RIGHTS OF CHANAN ESTATES PROPeRiYOWNERS ASSOCIATION, 
INC,, BY VIRTUE OF THE DEDICATION AS SHOWN IN PLAT BODI( 24, PAGE 56, LYING WITHIN PARCEL 1, 



~ / FirstAmerican ISSUED BY 

!Exhibit A 
First American Title Insurance Company 

Pile No: 2080-4575701 

Issuing Office Fl!e Number: 201M722 

The land refetred to herein below Is •lb.iated In the Cqunty of Okaloosa, state of Florida, and described as follows: 

Aparcel or tract of land sltual'ed In Section 34, Township 3 North, Range 23 West, and In S~ctlon 3 and Section 4, 
Township 2North, Range 23 West, Okaloosa County, Florldil more particularty described as follows: 

Begin at the Southwest comer of said Section 34; thence proceed North 01 degrees 32 minutes 39 seconds East, along 
the West line of said Sect/on 341 a distance of 2614.99 feet to a point on the Southerly llne of an 150.00 foot wide Gulf 
Power Company Easement; thence departing the West line of said Sectlon 34, proceed North 87 degrees 55 minutes 17 
seconds East, along the southerly line of said Gulf Power Company Easement, adlstanGe of 334,75 feet; 1:11ence depa1tlng 
the southerly II1ie of said Guff Power Company easement, proceed South 01 degreoo 32 minutes 39 seconds West, a 
distance of 1312,75 feet; thence proceed South 89 degrees 02 minutes 13 seconds East, a distance of 325,93 feet; 
thence proceed South 01 degrees 32 minutes 39 seconds West, a dlslanoo of 660,00 feet; thenGe proceed south 89 
degrees 02 mlnutoo 13 seconds East, adistance of 660,03 feet; thence protead south 01 degrees 32 minutes 39 secdnds 
West, a distance of 660.00 feet to a point on the North line of said Section 3; thenoe proceed North 89 deg!1les 02 
minutes 13 seconds West, along North line ofsaid Section s, il distance of 661,09 feet; thence departing the North line of 
said Section 3, proceed South OB degrees 14 minutes 36 seconds East, adistance of 334,83 feet; thence proceed North 
89 degrees 02 minutes 13 seconds West, a dJsoonoe of 65$.97 feet to a point on the,East line of said Section 4; thence 
proceed North 89 degrees 03 minutes 33 seconds West, adistance of 659.03 feet; thence proceed South oa degrees 12 
minutes 41 seconds East, adistance ol 334,70 feet; thence proceed North 89 degrees 03 minutes 33 seconds West, a 
distance of 659,2i feet; thence proceed North 08 degrees 10 minutes 47 seconds West, adistance of 669.44 feet to a 
point on the North line of said Section 4; thence proceed South 89 degrees 03 minutes 33 seconds East, along the North 
line of said Section 41 a dlsrnnce of 1317,68 feet to lhe point of beginning of the parcel herein described, 

Less and except that portion of the above descttbed property contained In Warranty Deed recorded In Official Records 
Book 2320, Page 465, and less and except that portion of the above described property contained In Warranty Deed 
recorded In Official Record~ Book 2452, Page 3533, 

----- ---·--. ·-- --------------- ---·---------- ·--·-·---· -------- ·--··---·-·----..-·- .. -·-. ; 

11i1, P•D• /$ only• p•ttof• 2016AL TA@ Commltm"11 for 7TU• Jnsumna,. 71/IS eommltmenl fS not vsHrl wlliloUl· /11• Noll"'1/ 111• r:ommltmont r,, ,,.,,. 
Pollo/,' 111• Olmmltment cond/Uon~· Schedule 11,• Sdiedule B, Pi1Jt r-R.,,ulreinont,,; imdIAAedule e, P,ttJJ-e.«:,,pllons. 
(lapvrlght 2006..;l.0113 Aniel1,0011. L1u-1d 'TlUe Assoclal::fon. All rlijhts retit:irv~d, 
Toe ~e of this ttorm (or any deriva~ve thereof) Is resttlctetl to ALTA Ucehsees and ALTA members In good sland[ng as of the date of IJS(l, All other u.~es 
are prohibited, Reprlnted under license fiom th• Arn!rlcan land 1111• AssocloUon. 
[Fotm so,ooii (S'1tH7) IF•s• 10 oflD •• f-- -- AlTA Commitment lorTflf,-tmurarica (ll'l-16) with Fio~da Modlflcatlon 

f/Md, 



PATRIOT RIDGE -
PROPOSED PHASING SCHEDULE 
EXHIBITC . 

PUBLIC 
MAX# TRAFFIC SEWER 

PHASE# GENERAL LOCATION OF LOTS PAYMENT SYSTEM 

1 West of Lakes A and 8 ' 65 $ 30,987 y 

' I 
2 Between Lake Cand Shoal River Drive 28 14,085 y 

--•..+ ... 

3 East of Shoal River Drive JMixed Use Unit One) 57 25,353 y 
-· 

I ! 
.. 

. . ...... __.,__ ----·--· -- --
4 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed_.Llse UnltTwo) 73 30,987 y 

5 East ofShoal River Drive (Mixed Use UnltThree) 83 36,621 y 

INCLUDES PRIVATE NEIGHBORHOOD PARI( ........ 

····· ....., 

6 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Four) 51 ......., .. 25,353 y 

j . 
7 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Five) 53 22,536 y..... 

8 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Six) 49 22,536 y .. 
.. 

9 Chanteuse Parkway extension 18 8,451 y 

10 Between Lake Cand Skyline Circle 24 11,268 / N 

!------·· 
11 Off Alrm;,ns M.gmo.riaIBowl 11 < 63.4 V 

.. 
12 Adjacent to Lake E 8 2,817 N 

13 Between Chanan Estates and First Addition 21 11,268 y 
. r· 

14 South of Shoa I River Drive 20 8,451 y 

INCLUDES PUBLIC NEIGHBORHOOD PARK 

·-- . 
15 off Timberline Drive 10 5,634 N 

~··-· -· -'"··· 
16 East and south of Phases 2·9 105 s~,34CJ. --·---

TOTAl 676 $ 318,321 
-·-····-· ..... 

NOTE: Phase numbers/designation do not necessarily indicate the order the phases will 
be developed but are used to match the phases per this exhibit to the phases per the 
Master Plan, r· ..... -



EXHIBIT 11 D" Page 1 of 4 

'"l •• \ ~ 
Oi " ~ il 

\ 
kAllLl 

. [PW 
- .. BO 

\, N ~~1•,o·y. - '-(_ 
,... • \921i'.(,'§ 

\ -· ' 

·, .. \ < .... ,\ - ~ (,J \i l i)'-----.. _l~ 
. tl~!!i)~ ,.11 , 

\ f .---···~ ;i mi;{ I!( \ , ............ ~ ·s~ 
'f'' ,( ~. 

,, )c<\ i 
!·~ ......... , .. , J .. ,\ \ ~ 

" ~ ·-· ) \ § 
" ..... ,-.. _.J O j z I -.., ("_. .. jj. ZO 0 .... ..,, pi., 

-I ~ •• ') ~;,, . 8 ► ; \ it~'\ ~ 
s; co ,, !I '\ ~ .. 1 .. ,:;; ,·-\v, ;::1g~ ~ ~ , r .. -• iY ,,_ ·,, 
0 z ~ § ~ ,,,, \ ... 'pl ✓"->, .. _.) 
:z \;' ~ ~~m ',..... ~ .. ,.. ' \ 

~ ~ !:=1-:n .... ,) '\ ·,.... · ·-
n c ~M~ !::) , .. ,.-•- \ 
pl 2; .m,,. t:o ( ~•· ~ _____,... O oTll&'I'' W - " 

* "' Me:e--- .J 

R~ 
~~ 

,-~ ~ 

~ 
~ 

!,i.,I • ,,. ~ 
-< I ~'«-
~., <?,,1-: 
~!ii ~ -l'o"bos! I! 

ill" ~ ogJ;I I 
~o o
"'I!; 0 

i ; 

· fiU,.,,.c.,..-1" Jf'1' 
'""'-.i·""!-01_. 'l'JllJL;,;_-4--'F11J-+ 

-"'<::..-......,.,_':) "•1~,, •1- -
I t f!fi/: .I\ Z,& f;l Ju ~ f "'~ !J -•-. '-"'-'--1 -~jK ,+1---1------------t--~~-~"'=:-=:--=:-=::-=::--==-=:::-=::~~lf)'/l~--- H3•,o'ia• ~ ' ·:W:: __ - - - ~ _ - _49,.,._.__,nn, tf ---- ---:=::::;:;..e-- s.'t y---===--- - . 

- 69!3,lll--- ---- ~1 
Ile--- ! '--b ~I' 

i i ~ I 
i I ~ 

I ,.. 
SEE SHEET 2 FOR DESCRlr'noN ANO SURVEY REPORT 

u:11g ~P11
~al~,::-c 
ltl 

!; 

DONATION PARCEL AT SHOAi. RIVER GOlF AND COUNTRY CLUS IN SECTIONS 4 & 
~. TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 24 WEST, OKALOOSA COUNT\'1 FLORIDA, 

1 ~-u~ SKmt1 
NOT VALID MlHOUT 
ll£ Sl6HA11Ji!I! AND 
1H£ ~I0INAL RMSED 
SfAI.Of AFLO~oA 
U(ENSEO SIJR\f.YOA 

M't1.fllll~O 

lll\l.~JA j,., 
IIAOa:J 

o.(f'(J}Ji 11./A 

~ 

AlUH t, tUCIC~ P.ll,IJ, Hi,;.~ 

JOSRUA P, 1'/1100, P,s.M. llo.ano 

16 OEO 2018 

GUSTIN, COTHERN & TUCKER, INC. 
, LAND SURVE!YING 

(660)878-5141 L,B, #3501 
121 HART STRE6T www.gtl,a11Nf1lu_e.1wm NICEVILLE1FL 8267!1 

AND MAPPER 
®o.111,.~llll~ 

180500 SllEET 

""""180500.06a 1 
OF 2 



11 D11EXHIBIT Page 2 of 4 

DESCRIPTION (AS WRITTENJ: 
QQMAUON PW.Ft LINE TABLE 
J1JAT PORTION OF PARCE.S 2, 3 AND 6 OF J1JE AMERICAN PACIFIC INT<RNAT!ONAL LTO 
PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2'610PAOE 4770), IN SBJTIDNS 4 AND 6, TOWSHIP 2 um:q DISTANCE 8EARINGNORlH1 RANGE 23 WEST1 OKALOOSA co NTY, f'lORl□A, LYING sourn OF SHOAL RIVER DRIVE 
AND A PROPOSED /)~\IE:l.OPMENT ADJACENT 1HERE10, LY1NG !:'.AST OF l(AJTLYN1S PRESERVE 2~,4:i J,I 114-'ll'J?" £ 
(PLAT BOOK 26, PAGE 69), AND BEING MORE PARTIOULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS\ " SUI N .f5'14'GO" [" 1. :sn+•,i3• & 

SOU1H LINE OF SAID SECTION li1 A DISTANCE Of .270B,J3 FEET TO THE. SOt.ml£AsT CORNER 
ea,J:aLJSEGIN AT THE soun--utAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 6; 'Jtt~C£ N 81'26'10" WALONG THE 

L; 58,70 fl !'!'1'09'fiO• f! 
OF SAID KAllLYN'S PRESERV£1 'IHEl>JCE N Ot'l'fil'.30~ E Al.ONO 11-!E EAST UNE lHERE'OF A 
DISTANCE: OF 192.6,98 f=EET TO A POINT 01-f A CURVE CONCAl/e: NORTHERLY AND HAV!No A lu,lZ N 25'QO'B7" E 
RADIUS OF 973,B7 FEET! J1JENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE, PROCEED ALONG SAib CLRVE, 

1.5 

32.0!S N !9'4:J'311• E 
11iR01JGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13'55'61~, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 236,78 FEET1 (CHORD " J4.!l1 ti 6.'lia':1.e• I:L7BEARING = S 70'30'67" E1 CHORD = 2.36,20 f'E:ET); 11-IENC~ N 64'231.37" E, A DISTANCE OF 
23,45 FEET! THENCE N 45'I4'.BB" E A OISTANCE OF 61,3\ F£E.i; TiiENCE N 39'24'4Jn E', A Jta.l:l~ N 76'!1CJ'l51" W 
DISTANOE OF 66.39 FEET; TI-IENOE N 27'09'5n" E, A DISTANCE Of' 56, 70 Fl::1!:T; n-m-lCE N 

LO 

JJ,64L9 N Hl'~u·a5"' w
25'00'5711 

E1 A DISTANCE OF 57,1.2 F/!E;:n TI-IENOE N 10'43'38" E, A DJSTANO£ OF 32,0B fEE:TI 
THENCE N OB'BB'2.6" E, A DISTANCE OF 34,92 FEET: Tl1ENOE N 76'80'61" W, A DISTANCE OF fl S'lil129~ I:'19,17LIO 

28.94 FEET: TJ-IEijGE N 48'46'66" 1'1, A DISTANCE Of 33,84 tEET; 'UIENOE N 08'61129" E1 A 31,49Lil H 3'22.'S2' W 
OISTANOE OF 49.17 ne:t: TiiENOE N 03'22'62" W, A DISTANCE OF 37,4g Fli:E:Ti lHriNC& N g.7,!la N J7'0B'07" E01237'05'07" E, A DISTANCE Of 97,9B FEET TO A POINT ON THE CURVED SOUTHERLY 
~IGHT-OF-\VAY LINE OF lHE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER DRlVE, L'r1NG IN A CURVE CONCAVE'. J!l,011l13 S 49'16'611" E 
NORJ1JERI.Y AND HA~NG A RADIUS OF <BB,87 A;ET; J1JENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY AND S ll'f0'2R" W
CURVE, n!.ROUOH A Cl:NlRAL ANGLE OF 17'29104111AN ARC DISTANCE or 149.18 FEET, (CHORD "·"'"' ~.oe S 20'-14'31" W 
J.JNE, PROCf.ED S 49'18'56" E, A DISTANci;; OF 36,06 FEETI 1HENCE S 05i0'2B" W1 A 

LISBEARING -i=; N il6'J8'23" £, CHORD ""' 146,60 FEET; l}lENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-Oit-w,w 
u, :31,90 S 14•J5'20" £ 

DISTANCE; OF 2El.45 FEET; lHENOE S 20•4,t.'J1" Wi A DISTANCE OF 4,68 FEETJ THENCE S 
L\7 82.27 6 18'261511" E14-'35'20~ ~ A DISTAMCE: OF 31,l.18 FEET; lHENCE S 1El'J1'50" E1 A DISTANCE: OF 394..'l.J FEET; 

THENCE N 70'48'51" E, A DISTANCE OF 668,09 f'E'ET: 1HENCE'. S 18'26151:1" ~l A DISTANcit or 02,18 N 1'+7'2a• f; 
82,27 FEE;l) lllfNGE N s4•;Wo2'1 E', A DISTANCE: OF 411,60 FEET; 1HENCE N 07"47'2B" ~I A 

L\9 

l9D,7ll s l!J'4&'211" £ 
PlSTANCE OF 82,18 rEE:TJ TI-IENCE S 83'4a12,s11 

[, A OISTANCE OF 1Q9,78 fEEn lHENCE N 
L19 

N 49•4o'oa• i;:uo IJ.Bi0Si3'.l5" E", A DJSTANOE Of' 337,31 FEEn ll-lENCE N 49'401D8" E, A DISTANCE; OF 13,B4 H:ETJ 
THENCE N ll7'10134" W, A OfSTANOE Df 37,80 FEE:T) lHENl'.llt N o5·,ls160" W, A DISTANCE CF ,17,ea H i"lb'34-" W 
s+,Jo FEET: THENCE N 87'16'48" E, A DISTANCE OF 78,30 A;ET TO A POINT ON THE "'' 5'J\I N 6'J6'50" WAFORE:SAIO SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY llNE: 1}11!:NCE; ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, 'JHE "" 

711,30 N 67'18'48" E 
CUR\lc: GONCAVJ; NORTHERLY ANO HAVlNG A RADIUS OF 2331,34 FEUi .2.) lHENCE ALONG 

mf'oLLOWUtG TWO (2.) OALLS: 1) S 83'60•osn E, A OJSfANCE OF a60.25 FEET TO A POINT ON A 
:iaoas S BJ'60'06" E 

SAIO CURVE, '0-lROUGH A CENTRA.L ANGLE Of 00•44.1ort, AN ARO DISTANCE OF :Z9,94 Flre.1', "'' 
s 84101 12311 $ 42.'0ll';ul" W:!11,71'-'•(CHORD BEARING ... E CHORD ;=, 29,94 FEET)1 lHENC:E: O~PARnNG SAID 

f{IOHT-OF-WAY1 PROOEED S !!0'45149" £, A DISTANCE OF 86,67 FEETI THEN"CE s 42"02'J8" W, 46,9J S lli',fll-'Jl• WL'7 
A DISTANCE of 38,71 fEETI 1r!ENDE S 15"46'33n W, A DISTANCE: OF 46.9J FEET; THENCE S s 17'J1'Mff W41,00
17'37158~ W1 A ()ISTANCt Of 47,80 FEET.I THENCE S 58'04'.25" W, A PlSTANClr OF 4.).26 FEE'P, "' 4:S,211 S 5!1'tH'21i" VIlHENOE S 01'2.ll'40" w, A DISTANCE OF 37.09 FEET/ ntENOE. S 30'2115" w, A DISTANCE or "' 66,26 FEETi THENCE S 29'11 11311 W, A DISTANCE OF 46,86 FEETJ n-!ENCI:: S 19'48'0au W, A 37.09 ~ 119••0· w 
DISlANCE Of 51.61 FEET; lHENOE S 21"1513'5" W, A DISTANCE OF' ,j,7,85 FEET! lHENCE S ,.,,,"' l31 S JO'l.7'16~ W14'27'60~ W, A DISTANCE OF 50.28 FEETI TI-IENCE S 8i'21l'49H ~1 A DISTANCE: OF' S,0,18 
FEEn llfENCr N 0.'3'J0'2aH ~ A DJSTANOE OF' 42D,4B FEET TO A POINT ON THE: Al"ORESAI□ S 211·11•13• W 
SOUn-lER!.Y RIGHT....OF~WAY LNE, LYING )NA CURVE CONCAVE NOIIDIEIJ.Y AND HAVINO A 

,t5,llllLJ2 

S- 1!1',\(11011~ WSU'ilRADIUS OP 23'l1,04 mn J1JENOE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE ANO cUR\lt, IHROUGH A "' •?,06 S' 21'15'J5' W 
B7'J8'48" E1 CHORD ... 166',78 FEET) 'tO lttE NORlHWEST CORNER OF THE BLOCl<ER P.ARCEl 
0.ENlRAL ANGLE OF' □ 4,'05'Q9•, AN ARC DISTANCE OF' 186,81 FEET, (<:HORD BEARING= N "" ,!il),~I\ S W27'0-Cl" W 
(Ol'l'ICIAL R<CORDS BOOK 3272, PAGE ~7B2); J1J,Nc• ALONG !HS WEST AND SOUJ1J LINES "' -s-00•411-'4Q~·t- -·-L-157•- • ·BB,fl7-•--• ,HERE0,,-111r.:-rotL1Jvnmnwo-0(2)7,7'IDl,·lT··s-01•1r4•0,",;TnJMAROco,oITT!:f!n'££T;2r 
S B7'81'11' £, A DISTANCE OF 718,36 FEET TO ))jE SOIJ1HEAST CORN£R OF SAID BLOOKER 
PARCEL, LYING ON TH£ lt,\sT LINE OF !HE WEST HALF OF THE SOUJ1JWEST QUARTER OF J1JE 
AFOR~AID SECTION 41 lHENCE s 07'03'oa* J; ALONG SAID EAST LINE1 A DISTANOE OF 
2066,70 10 ITS INTERSECTION \'!))j ll!, SOU))j LIN, Of SAID SECTION 41 J1JENO( N 67'47'05" 
WALONG SAJO s □ UTJ-1 SECTION LINJr, A DISTANCE OF 1317,33 Ft!:.'J' '(o lH~ POINT OF 
BEGINNING, SA!O PARCEL CONTAININll 187,-43 AORES, MORE OR LESS, 

SURVEY REPORT 
I, NO SEARCH OF lHE PUBUO RECORDS WAS PONC BY PUBUO RECORDS Of' Of(ALOOSA COUNTY, f'LO~IDA, 

GUSTIN Con-umN & TUCKER INC, VISIELE l::VIDEHCE OF 
EASEMtNTS \'!LL RE SHOW H,REON, aUT NO OERTIFlCATION •. B,ARINGS SHOW HEREON ARE R,FERENCEO TO ll!E UN, 
JS lllVEN THAT .EASEMENTS, DEED D\IERLAl='S, UNOERGROUNO SOUlH UNE OF SEOTION 6i TOWNSHIP 2 NORTI-18RANGE. 2A 
IMPROVEMENTS OR APPARENT USES 00 NOT E)(!Sl. vro:sr, Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY, Fl..ORIDA, SAID LINE l:'.AfllNG N 

87'.26'1D" WAS ~TAaLISHS:D BY 5TA1E PLANE 
2, mrs SUR'IEY DEPICTED HEREON WAS PREPARED IN OOOROINATES, FLORIDA NORTH ZONE, NORTH AMERICAN 

ACCORDANCE wm--l TI-IE STANDARDS OF PRACTICE FO~ DAllJM OF 1983, 11-IE'. DISTANCES SHOWN HEREON ARE IN 
PROFESSIONAL SURVEYORS AND MAPPERS AS DEFINED IN U,S, SURVEY fEE.T,
CHAPTER flJ.-17.081 OF' YHE: rtoRl□A ADMINI.STRA"JJVe: CODE 
As Sf.;l' FORTH BY THE FLORIDA BOARD Of' PtmfEssJoNAL 7, 1HE SURVEY MAP ANO SURVE:Y REPOln ARE NOT FULL & 
SURVEYORS ANO MAl='PERS PURSUANT TO SECTION 472,027 COMPL,TE l'flTHOUT THE OTHER. 
OF lHE FLORIDA STA1UTES, 

6, NOTIOE OF LIAarurn THIS SURVEY IS OERTIFIED TO )HOS,
J, NO f:NvtRONM~NtAL. illJRISDICTIONAL. LINES HAVE. BE£N INPIVJDUAI.S SHOWN ON THE: FACE" THEREOF, AMY OTHER 

DE'JERMJNED av OUS'JlNi COYHi:RN & ltlCKER, lNC, .USE, 6ENEAT OR RELIANCE BY ANY OTH(R PAR1Y Js 
SlRJOlLY PROHIBITED AND RESTRICTED, SUR'll<YOR rs 

<, NO APPARENT USES WERE DmRMINED, 1HIS IS NOT A RESPONS18LK ONLY TO !HOSE OERlJFlEO AND HEREBY 
BOUNDARY SURVEY, DISCLAIMS ANY OTHER LlABIUlY AND H£Rltl:IY RES1RICTS 

TJ!E RIGHTS OF ANY OIHER INOMDUAL OR FIRM 10 USE 
8, Tfl£R£ MAY a~ ADDJTIONAL RESTRIOTIONS THAT AR£ NOT 'JJ-1IS SURVEY, win-loUT EXPRESS WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE 

SHOWN ON Tl,IS SURVEY lHAi MAY BE FDUN~~ .,,'°lli.~ -t ""'"' l:l,r!flYr,Y_~• 
•HOITGUSTIN, COTHERN & TUCKER, INC, 180600 

LAND SURVEY[NG 
IWDEl(

(860) 678 • 6141 L,B. 03BD1 180500,06a 
or, 

~ 121 HAl'tT STREET www,gc!-wrvimip.cam NICEVILLE, FL 325711 2 

https://58'04'.25
https://0Si3'.l5
https://PROCf.ED
https://45'I4'.BB
https://64'231.37
https://Ot'l'fil'.30


11 D11EXHIBIT Page 3 of 4 

DONATION PARCEL 

THAT PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 3 AND 5 OF THE AMERICAN PACIFIC INTERNATIONAi. LTD PARCEL 
(OFFICIAL RECORDS 8001( 2961, PAGE 4776), IN SECTIONS 4AND 5, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 
WEST, Ol(ALOOSA COUNTY; FLORIDA, I.YING SOUTH OF SHOAL RIVER DRIVE AND A PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT ADJACENTTHERETO, I.YING EAST OF l<AITI.YN'S PRESERVE (PLAT BOOK 25, PAGE 69), 
AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE N 87'26'10" W ALONG THE SOUTH LINE 
OF SAID SECTION 5, A DISTANCE OF 2708.33 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID KAITLYN'S 
PRESERVE; THENCE N 05"51'30" I: ALONG THE EAST LINETHEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1926,96 FEET TO A 
POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 973.87 HET; THENCE DEPARTING 
SAID EAST LINE, PROCEED ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13"55'51", AN ARC 
DISTANCE OF 236,78 FEET, (CHORD BEARING =S 70'30'57" E, CHORD= 236,20 FEET); THENCE N 
54"23'37" E, A DISTANCE OF 23.45 FEET; THENCE N 45"14'58" E, A DISTANCE OF 51.31 FEET; THENCE N 
39"24'43" E, A DISTANCE OF 68,39 FEET; THENCE N 27"09'58" E, A DISTANCE OF 56.70 FEET; THENCE N 
25"00'57" E, A DISTANCE OF 57,12 FEET; THENCE N 19'43'38" E, A DISTANCE OF 32,08 FEET; THENCE N 
06"58'26" E, A DISTANCE OF 34,92 FEET; THENCE N 75"50'51" W, A DISTANCE OF 28,94 FEET; THENCE N 
48"46'55" W, ADISTANCE OF 33,64 FEET; THENCE N 06'51'29" E, ADISTANCE OF 49,17 FEET; THENCE N 
03°22'52" W, A DISTANCE OF 37,49 FEET; THENCE N 37"08'07" E, ADISTANCE OF 97,98 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE CURVED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER DRIVE, LYING IN A 
CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERlY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 488.87 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF• 
WAY AND CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 17"29'04", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 149,18 FEET, 
(CHORD BEARING= N 85"39'23" E, CHORD= 148,60 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY 
LINE, PROCEEDS 4.9'16'56" E, A DISTANCE OF 36,06 FEET; THENCE S05°10'28" W, A DISTANCE OF 29.45 
FEET;THENCE S20"44'31" W, A DISTANCE OF4,65 FEET; THENCE S14"3S'20" E, ADISTANCE OF 31.98 ~ 

---+----~'EE[;_Tl:JE.fllCE_5_19~11'5.U''-E,A..DLSl'Al\!CEDt-3flil,3.SJ'£EI;_THENCT.11LZ0°-48'£l."_E,.AnlST.ANCEDE-566.0,:,______ . 
FEET; THENCE S 18'26'56" E, A DISTMICE OF 82,27 FEET; THENCE N 84'34'02" E, A DISTANCE OF 411.50 
FEET; THENCE N07"47'28" E, A DISTANCE OF 82.18 FEET; THENCE S83"46'25" E, A DISTANCE OF 199,76 
FEET; THENCE N06"13'35" E, A DISTANCE OF 337,31 FEET; THENCE N 49"40'08" E, A DISTANCE OF 13,84 
FEET; THENCE N 07'10'34" W, A DISTANCE OF 37,88 FEET; THENCE N 05'36'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 54.30 
FEET; THENCE N57°18'48" E, A DISTANCEOF76.30 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT-Of-WAY LINo; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS:1) S 
83"50'05" E, A DISTANCE OF 360,25 FEETTO APOINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING 
A RADIUS OF 2331.34 FEET; 2) THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 00'44'09", 
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 29.94 FEET, (CHORD BEARING~ S 84'01'23" E, CHORD= 29.94 FEET); THENCE 
DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, PROCEEDS 80'45'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 86,87 FEET; THENCE S 
42"02'38" W, A DISTANCE OF 38,71 FEET; THENCE S 15"46'33" W, ADISTANCE OF 46.9;\ FEET; THENCES 
17"37'58" W, A DISTANCE OF 47,80 FEET; THENCE 5 50'04'25" W, ADISTANCE OF 43.26 FEET; THENCE S 
01'29'40" W, A DISTANCE OF 37,09 FEET;THENCE 5 30"27'15" W, ADISTANCE OF 56.26 FEET, THENCES 
29"11'13" W, A DISTANCE OF 45,86 FEET; THENCE S 19'48'06" W, A DISTANCE OF 51,51 FEET; THENCE S 
21'15'35" W, A DISTANCE OF 47.85 FEET; THENCE S 14"27'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 50,28 FEET; THENCES 
87"29'49" E, A DISTANCli OF 370,18 FEET; THENCE N 03"30'28" W, A DISTANCE OF 429.48 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, LYING IN A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY 

https://DISTANCEOF76.30


·-·-- ... ·-~ 

EXHXBI~ "D" Page 4 of 4 

AND HAVING ARADIUS OF2331,34 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT"OF-WAY LINE AND CURVE, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04'05'59", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 1.66,81 FEET, (CHORD BEARING~ N 
87'38'48" E, CHORD~ 166,78 FEET) TO 'rHE NORTHWEST CORNER OFTHE BLOCKER PARCEL (OFFICIAL 
RECORDS BOOK 3272, PAGE 3782); THENCE ALONG THE WEST AND SOUTH LINES THEREOF, THE 
FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS: 1) s07"04154" E, ADISTANCE OF 598,18 FEET; 2) S 87'51'11" E, A DISTANCE 
OF 718,35 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID BLOCl(ER PARCEL, LYING ON THE EAST LINE 01' 
THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF rHE AFORESAID SECTION 4; THl5NCE S07'03'03" E 
ALONG SA!IJ EAST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 2055,73 TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE sourn LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 4; THENCt N87"47'35" WAl.ONG SAID SOUTH SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1317,33 FEETTO 
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID PARCEL CONTAINING 187.43 ACRES, MORE OR LESS, 

1 
i 

I 
! 



-----------

-----

z 
0 
§ 
::, 
C:,... 
(J)z 
0 
0 
C: 

f2 
ti z 
::, 
z 
0 

z "' ,= 
!:: 
C: "' w 
<L ..C:
0 

LEGALDESCRll'TlON(oyERALL) 
SITE DATA~=-=---=-...::::---

Hn 

I 
I d~----------~-..-. PHASE 1 = 65 LOTS;::-;::;:~~..~:;:=:::;;..::___,,,__,,...,.....,..,..,,.....,,,.._ \\\\PHASE 2 = 28 LOTS c5-....._...,.____.,_~-~ ! -............,._,,_,..________ z l"PHASE 3 = 57 LOTS ~ 1~:,==-'...F...::~..:=:.=...~n-=:-~ H\\ tPHASE 4 = 73 LOTS:=:...--=:.:=.;-~-=::::-~=- \Ui :.; 1•11 ':....=-..:~::.,~,"':O:'i:=::=.- PHASES = 107 LOTS jl\i ffi .~ii ::. 8l ~ wPHASE 6 = 51 LOTS z §g 1==.."S==.=.--===..-===-"'________,.______ PHASE 7 = 53 LOTS cB !i ~< llz, wd ! .........._..._...~-----------........ = 49 LOTSPHASE 8 w ,- -. d t 

_, 

=:.:=::~~~ PHASE 9 = 18 LOTS ___....,___,.....,____ PHASE 10 = 24 LOTS 
--.....-.- PHASE 11 = 11 LOTS 1lill~~-=----......-=---· PHASE 12 = 8 LOTS 

, 

i 
l 
i 
' l 

i; 
'! 

=~~-=..-==~::.... ______.,...._,_______..,,....,..,,......__..,,..... .......,_.. ____,_ 

:::::::::::.=..-..--..............,_....._.....,__ 
__________,....,.__.. _ 
__,._..___ 

_____........,.,....,....,....,,,...._.. _,..==,.."'=="""~"::"...T....~-=~=...;.===--=-,........,,..-..,_.,~,...., 
:::lt,-:;:.,;;=~~-
=----..,..,...... ,._,...,,.,.,..,.,,.....,...,,~--- ..----.::.:"------= 
=~=~-.::.=.,-=::-.:=.T 

=~~-~-------___,,,___.,..,._~--~
='~·-"-""'"""___ 

===~~='-::''::■=..~~'Ti:l 

~..a.=...,~..:...~"'5= 
~ :=-===..~-=-=~ 

PHASE 13 = 21 LOTS Pi-wse1
l ....~u,«; ' . II!{ "":-" i\11PHASE 14 = 20 LOTS ~I • -

PHASE 15 = 10 LOTS 
PHASE 16 =81 LOTS 
TOTAL = 676 LOTS --V-:ml::tillltl~,aeMi!llimllim'~~ ~ ¼WE .:0·11, w - ~ I ...~::;;.~I~ 

\ 
\ \ 

,\
It 

_......,,) \\~ 
'\ 

N 

EB 

11, 
!]1 

! WI
l:b~. s 

I 
~ l5iii cc~pi 

~ 

~o i! ,_ 
°"1'5: C6<lD1Q 

llEBlGNEO: Mf'l'J!,ISJ 
~ MPFI ,,......,_.,..._ __,,,,.,__,, 

CAAWIN'3NUMBS! 
)XQF»:___ _ 

SHSETMJMe!Sl 

CXX 
OAA'l'llOIG15TI-11,Ft!ll'l'RJTO"J5NlQN8 B'<GINEBllNlo, ll'IC; AND 1$NOTTOE:i<R=AACO=WITH0l/l"SIAAESSEOWl'IITIEN 



EXHIBIT 3 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN THE OKALOOSA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AND PATRIOT RIDGE, LLP 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPM ENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into 
14ththis day of March 2023, by and between the Okaloosa County Board of County 

Commissioners (the "County") and Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida Limited Liability Partnership (the 
"Developer") for the purpose of forma lizing certain conditions of approval pertaining to t he maintenance 
of dams and access to the subject propert ies established by the County at the time the Agreement was 
approved. 

ARTICLE I. RECITALS 

WHEREAS, t he intent of the Florida Local Government Deve lopment Agreement Act (the "Act") is 
explicitly provided in Section 163.3220(2), Florida Statutes, which states as follows: 
(2) The Legislature finds and declares that: (a) The lack of certainty in the approval of development can 
result in a waste of economic and land resources, discourage sound capital investment planning and 
financing, escalate the cost ofhousing and development, and discourage commitment to comprehensive 
planning: (b}Assurance to a developer that upon receipt of his development order(s} he may proceed with 
existing laws and policies, subject to the conditions of a development agreement, strengthens the public 
planning process, encourages sound capital improvement planning andfinancing, assists in assuring there 
are adequate capital facilities for the development, encourages private participation in comprehensive 
planning, and reduces the economic costs ofdevelopment. 
(3) Inconformity with, in furtherance ofand to implement the Local Government Comprehensive Planning 
and Land Development Regulation Act and the Florida State Comprehensive Planning Act of1972, it is the 
intent of the Legislature to encourage a stronger commitment to comprehensive and capital facilities 
planning, ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development, encourage the efficient use 
of resources, and reduce the economic cost of development. 
(4) This intent is affected by authorizing local governments to enter into development agreements with 
developers, subject to the procedures and requirements ofss. 163.3220-163.3243. 
(5) Sections 163.3220-163.3243 shall be regarded as supplemental and additional to the powers conferred 
upon focal governments by other laws and shall not be regarded as in derogation of any powers now 
existing; and 

WHEREAS, the Okaloosa County Land Development Code has been adopted by Ordinance No. 91-
1, as amended, and does conta in Sect ion 1.11.05 "Development Agreement" which specifica lly authorizes 
the County to enter into development agreements with developers; and 

WHEREAS, after duly noticed public hearings conducted on October 10, 2019 and November 5, 
2019, the County and Developer ent ered into a Development Agreement (the Development Agreement) 
establishing the development rights of the Developer as well as the regulations and obligations that would 
apply to the development; and 

WHEREAS, during the duly noticed meeting of November 5, 2019, the County requested and the 
Developer agreed to investigate amendments to the Agreement perta ining t o the maintenance of certain 

Page 1 



dams that occur on the property as well as a commitment to investigate opportunities for improved access 

to the development; and 

WHEREAS, after duly noticed public hearings conducted on August 30, 2020 and September 1, 
2020, the Board of County Commissioners adopted the First Amendment to the Development Agreement 
(First Amendment) that increased the number of allowable units from 570 to 676, added an additional 
(16th ) phase to the development schedule, and required additional transportation improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer and the County have agreed upon terms and conditions stated in the 
revisions to the Agreement contained in this Second Amendment and mutually desire said revisions 
should be incorporated into the Agreement by way of this Second Amendment. 

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, the Developer and the County enter into this Second Amendment 
to the Development Agreement and do hereby agree that the Development Agreement and First 
Amendment are hereby amended as follows: Language to be added is underlined, language to be 

removed is stricken. 

1. Article Ill. of the Development Agreement is amended as follows: 

ARTICLE Ill. ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS 

The essential requirements of law of this Agreement as prescribed by Section 163.3227, Florida Statutes, 
are addressed as follows: 

3.2 Duration of Agreement-The duration of this Agreement shall be for five (5) years commencing with 
the effective date of this AgreemeAt .'\mendment This Agreement may be extended by the mutual 
consent of the parties for an additional five (5) years. 

3.3 Development Uses 
A. The parties do hereby agree that the Developer intends to develop a residential development 
consisting of a maximum of 570 671i 657 single family units and all associated roadways, stormwater 
treatment, landscaping, and other improvements as may be required by the Land Development Code; 
and could, but are not obligated to, build and develop accessory uses and structures including storage 
areas, parking lots and/or garages. Building density shall be no more than four (4) units per acre, and 
building height shall not exceed 45 feet. 

3.4 Public Facilities, Infrastructure Capacity, and Capacity Reserv.ition 
C. Transportation and Roads -

6. The Developer agrees to provide a cash payment in the amount of $1,300.524 which shall be 
the total cost to Developer for the Mitigation Payment and any operational improvements for 
the development. The cash payment shall be paid as set forth below in Paragraph 7. +oo 
Developer agrees to provide the operational improvements aAd eash payment set ferth below. 

Page 2 



+Jie-estimateEI costs of the Develepc#wta~oo¼f-f;oGket-cost for surve•ting, soil testing, Elesign, 
other soft costs anEI constructions for such improvements is $1,300,521.00. 

7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement or the Traffic Impact Analysis, the 
Developer hereby agrees to make the following payments: 

a) The Developer shall pay $30,000.00 to the County on or before January 1, 2021 to be used 
by the County for planned improvements to John King Road. This amount has been paid; 
and 

b) The Developer shall provide the County with all engineering, surveying and other data 
which Developer has for any proposed operational Improvements including but not limited 
to offslte Improvements to SR85, Live Oak Church Road and Airmen's Memorial Road 
including all computer aided design files for such work. Developer and County acknowledge 
and agree that Developer's actual out of pocket cost for such data is $64,170.45 which shall 
be treated as a payment of the Mitigation and operational improvement cost.; and 

c) The Developer shall pay the balance of Mitigation and operational improvement cost of 
$1,206,353.55 as follows: $301,853.55 on or before January 15, 2023, $301,500.00 on or 
before April 15, 2023. $301,500.00 on or before July 15, 2023 and $301,500.00 on or before 
October 15, 2023. n,e proposeEI operational improvement{s) shall Ile made In a 
pulalic/private partllef5Rif, 1,vith the County participating in the construction of the 
operational improvements as hereinafter set forth. 

8.The Developer shall construct or cause to be constructed a roadway system that will be privately 
maintained within the Proiect. which will be available to serve all primary and accessory uses. 
As such, the roadway system shall be owned and maintained as a private common element of 
the Proiect by the Owners Associations. The County will not be responsible for any construction 
or maintenance costs associated with the internal roadways of the Proiect. The roadways will 
be designed and constructed to County standards. As all roads will be low speed and low 
volume, all roads with the development shall be considered local roadways as defined in Section 
6.03.03 Cof the Okaloosa County Land Development Code. 

8. ~lotwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement or the Traffic Impact Analysis, the 
Oaveloper and the County heresy agree to make the follo•...-ing improvements: 

a) The Developer shall pay $30,000.00 to the County on or laefore January 1, 2021 to tie used by 
the County for planneEI Improvements to John King Road; and 

ti) The Developer shall construct southbound dual left turn lanes on SR85 at the intersecti0fl-With 
bive Oak Church Roa El with the outside lane used for Live Oak Church Road turning movements 
an El the inside lane striped for a left u turn EOmbination, or as otherwise approved by the FDOT, 
and shall construct a westlaound right turn lane on Live Oak Church Road from SR 85 to the 
current entrance to the CEFCO. Upon approval of this /\greement, Developer shall submit the 
plans for such-improvements to the FDOT and the Couflty-within ninety (90) Eiays, shall 
vigorously pursue □ staining approval of such plans and shall rnmplete these improvements 
within twelve (12) months aftor obtaining such ap~rovJ-it--a»d 

c) The County shall add a project to the County Capital Improvement Plan to widen the bridge-oo 
Live Oak Church Road, located 0.8 miles east of SR 85; and 

Page 3 

https://30,000.00
https://301,500.00
https://301,500.00
https://301,500.00
https://301,853.55
https://1,206,353.55
https://64,170.45
https://30,000.00
https://1,300,521.00


flt-The Oevel0fler4lall-widen Live Oak Church Road to four (4) lanes from SR85 to Shoal River Drive 
transitioning to two (2) lanes at that intersection with a right turn on to Shoal River Drive. In 
addition, the Developer shall also construct westllound dual left turn lanes from Live Oak 
Church Road onto SR85, or as otherwise approved lly the FOOT. Upon receipt of the plans from 
the County for the llridge •,videning on Live Oak Church Road, the Developer shall sullmit the 
f)lans for such improvements to thB--FOOT and the G~~ 
vigorously pursue olataining approval of such plans and shall complete these improvements 
within twelve (12) months after obtaining such approval or within twelve (12) months after the 
County rnmpletes the laridge •,videning, whichever comes later. 

e) The Developer shall construct a southlaound left turn lane on live Oak Church Road at /Ii rm en's 
Memorial Read with a minimum ciueue length of 100' prior to any roadway connection lacing 
made from Phase la to any other phase in the proposed de·,elopment. 

9.. The roadway connection to Airman's Memorial Road in Phase 16 shall not be gated nor shall the 
roadway be restricted to public use in any way. The Developer shall provide an easement over 
the roadway connection to Airman's Memorial Road for public access and shall construct this 
roadway with a stabilized base for construction traffic before any building permit is issued for 
any phase beyond phases 2, 3, and 4. The Developer shall not be responsible for monitoring 
construction traffic on any roadway. The roadway shall be paved and upgraded to County 
standards when the property adjacent to the roadway Is platted. 

Phase 1 shall also have access to Airman's Memorial Road but shall only have emergency access 
to Skyline Drive over the existing platted right-of-way owned by the County. The Developer shall 
stabilize the emergency access to permit vehicular access by emergency vehicles and for use as 
an emergency Ingress/egress for owners in Phase 1 in the event that the access to Airmen's 
Memori<1I Road is blocked but such access shall otherwise not be available for public or priv<1te 

~ 

9. The Developer shall rnnstruct or cause to lae constr~cted a roadway system that will lJe privat-ely 
maintained within tile Project, which will lae availalale to serve all primary and accessory ~ses. 
As s~ch, the roadway system shall Ile-owned and maintained as a private common element of 
the Project lly the Q•,11ners Associations. The County will not IJe responsilale for any sonstrnction 
or maintenance costs associated with the internal roadways of the Project. The roadways-will 
lae designeEI and constrncted to Go~nty standards. /Is all roads will be low speed and low 
volume, all roads within the development shall Ile considered local roadways as defined in 
Section e.n.m Gof the Okaloosa County land Development CoEle. 

(Remainder of Page intentionally blank) 

Page 4 



2. Article IV. of the Development Agreement is amended as follows: 

ARTICLE IV. AGREEMENT AND COVENANT 

4.1 By execution hereof, the County acknowledges and agrees that this ~articular Agreement Second 
Amendment will encourage proper use of the Property, promote economic use of land resources of the 
County, provide for public facilities and use, and encourage private participation in the comprehensive 
planning process. The County acknowledges and agrees that it is exercising its sound discretion in this 
instance by entering into this Agreement Second Amendment to achieve mutual benefits that are 
particular and unique to the circumstances underlying the Original Agreement as amended. 

4.4 Any notices required to be given or elected to be given by either of the parties pursuant to the terms 
of this agreement shall be deemed effective provided when placed in the United States Mail, certified 
return receipt requested, or placed in the hands of an overnight delivery service. 

As to the Developer: 

Gregory E. Matovina 
Patriot Ridge, LLP 
12443 San Jose Boulevard, Suite 504 
Jacksonville, FL 32223 

As to the County: 

Elliot Kamper! 
Growth Management Director 
Okaloosa County, Florida 
1250 N Eglin Parkway 
Shalimar, FL 32579 

And a copy to: 

Scott Bitterman, P.S. 
County Engineer 
1759 S. Ferdon Boulevard 
Crestview, FL 32536 

County Attorney: 

Lynn M. Hoshihara Gregory T. Stewart 
County Attorney 
1500 Mahan Drive, Suite 200 
Tallahassee, Florida 32308 

Page 5 



3. Attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and Incorporated herein is the Phasing and Master Plans and Phasing 

Sched~le for development. 

4. Only those sections of the Original Development Agreement and First Amendment, as further amended 
herein (article Ill and IV) are subject to the changes, along with the inclusion of the Phasing and Master 
Plans and Phasing Schedule. All other provisions of the existing Development Agreement and First 
Amendment are in full force and effect and are Incorporated herein by reference. 

(This space intentionally left blank) 

Page 6 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals this 14th day of __M_ar_c_h_~ 
2023. 

OKALOOSA COUNTY 
BOARO OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

ert A. "Trey" Goodwin Ill 
Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

-- • ~·~3 
Lynn M. 1i';;s; 
County Attorney 

Page 7 



DEVELOPER 

Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership 

Gregory'E. Matovina, as President of Matovina & Company, 
Managing Partner of Patriot Ridge, LLP 

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF DUVAL 

Before me on this /'i-tk day of J:,, 201!, in ~rson or via __ remote notarization appeared 
Gregory E. Matovina, as President of Matovina & Company, Managing Partner on behalf of Patriot Ridge, 

CLI', who;, pmooall, ko~o ,o me" p~;ded ~1.,~~ , 

':l Notary Public, State of Florida • 
#1 '"¼>. Noti.!.ry Public Stale of Florida My Commission Expires

.P ""' "ti l<annath l. JOiin(! Jr 
• r ~ MyComrniaaionHH0403?9 •. Commission Number 
'\-1- , '/1 Expire~ 09/0812024 ?, 

01 ~ •• ,v-..iv,,.,t.l Notary Stamp 

Page 8 

https://Noti.!.ry


EJ<hibit A 
Phasing and Master Plans and Phasing Schedule 

Page 9 



? 

::::· ;;;;;;:;::;;:;.~,:-..............,.,_......., .... ,c ....,._....,,.I= _.,__"·-

ffi ::.=.=.:..~=--=~-=-.~=~=:--=~~ 
"- -
f§ =":.':'7":.:.::::.=.-:.~~':.':.~~.. 
lL •"""""""'""·""""-

........... , .. ,_____..... ..,......._ ,..,.....,.___,.=~"-~'"'""""'...._.. 
,................ 
=-==~""t:.,--=~~:=..."·.::::,=:.":"' 

~--,o~oo,rt<,_l_,,...,_....,,,,_,,,_,_,,...._ 

~~~=;==~:.~:= 
=~::::..~~-..,"-;::;;,."",,,,_;,. • ...,_,,..,,_...., 

=~=:::.:~===~:-;;::,::"''
:.:=:~~-='~'~,.,;.:::':-"«=,":.;,,.""'.,.=,..~,lk"l'o""..:'.;.-=.....=.::;:.:..,..a,"""""'"""""_""___,___..... 

===.o-.,::;'""""""~-·•--=--'--
=.,;:~~";.,·=-==-~:.-·" 
~=";:.:.'.O:::;.-=;~:::."":c~.l=--:-..~.::..,~~=--=\':"..,,
:.~-=~:...~"'::;.::'.:;-;.~,.,:;:"".=·'....,."""" 

==~~=,::;::::.::...-:.=~::o::;;::,-::,~-::-
~~~::~=:~~~r,:-:~·..2::f~,: 

LEGIi 0 

;HASE 1 (65 LOTS)- PHAS 
~ 

PHASE2 {28L --[28LOTSJ··--··---··-

PHASE 3 {57 LOTS)PHAS 

-PHAS 

- II 
1!111 PHASE 4 {73 LOTS) i!l!il 

PHASE 5 (53 LOTS)PHAS- II 
■ PHASE 6 {73 LOTS}- PHAS 

■ PHASE 7 (30 LOTS}- PHAS 
-- PHASE 8 (104 LOTS} 

- PHASE 9 (18 LOTS) 

- PHASE 1 D (18 LOTS) 

- PHASE 11 [16 LOTS) 

- PHASE 12 [6 LDTSJ 

- PHASE 13 {21 LOTS} 

- PHASE 14 [20 LOTS) 

- PHASE 15 [10 LDTSJ 

- PHASE 16 (65 LOTS} 

(l~, 

I 4~ 
~ !,,,~,n,~;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;;j~~~~~~t ~ ;;~~~
c: h!i~~!~~~~ffi!!m~i!t:: 

..,;;in~!.laU 

1--W"'l'-'"""' 

EB 
,.;,uQ"l,J.:i(:,o,l.it'l"•«•r 

w ~i!s:~w' 
z ' a' !~
ill ~~ 
~ th,, 
- ~i'l"' 

~ i!U 
7' ~~il;~ 

=lllll~l~li:lf 

·1 •I ~; I 
!Hi i1
i~B ii 

IHIU
!! l !! 

1iilil•l!lili 
_!l-l-l 8 H~I• 

i II 
&I: 

C II @~ ~!I
b:li zg,

I !i 
co 

u.,. 
.xlB; 11!-U 
OATS: o&«n• 
=GN~ MFl'/MSJ 
l>AAWN: _W'F 

,..,,_,_,.,..""'" 
!>R.>.IW>.G ~ 

-~1_0f.Jl1__ 
SHSIT"'-"""ofi 

C01 
~ l"THO PIIOP""TY Ol'JENKINS ENGINEEIIINS.INC. AN!> ISl<OTT06~ Rcf'I WITttOlJTla<l'lllaSS.OWl\lll'lSNCCWS,ENT 



__ Q'_"_""-_'_"_"'"'"o_,,-,,,,-BWJ.-,-------------------------,m-----------------------------,~------71-t,h--,;:-'----, 

b::i 
t;"
o: 
z 
o 
0
fs 
u. 

~ 
c:;z 
0 

z "' 
i=,; 
a: 
~ 
a: 
~ 

=·---··-·---~-----·-·-·· =--~:.=.·==-=--::-::;.~~~-
:!:E:::l~=-E~~,§.'::?,W,a?'..=~•
""""""""""""',._,....,.,""""'"'•"""'•"'""""".........,.,."""""""::::.:•.::=-.;;:;:r;;:<;.~'"':,:;',.~=:=-..':l.,,~'=:.:==.. 
=-==~~E°":":=~,:;'....":::E,=' 
:-=:::.:;=.=.=~~.:.:;;m~:::=.:-:-..=
=!;"-?'°,.:''::~'5=::;,:=.-=.~
:::-..:=-_,_,_,.,.,,_°'....._ 

~~:'==f.~~.r~~,.~l§:f<J,;.:
:':.,.~':;~~~~::."'.E£.===?.!-="'.::.:.,
:E'r~,!-!==:::-::,~~=';:~$":E'=~
,,,-----•••-•--••••••·•--

~1~;~~i;~~~~~~:-~~-
=~~;;~::~~:::::::: 

1£:~!~;::::: 
511t;~;#;;;~i~~~~i~......,__ 

~~~~~~~": 

~~;~~~!!~i~;it~~ 

SITE DATA: 
PHASE 1 = 65 LOTS 
PHASE 2 - 28 LOTS-
PHASE 3 =57 LOTS 
PHASE 4 = 73 LOTS 
PHASE 5 =53 LOTS 
PHASE 6 = 73 LOTS 

PHASE 7 =30 LOTS 
PHASE 8 = 104 LOTS 
PHASE 9 = 18 LOTS 
PHASE 10 = 18 LOTS 

PHASE 11 = 16 LOTS 
PHASE 12 = 6 LOTS 
PHASE 13 = 21 LOTS 
PHASE 14 =20 LOTS 
PHASE 15 = 10 LOTS 
PHASE 16 = 65 LOTS 
TOTAL;;;; 657 LOTS 

(2) 
\.._.::I 

TI,IS ORAWLNG IS Tlil:P~Ol'l:RlY DF.lENKINS ct.::alNE=R!Nli:,INO.A.'10 IS NO:-TO BEREPROOUCSll \'IITHCUT exPl'<E$$SllVUlm"ltNCCN5fNT 

• ~ /!) 
_ 

N 

EB 

o a 
z ·-

ill!I 
w ~~H 
w . 
~ i~ 

~ !! 
oo lb
~h:!i"'·+iTI !~"!~=-~h: 

~l!lll!lil!I; 

, lilil•lil!lt! 
!1-1•1"1•1•1•1 

I 
j 

gg s! ii!§ aa• b~ 

I ~~ ,- ~1 
"° ii JOB: ,_ 

.....~ ~,. 
DSSGNED: MPF;l,ISJ 
PAAW>I: 1,1_1'!'-~---....,-,_....._,,......,,..__ 

OAAWING NIA.oE!Sl 
01 01'""1 

SMmTNu.tBEH 

C01 



PATRIOT RIDGE 
PROPOSED PHASING SCHEDULE 
EXHIBITC 

PUBLIC 
MAX# SEWER 

PHASE# GENERAL LOCATION OF LOTS SYSTEM 

1 West of Lakes A and B 65 y 

2 Between Lake Cand Shoal River Drive 28 y 

3 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit one) 57 y 

4 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Two) 73 y 

5 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Three) 53 y 

INCLUDES PRIVATE NEIGHBORHOOD PARI( 

6 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Four) 73 y 

7 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Five) 30 y 

8 East of Shoal River Drive (Mixed Use Unit Six) 104 y 

9 Chanteuse Parkway extension 18 y 

10 Between Lake Cand Skyline Circle 18 N 

11 off Airmens Memorial Road 6 y 

12 Adjacent to Lake E 16 N 

13 Between Chanan Estates and First Addition 21 y 

14 south of Shoal River Drive 20 y 

INCLUDES PUBLIC NEIGHBORHOOD PARK 

15 OffTimberlfne Drive 10 N 

16 East and south of Phases 2-9 65 y 

TOTAL 657 

NOTE: Phase numbers/designation do not necessarily Indicate the order the phases will 
be developed but are used to match the phases per this exhibit to the phases per the 
Master Plan. 



PARK DONATION AGREEMENT 

THIS PARK DONATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and effective as of 
__________, 2023 (the "Effective Date"), by and between PATRIOT RIDGE, 
LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership ("DONOR"), and OKALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, a political subdivision ofthe State of Florida ("County"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan Recreation and Open Space and 
Element as well as the Okaloosa Co\lllty Land Development Code, require the establishment of 
recreational areas in conjunction with residential developments of 50 lots or greater; and 

WHEREAS, Donor and County have entered into a development agreement pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, establishing the entitlements and obligations of a master planned 
development known as Patriot Ridge which allows the development of up to 657 single 'family 
dwelling units 1:U1d which requires, among other things the donation of a 186.13± acre parcel to be 
used as a neighborhood park and which provides public access to the Shoal River; and 

WHEREAS, Donor is the fee simple owner of that certain parcel of land in Okaloosa 
County, Florida, containing 186.13± acres as more particularly described on Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto and shown on the map attached as Exhibit "A-1" (the "Property"), which is part of the 
master planned community !mown as Patriot Ridge; and 

WHEREAS, Donor desires and proposes to donate the Property to the County in fee 
simple as a park in fulfillment of the development agreement; and 

WHEREAS, both the Donor and the County ha:ve a vested interest in realization of a high
quality public recreational space in association with the Patriot Ridge development, commit to 
working jointly in good faith to complete their respective responsibilities as more particularly set 
forth in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the County finds .it is in the best interest o:f the public to enter into this 
Agreement with Donor to establish tl1e specific tenn.s on which the Property will be conveyed to 
the County. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration o:f the recitals above and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency ofwhich is acknowledged, it is mutually agreed 
as follows: 

I. Recital~. The above recitals are true and correct and incorpornted herein by 
reference. 

2. l)onation. Upon and subject to tl1e terms ofthis Agreement, Donor agrees to donate 
and convey to the County and the County agrees to accept all Donor's rights, title, and interest to 



the Property, The closing of the conveyance of the Property ("Closing") shall talce place via mail 
away delive1y of closing documents, within one hundred eighty calendar (18 0) calendar days from 
the date of approval of this Agreement. 

3. Right of En!.ni:. Donor agrees that from the date ·Ibis Agreement is executed by 
Donor, the County and its agents, upon reasonable notice, shall have the right to enter the Property 
for all lawful purposes in connection with this Agreement. Donor shall deliver possession of the 
Property to County at Closing. 

4. Title, Appraisal & Survey, 

(a) Attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "B" is a current title insurance 
commitment (the ''Title Commitment") issued by Old Republic National Title Company (the "Title 
Insurer") through title agent Nabors Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. through the Attorneys' Title Fund, 
covering the Property, The title policy issued for the Property at Closing shall be in an amount 
equal to the $2.05 million that amount established within the Development Agreement between 
the parties. The cost of the Title Commitment and title insurance policy shall be borne by Donor. 
The Title Commitment shall commit the Title Insurer to issue an owner's title insurance policy to 
the County (which shall be delivered within a reasonable time after Closing) covering the Property, 
reflecting title to tl1e Property to be marketable and insurable, subject to the Permitted 
Encw:nbrances and, the standard printed exceptions contained in the title insurance policy unless 
otherwise addressed hy the County. Donor shall execute at or prior to Closing, in favor offue Title 
Insurer, such affidavit or affidavits, and such other documents, acceptable to the Title Insurer as 
are sufficient to allow for deletion of standard exceptions from the Title Commitment other than 
the Permitted Encumbrances. 

(1) The "Permitted Encumbrances" include tl1e following: 

i. All existing b1tllding restrictions, zoning regulations, and 
local laws, governing the Properly and the use !hereof. 

ii. Items 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10 of Schedule B II of the title insurance 
commitment. 

(2) With the exception of the items listed under ii. Above, Donor shall 
satisfy the County title exceptions set forth in Schedule II of the Title Commitment attached as 
Exhibit "B" prior to Closing. 

(b) Attached as Exhibit "A-1" is a survey ofthe boundary of the Property performed by a 
professional surveyor mid mapper licensed by the State ofFlorida and done in accordance with the 
Florida Minimum Technical Standards for Land Surveys. The survey identifies any easements 
located on the Property. 

(C) Donor shall obtain an appraisal for the value of the Property that will be used to 
establish the value of the Property. The appraisa1 shall be completed within ninety (90) days of 
execution of this agreement mid shall be used for valuation of the Donation, 



5. Prorations. All govermnental and association taxes, assessments, and charges for 
the year of Closing shall be paid by Donor pursuant to Florida law at or before Closing. 

6, Closing Procedtll'e and Docllll).ent~. At Closing: 

(a) Donor shall execute and deliver or cause to be delivered to the County a 
general warranty deed ("Deed") in accordance with Section 689.02, Florida Statutes, conveying 
the fee simple title to the Property including all timber and mineral rights, providing that the 
Property shall be used solely for public park, recreation, and conununity uses and any related 
supporting infrastructure; 

(b) Donor shall execute and deliver to the Title Insmer an affidavit, confirming, 
among other things, that there have been no changes to the conditions of title from that shown in 
the Title Commitment in order for the Title Company to delete the "gap" exception; 

(c) Donor shall execute and deliver instrmnents satisfactory to the County and 
the Title Insurer reflecting the proper power, good standing and authorization for the conveyance 
of the Properly from Donor to the Com1ty hereunder; 

(d) Donor shall execute and deliver to the County and the Title Insurer a 
FIRPTA affidavit in form and substance acceptable to the County and the Title Insurer; 

(e) Donor and the County shall mutually execute and deliver to each other a 
closing statement in custommy form; and 

(f) Donor shall execute and deliver such other documents as may be required 
to effectuate the purpose of this Agreement, including but not limited to any donation forms 
required by the IRS as instructed by Donor's accotu1tant, particularly IRS Form 8283. In turn, the 
County acknowledges and agrees to execute the Donee Acknowledgement on the IRS 8283, once 
completed by Donor's accountant and submitted to the Comity for execution at the time of or after 
the donation, 

7, Closing Expense~. The Donor shall pay lhe documentary stamp tax 011 the Deed, 
the costs ofthe smvey, its legal expenses, recording costs for the Deed, and owner's title insmance 
premitu11 and search fee. The County shall pay its legal expenses, any of its Property investigation 
expenses, and all of its other costs associated with this tl'ansaction. 

9, Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more colltlterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed to be a11 original but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

10. Modification Must be in.Writing. No modification or termination offuis Agreement 
shall be valid unless executed in writing and signed by fue applicable duly authorized 
representatives ofDonor and the Comity. 



1l.. No Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless 
it is in writing and signed by the _party against whom it is asserted, and any such written waiver 
shall only be applicable to tlte specific instance to which it relates and shall not be deemed to be a 
continuing or future waiver. 

12. Assignability. Except as may be specifically provided in this Agreement, this 
Agreement may not be assigned by Donor or the County without tb.e written consent of1he other 
party. 

13. Time. Time is of the essence of all provisions ofthis Agreement. 

14. Governingl,_aw and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida. The invalidation of one or more 
of the terms of this Agreement shall no( affect fue validity of the remaining terms. It is agreed 
ven11e for determination of such disputes shall be in Okaloosa County. 

15. Notices. Any notice hereunder must be in writing and delivered personally or by 
United States Mail, Registered or Certified, Return Receipt Requested; United States Express 
Mail; e-mail; or Federal Express or equivalent courier service, and shali be effective only if and 
when received by the party to be notified. For purposes ofnotice, the addresses of the parties shall 
be set fo1th below or as may be designated by notice to the other from time to time. 

Donor: Gregory E. Matovina, 
Patriot Ridge LLP 
12443 San Jose Boulevard, Suite 504 
Jacksonville, FL 32223 

County: John Hofstad 
Co1mty Administrator 
1250 N. Eglin Parkway 
Shalimar, Florida 32579 

With a copy to: Elliot L. Karnpert. AICP 
Growth Management Director 
1250 N. Eglin Parkway 
Shalimar, FL 32579 

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
_parties and there are no agreements, representations or warranties, oral or written which have not 
been incorporated herein. 

17. lll!.l)licability. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefits 
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and, to the extent that assignment is permitted 
hereunder, their assigns. 

18. Interpretation. This Agreement has been negotiated by the parties hereto at arm's 
length. The _parties represent and wruTant to one another that each has, by counsel or otherwise, 



actively participated in the finalization of this Agreement, and in the event ofa dispute concerning 
the interpretation of this Agreement, each party hereby waives the doctrine that an ambiguity 
should be interpreted against the party which has drafted the document. Captions used in this 
Agreement are for convenience or reference only and shall not affect the construction of ruiy 
provision ofthis Agreement. Whenever used, the singular shall include the plural, the plural shall 
include the singular, and gender shall include all genders. 

19. Real Estate Commission. The County and Donor represent and warrant each to the 
other that neither has entered into any agreement or taken any other action which would result in 
a. real estate brokerage commission, finder's fee or other similai: charge being payable on account 
of the Closing ofthe Property. Each party hereto agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the other 
against any commission, fee or charge and all related costs and expenses arising out ofthe actions 
ofthe indemnifying party. 

20. Remedie§. 

(a) If any prui:y to this Agreement materially defaults under the terms hereof, 
then the non-defaulting party shall give the defaulting party thirty (30) calendar days' notice and 
a right to cure such breach with that time period. 

(b) Should the County fail to timely cure a default in meeting thefr obligations 
set forth herein, Donor may seek any and all remedies available to it in law or equity. 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither party shall be liable for 
consequential or punitive damages U11der this Agreement. 

21. Donor Representations and Warrru1ties, Donor hereby represents and warrants to 
the Cmmly as follows ( and except as specifically set forth below, the Co,mty shall accept the 
Property in its as is, where is, with all faults conditions): 

(a) Donor is a limited liability partnership duly organized, validly existing and 
in good standing under the laws of the State ofFlorida and is qualified to do business and in good 
standing in Florida. 

(b) Donor has the authority and power, without the necessity ofconsent by any 
person, to enter into and carry out the terms ofthis Agreement. The persons who have or will have 
executed and/or delivered this Agreement, the Deed, and any and all other instruments, affidavits, 
certified resolutions and any other documents shall have been duly authorized to do so. 

(c) Donor has not granted to any other person or other legal entity any contract 
right or option whatsoever to acquire the Property or any portion or pmtions thereof or any interest 
therein, except as provided herein, in the public records, or in the Title Commitment. Donor shall 
not transfer or encumber any interest in the Property prior to Closing. 

(d) The execution and delivery ofthis Ag1:eement and the consummation of the 
transactions contemplated herein shall not and do not constitute a violation or breach by Donor of 



any provisions of any agreement or other instrum_ent to which it is a party or to which it may be 
subject al1hough not a party, or result in or constitute a violation or breach of any judgment, order, 
writ, injunction or decree issued against Donor, 

(e) Donor assumes all risk ofloss or damage to the Property prior to the Closing 
Date and warrants that the Property shall be transferred and conveyed to the CoU11ty in the same 
or essentially the same condition as of the date of Donor's execution of this Agreement, ordinary 
wear and tear excepted, and Donor shall prevent and refrain :from any use of the Property for any 
purpose or in any manner that would diminish its market or conservation value, Donor will 
maintain the landscaping (if any) and grounds in a comparable condition and will not engage in or 
permit any activity that would materially alter the Property. If the condition of the Property is 
materially altered by an act of God or other natural force beyond the control of Donor prior to 
Closing, however, the County may elect, at its sole option, to term.inate this Agreement and neither 
party shall have any farther obligations under this Agreement. 

(f) Subject to anything disclosed by the Survey, Donor represents and warrants 
that there are no parties other than Donor in occupancy or possession of any part ofthe Property. 

(g) Donor warrants to tl1e best of Donor's lmowledge and except as known by 
tl1e County that there are no private or governmental actions, suits, proceedings, or investigations 
pending against Donor or the Property which cmud have an adverse effect on tl1e Property. 

22. County Representations and Warranties. The County represents and warrants to 
Donor that the County has approved tl1is Agreement and the authority and power, without the 
necessity of consent by any person, entity or body, to enter into and carry out the terms of this 
Agreement and this Agreement is valid and binding on the County. 

23. Survival. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall sm·vive Closing, 
provided tl1at Donor's representations and warranties shall only survive for a period of two (2) 
years 

24. WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY, BUYER AND SELLER HEREBY 
EXPRESSLY COVENANT AND AGREE TO WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY 
JURY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LITIGATION OR JUDICIAL PROCEEDING 
RELATING TO, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, OR CONCERNING TIDS 
AGREEMENT OR THE CONDUCT, OMISSION, ACTION, OBLIGATION, DUTY, 
RIGHT, BENEFIT, PRIVILEGE, OR LIABILITY OF A PARTY HEREUNDER TO THE 
FULL EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. THIS WAIVER OF THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY IS SEPARATELY GIVEN AND IS KNOWINGLY, INTENTIONALLY, AND 
VOLUNTARILY MADE BY BUYER AND SELLER. BUYER AND SELLER HAVE HAD 
AN OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK LEGAL COUNSEL CONCERNING THIS WAIVER. 
THIS WAIVER IS INTENDED TO AND DOES ENCOMPASS EACH INSTANCE AND 
EACH ISSUE AS TO WHICH THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL WOULD OTHERWISE 
ACCRUE. BUYER AND SELLER FURTHER CERTIFY AND REPRESENT TO EACH 
OTHER THAT NO PARTY, REPRESENTATIVE, OR AGENT OF BUYER OR SELLER 
(INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THEIR RESPECTIVE COUNSEL) HAS 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement or its 
counterparts. 

DONOR: 

PATRIOT RIDGE, LLP 

Gre ry E. Matovina, as President 
ofMatovina & Company, Managing 
General Pminer ofPatriot Ridge, LLP 

~of•~~· 
KENNETH L. JOHNS, JR. 

Printed Name 

Witness as to Dor 

K/k~~\{~i!)( t\6\((ltl\AI 
Printed Name J 

STATE OF FLORJDA) 
COUNTY OF DUVAL) 

111is instrument was acknowledged before me by means of Gph~sical presence or D online 
notmization, thisl_'[~day of.fo•1., 20]1_ by Gregory E. Matovina, as President of~vina & 
Company, Managing General Pmtner of Patriot Ridge, LLP, on its behalf, who f.'.'.J is personally 
known to me or LJ has produced ___________ as identification. 

By: ~ (, (\_j_ ·- _(\ . • 
Notm·y Public, State of Florid~ 

~i'1J Pv.e., Natary Publ!G Stale of Floncta Print: KENNETH L. JOI INS, JR.R~ "ti Kan11eltl L Johns Jr:i ._ ,, ; My Comrn1ssrtm HH 040359 
"'i',:i:. .' ',fii Ex1~1re.s 09/0fJ/2024

0-fi-\.Q"' 

N~~,J~,,;.S, 



REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, TO DUYER OR SELLER OR TO ANY 
AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE OF BUYER OR SELLER (INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, THEIR RESPECTIVE COUNSEL) THAT THEY WILL NOT SEEK TO 
ENFORCE THIS WAIVER OF THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL. THIS W AIYER SHALL 
APPLYTO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY FUTURE AMENDMENTS, SUPPLEMENTS, 
AND/OR MODIFICATIONS TO TffiS AGREEMENT. THIS SECTION SHALL 
SURVIVE CLOSING. 

[Signatures commence on following page] 



COUNTY: 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 

Robert A. "Trey" Goodwin, III 
Chairman, Board ofCmmty Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

J,D. Peacock II 
Clerk of Circuit Court 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lynn M. I-Ioshihm:a 
County Attorney 



ExJ1ibit "A" 
Legal .Description of Land Donor is Donating to the County 

THAT PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 3 AND 5 OF THE AMERICAN PACIFIC 
INTERNATIONAL LTD PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2961, PAGE 4776), IN 
SECTIONS 4 AND 5, TOWNSIDP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, OKALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLOR1DA, LYING SOUTH OF SHOAL RIVER DR1VE, LYING EAST OF KA11L YN'S 
PRESERVE (PLAT BOOK 25, PAGE 69), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRlBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 
5; THENCE N 87°26'10" W ALONG THESOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 5, A DISTANCE 
OF 2708.33 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID KAITLYN'S PRESERVE; 
THENCE N 05°51'30" E ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF, ADISTANCE OF 1831.47 
FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE, PROCEED S 73°32'17" E, A DISTANCE 
OF 215.96 FEET; THENCE N 03°18'17" E, A DISTANCE OF 82.16 FEET; THENCE S 
73°32'17" E, A DISTANCE OF 19.95 FEET; THENCEN 43°11'14" E,ADISTANCEOF 152.08 
FEET; THENCE N 02°25'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 361.23 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
CURVED SOUTHERLY RlGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER 
DR1VE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 488.87 FEET; THENCE 
ALONG SAID RlGHT-OF-WAY AND CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
24°17'29", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 207.26 FEET,(CHORD BEARlNG = N 88°49'20" E, 
CHORD =205.71 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RlGHT-OF-WAYLINE,PROCEED S 
18°58'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 487.67 FEET; THENCE N 70°48'51" E, A DISTANCE OF 
386.07 FEET; TI-IENCE S 18°26'32" E, A DISTANCE OF 72.01 FEET; THENCE N 70°48'51" 
E, A DISTANCE OF 180.03 FEET; THENCE S 18°26'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 96.46 FEET; 
TI-IENCE N 84°34'02" E, A DISTANCE OF 372.45 FEET; TI-IENCE N 07°46'58" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 123.41 FEET; THENCE S 83°46'25" E, A DISTANCE OF 200.91 FEET; 
TI-IBNCE N 06°13'35" E, A DISTANCE OF 433.57 FEET; THENCE N 05°36'50" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 50.01 FEET; THENCE N 06°09'55" E, A DISTANCE OF 47.86 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SHOAL RIVER 
DRIVE; THENCE S 83°50'05" E ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 
419.67 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTJ-IERLY AND HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 2331.34 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND CURVE, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02°55'33", AN ARCDISTANCE OF 119.05 FEET, 
(CHORD BEARJNG = S 85°07'05" E, CHORD= 119.04 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, PROCEED S 23°59'22" W, A DISTANCE OF 456.50 F'EET; THENCE 
S 87°29'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 363.61 FEET; THENCE N 03°30'28" W, A DISTANCE OF 
429.64 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
SHOAL RlVER DR1VE, SAID POINT LYING IN A CURVE CONCA VE NORTHERLY AND 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 2331.34 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
AND CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04°05'59", AN AilC DISTANCE OF 
166.81 FEET, (CHORDBEARING = N 87°38'48" E, CHORD = 166.78 FEET) TO THE 
NORTI-IWEST CORNER OF nm BLOCKER PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3272, 
PAGE 3782); THENCE ALONG THE WEST AND SOUTH LINES THEREOF, THE 
FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS: l) S 07°04'54" E, A DISTANCEOF 598.18 FEET; 2) S 



87°51'11" E, A DISTANCE OF 718.35 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNEROF SAID 
BLOCKER PARCEL, LYING ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF 1HE AFORESAID SECTION 4; THENCE S 07°03'03" E 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE, ADISTANCE OF 2056.73 TO ITS INTERSECTION WITI-I THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE N 87°47'35" W ALONG SAID SOUTH 
SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1317.33 FEET TOTHE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID 
PARCEL CONTAINING 186.13 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 



Exhibit "A-1" 
Survey of'the Property being donated by Donor to the County 



• 
z 
0 

c,---< 
0> 
z "' = 
; 0 =I 

0~ ~ 
z§; e 
~~ 
R~ 
m:,, 
i- <

""-<. 
• 
~ 

~i· 

]z 
.~ 

~ 

~ ~-
fi.. 
ii'i,,!C;:i
-§§~-. 
~iiji:l1 •• "5 

+ 

Ii s~r•,;10· e - 1831,47' 

~~)
"* ... Q..

.,,,"ll,""'~..,.-- "C~~1;t~ ~Iii' 'II 
,.,.=~.., 

:; f//\ 

0 § $:
::0z - ~"~ -I [~ :i:: 

:I: gj) ~ 
- :;; "' ~ 

(Pu~m'S ' f 

1, 

i ~v~. 
I~I ~ 

i"~iaa ->'o_ 
_,<:>::,. -,a" g,~$ 
~,.!: 

~;~ 
~=~f i•••i 

& g
~2 

~~ 
! ' t»g !.f.:ffr 

g~ ];) 

f]~ '" 
µ, 

.~- ~ti' 

.-"' ""-, 6 T 

~!
j.!. 

." 11'_1 
j'I ii~ 

\ ii ~I 

J/~73• ♦ m 
I'~----,,rn,~•~"'-,;:,r,,-,;W, 1JZ CF '/iii• V'I-NOTOf FL,\.TlfO !::!:.6~ u!d. 

,-.£iA._~ 
SEE SHSE:T 2 FOR DESCRIPTJOW ANO SUR~ R£Jl'ORT 

DONA.110N PARCEL AT SHOAL RIVER GOLF' .ANO COUNlRY CLUB JN SECllONS 4 &: 
5, TOWN'SI-UP 2 NOR1H, RAN'GE 24 W-e.ST. OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA. 

"""""-,,, 
1ii"ri 
Wi 

,i 

NOTVMID i'ElHtltlT 
'JEE SIGNA'!W!E.AIID 
'Jr!EOOGNA!.RAISED 

JOWlll':.~,.S.U.~ ~ Of A nMIIA 
"""""P.~P.5.llJh,lftCo -~-..., .....""""""'"""' 

20 APR 2022 

GUSTIN--;-coTHERN & TUCKER, INC. 180500 
v.ND SURVEYING &. MAPPING ,_
{850)678-6141 LS. #3501~ 121 HART STREET www.()m1ll'W.lb1;.l:~m NfCEVJLLE. .Fl. 3257!!. 180500.06b 

"'' 
1 

www.()m1ll'W.lb1;.l:~m


Exhibit "B" 
Old Republic National Title Insurance Company Title Commitment~NQ, 1203075 



AMERICANLAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITklENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE 

L~SUED BY OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

NOTICE 

IMPORTANT-READ CAREFULLY: THIS COMMITMENT IS AN OFFER TO ISSUE ONE OR 
MORE TITLE INSURANCE POLICIBS. ALL CLAIMS OR REMEDIBS SOUGHT AGAINST THE 
COMPANY INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS COMMITMENT OR THE POLICY MUST BE 
BASED SOLELY IN CONTRACT. 

THIS COMMITIYIBNT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT OF mLE, REPORT OF THE CONDITION OF 
TITLE, LEGAL OPINION, OPINION OF TTI'LE, OR OTHER REPRESENTATION OF THE STATUS 
OF TITLE. THE PROCEDURES USED BY THE COMPANY TO DETERMINE INSURABILITY 
OF THE TffLE, INCLUDING ANY SEARCH AND EXAMINATION, ARE PROPRIBTARY TO THE 
COMPANY, WERE PERFOR.lvlED SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMPANY, AND 
CREATE NO EXTRACONTRACTUAL LIABILITY TO ANY PERSON, INCLUDING A PROPOSED 
JNSURED. 

11lE COMPANY'S OBLIGATION UNDER THIS COMMITMENT IS TO ISSUE A POLICY TO A 
PROPOSED INSURED IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A IN ACCORDANCE WITH TIIB TERMS 
AND PROVISIONS OF THIS COMMITMENT. TIIB COMPANY HAS NO LIABILTIY OR 
OBLIGATION INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS COMMITMENT TO ANY OTHER PERSON. 

COMMITMENT TO ISSUE 
POLICY 

Subjec:t to the Notice; Schedule D, Prut I-Requirements; Schedule B, Pali II-Exceptions; and the Commitinent C.;mditions., 
Old Republic NntiMal Title Jnsurunce C01n1Jany, a Flodd11 Corporntion (die 11Compauy'')

1 
eonuni.ts to issue the Policy 

t1.c:cordi.ng to I.he teOllS and pmvislorn of this Commitment. This Commitment is effective as of the Commitment Date shown 
ill Schedule A for eacl1 Policy described in Schedule A, only when the Co01pnny hns eute1-ed. in Schedule A both the 5pecified 
dollar amount .ns the Pmposed Polioy Amount and the .umue ofthe Proposed Insured. 

Ifall ofthe Schedule B1 Part I-Requirements have uot been met within 6 months ofter the Colll111itme11t Date
1 

this Coillll.Utment 
temUDates and the Company's liability and obligation end. 

11iis page is on!)• aparl <Jja 2016.ALTA Co111mitmrmlf.or Title Iwmranct1, Thfs Commitnumt is not valid without Ille Natico; tho Commihmmt 
lo lsSrU! Polley; ITw Commifmeut Comlitfons,- Sc.l1ed11leA,• Sch,ul,,le B, Part1-Regrril'mmmts,' and Sclu!du!e 11, Part JI-Exception~. 

OLD AEPUeUCNAUONAt fflLlllNSIJRANCliCOMPAflVIssued through the Oftfoe of .4 Star:t CompBJJy 
400 Sc:ondAt'C/lVo Sf}pfh, Mimcnpol/$, M1M!()$Q1r165f0I

NABORS GIBLIN & NIC!(ERSON, P.A. -17045 /612) 311-1111 
1500 MAHAN DRIVE 
SUITE200 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32,,--) 

_/:;_, 1--~ -
tthorizeMllguato1y- • ' - ~ Auesl 

FORM CF6R (8/l/16)(With Florida Madi.ficn1ion~) File Number~ 1203076 ePeil!c.yManager l \if3 

https://Co111mitmrmlf.or
https://t1.c:cordi.ng
https://eonuni.ts


Commitment Conditions 

1. DEFINITIONS 
11 

' •:(ii) 'Knowledge1 01· 'Kl1own1 Ac-tual ()-1' imputed Im.owledgei but not constructive 11Qfk.e b.l)p;u:ted by the Public lleco1'<1s, 
(b) nLnnd": The laud described in SchJ:dule A n11d affixed imptovemcnts that by law corn,Hlute rea.l p1-opel'ty, The term 11Lruid1t do~s not 

include any property beyond the line~ ofthe 1u'eo described lo Sr:l\i:dule A, nor nny 1'ight1titlet lnte1·est1e!itnt'¢, or ensem.ent iu abutting 
s.h'C~ls, rond!I, avenues, alleys, lnt1cs1 wnys1 01·wnkiways, bllt this does :nol' modify or limit tm: extent that a right ofaccess to nu.d :fi'Oni the 
Loud is to be fo:s,1red by tlu: PoHoy. 

(c) 11Moitgagw0: A mottgage, deed of tntst, or ot1ier secudtyimrh1unent, inclttding one evidtil(led by eJectro11fo 11leal1!!i authorized by fow, 
(d) 11Polt~yn, Each i!0nh·nct oftitle itmuauce, in nforJu 11d,opted by tho A.tue1'1can Land Title AssQcintfo11i issued or to be issued by fhe 

Contpru.zy pt.u-s\lautto this Cominitment. 
(o) HJJ.roposecl Tnst~d1'~ Enclt All:r!ion identified in Schedule A:ns the Pl'Ol)used fu.s1u·erl ofem:h Policy to be iss11ed 1mt'SUllllt to thill Caouultment, 
(t) 11Pl'Oposed Polfoy J\Jno1mt' t EHoh c1ollill' an1m1nt spccificcl in Sclu~dlllc A EIS tl1c Pt'ilposc:d Policy A.m01111t ofee.ch Policy to be 

hisued pt.il'SUa.at to this Commitment, 
(g) 11Pub1io Reoords.11: Recol'<ls establish(:ld umlei· state statutes nl the Com1nitruent Dute fot• tlte pmpos.e of impu.di11g co.ns.trnctivc notice of 

matters rd a Hug to real pt0pt:rty to purch11se1"S for value oud witho11f Knowledge, 
(h) 111'ltle11 : '!he es.fate or Jntcrest dcsol'lbed iu Schedule A. 

2, Jfall <ifthe Schedule B, Part l,,R.cqukenwnts have 1\(1-t been met wltlliJ~ the time 1mfod spcdfied in the Con111illine11t to .Tu$Ue Policy1 
this Commitment tem.tl.w1te!I aud the: CQnlJ.>any's liability wid obligation e.ud. 

3. The Con1pnt1y's liability ~nd ol>ligatfo11 is limited by nnd this Co1mlll1tneu.t is not valid witJ1ouh 
(•l tire Notice; 
(b) lhe Co.nunitment tn f.ssue Policy; 
(c) tbe Commitment Condition<::; 
(d) Sohedul• A; 
(c) Sobedultl B, Part I-Requirements; 
(f) Schedule B, Pt1rt lI-Ex.ceJ>ti-ons; ru1d 
(g) a cou11te.r:,.si,0nQtm'i; by the Com_psmy o.r ih; iss1ihtQ nge11t thl\t nk.'ly be in oleoIronic fo..tm. 

4, COMl'ANY'S lUG£lT TO AMEND 
The Company may nmcncl thb Commitment Elt nny time, I£ the Company lllll(U'tdS tl1is Commltu:u:ut to add a defect~ lieu, e11ci1mbtancc, 

adve.rse claim~ or olhei: 11w.Uer 1"e001-ded in the Public llecotdc:. prior to the Co11w.Utme~d Date, any linbility of the Company is limited by 
Commitment Condition S. The Colllpanyshnll not be linble for any othe,.• .iuuendn1ellt to thi!I Co1nmilmcnt. 

5. Lll\'ll'.l:ATlONS OF l.J'.ABILITY 
(n) The Company's liahility-unde1· Comn.titment Condltlou 4 is limited to the Pl'oposed lnsttred1s act1.1al Cl(l>e.ll.Se h101111-ed iu the iutervul 

6ehveen the Co1111,any's dcliveiy to lho P.1'0poscd fnsured of tlit Conunitm.ent and tho delive1y ofthe 1uueudect Com1uitmeo.ti 1'-C;&ulting 
fl.·om the Proposed lu.,m·ed's good faith 1-elfo..tlce to: 

(l) comply with the Schedule Bt Part J..Requb:et11ents; 
(ii) elin1Ulate, with the Com1}a11y's wdtt~n conseut1 anyScheduleB, Pad ll..-Exceptlons; 01· 

(iii) 0cqttil"e the T:it-te 01• Cf'ea.te tht Moi:tg-ngo cov~red by this Committu.twJ. 

(b) Th• Company ,!mil not be lia&le llndel' CoruJllitment Couditioll 5(n) if the P1-oposed h1Sured reqnested the omtndmeut or hod I<uowledge 
of the u:w.ttex rutd did not -J1otif.y ~be C(.)mpuny nbout it 1n wi1tiug. 

('J) TI1e Company wm only he.Ve liabilhyuud~· Co1I11llitmc:nt ComHt:ion 4 lf tbe Proposedlnsi.u:ed would not hnvc incurred the expe1u11:l hnd the 
Com1nitm.ent ineludad ·lhe added 1110tterwheu the Couunilm.cnt wa~ :first dcliveL-ed to the P1'0po~d Itumred, 

(d) Tbe Compnny's lfobility sholl not cxce~d tho lesser ofthe PtoJ.>o~d I.11s111-ed1s 11ctu~l ~pense U101111·ed in good fo.ith and de!ica·H,ed 
Ju Conunltmc,1t Co11ditlon, 5(n)(l) tlirouJjlt 5(•)(iii) 01· the Proposed Policy Amo1mt, 

(e) Th~ Co.mpttny .shall11ot bo liable fol' t11c cotiteut of the Tm11s11ctlo-n Jdcutificiition Data1 ifany. 
(f) lu uo event shidl the Compn11y be obligated to issue the Policy J'¢fcrred to :ln this Commitmim.t tinfoss all of the Schedule B, P11l'tl -

R-cquirc1110Uts have been met to the satisf.acfio11 of the CompWly, 
(g) l:1.1. any event, the Compnuy's linbiHty is limited by tho terms ruul Jll'OVillions of the Policy, 

Thio pagB lt .011l)• ap11rl qfa 2016AL7Jf (.,\mr111ftmu11tfo,•Titl11h1s11mnce, Tlria Commftmrmtia r,of mlid wlllwul rli11 Natluu; tf,(J Commftmont 10/ssuoPolicyl tit« 
Comr11iht1m~~Coi1tlflia11&J Scl,udulo.A,• Sd1tu:lule B, Pm"ll ..... ,Rttq11lrttut(IJ1fs,i' ,111d Schildula B, Pe,rt lt-ExCtJplitJnli. 

FORM CFfilt (8l1/1<i)(Wilh Florid11, Modifi~lion1;) 2of3 

https://Cf'ea.te
https://Com1uitmeo.ti
https://Cl(l>e.ll.Se
https://Reoords.11
https://pt.il'SUa.at
https://Contpru.zy


6,' LIABILITY OF THE COMPANV MUST llEBASlID ON Tms COMMl'l1\(EN1' 
(a) Only R P.1'0posed J11mu-ed identified iu Schedule A, aud UQ other poJ-sont .tuaymoke a clnim uud~r th.is ConllllltJ.nent, 
(b) h.1y Ql11im mugt be based in contract ruid 1u-..1st be rostclcted l3Ulely to the temu nnd pmvbion$ of this Conunitmcnt, 
(o) UntU the Polfoyb issued, this Conuuhiucnt, ns lnH 1-evised1is the c~olusive ond eutire ngrceu1eut l>etwee1t tho pal'tics with 

1-es.peot to the subjectmnttel' of tbls Commi1:t11eut and s1.11iem:des all pdor co1wnitment n.egotlntlous, 1'<:prcseutlllions, and 
P,roposals ofany kin~.l. whether written oi: ornlJ express 01· imp!iecl, 1'elntblB to tho suhJcot mntte1• oftbis Co1llll1itment, 

(d) l'bc dcletlon ot moditumtiou ofauySd1ecfole B1Patt ll-Eii:l'.lcptlon does not l!Ollstituto an ogt•ceme.nt 01· oblig11.tlo11 to pr-0vide 
cov~1:agc beytmcl the tcnns mid p1'0Vlsions of this CO!l:Wiitlllent 01· th<: P~lley, 

(e) Any nmendment 0l' endorsement to this Co111..ll.Utm-cmt nmd be ID wdtlug and nutl1entionted by at>Crson aulh01i~cd by the 
COll11)£11lY, 

(f) Whou the l'olioyis issued, oll liobllity end obligotio11 under flils Conuultmeutwil[ end ,wd the Company's only liability will bo 
under tho Poltoy, 

7, IF 'l'lUS COlvIMl'l'Mt,1N1' HAS JlF,EN ISSUED Bl( ANISSUING AG:l:N'l' 
The issuing pgei.it 1~ du, Compllny's agent only fo1· the llmlted pu11>os~ of issuing title insurnnoe aollllll.lbnents and policies. 111e.Jss1dng nge11t 
is uot the Compnny'$ agent fur the 1nupose ofp.ooviding closiug or settlement services-. 

8, l'RO-J!OllMA POLI CV 
'l'he Compnny may provide, at the l'equest of n Proposed lmm·cd, 1:1 pro-fiu·Jua polioy illnstrating the coverage that tlw Compooy iuay 
provide, Apro..fot1w1 poUcy ndt11e1· l'efiects. the status ofTitlo nt the lim.c that the p.m-foi-mn policy is delivered to nPl-oposed lnsurcd1 nQJ' is 
lt fl commitment to instU.'(;, 

1'/ifa.JJttg~ ls 01-ily apat!ofa401ffALTA Co11mtirma11tfa1• 1'itla I11smr111c<1, T/rll1 CD111111l/m(Jllf is n(J/ valftl wilhorrf Jf1u No/ice/ tlta Commitm611/ to /,1,1lte Po1icy,• Ilia 
C1Jmmltmant Co11dhlo11s; Sc11t1dt11'1A; flclwlulo.B, 11artl -Roquiremonlsl am} Sahodul1JB1 J'-l'qit ll-E~·cnpt1011s, 

FORM CF6R (8/1/16)(With Florldn Modi:lkntioru1-) 3 of3 

https://Co111..ll
https://ogt�ceme.nt


400 Second,\;>l,nus,7-•jffi!i'f,J\Tii1""'1>18 55401, (612)371,l 111 

OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICAN LAND TYJ'LE ASSOCIA110N 
COMMJI'MENT 

Schedule A 

Transaction rnantification Data for reference only: 

Commihnent Numbea·: Revision Number: Jss1dng Office Filo Nmnbei·: Issuing Office: 
1203075 None 019•15120-2022(1) 1704501 

Property Add1·ess: Loan ID Number: ALTA Universal ID: Issuing Agent: 
Nabo,·s Giblin & Nickerson,

0 Shoal River Dl'ive None P.A. 
Crestview, FL 32539 

1. Commitment Date: January 10, 2022 nt 11:00 PM 

2, Policy to ho Issued: Pl'oposed Polley Amount; 

OWNER'S: ALTA Owner's Polley (06/17/06). (With Florida Mo1Jilicatlo11s) $842,683,00 

Proposed Insured: Okaloosa County, a pollt!enl subdivision of the state of Flm•ida 

MORTGAGEE: ALTA Lonn Policy (06/17/06). (With Florida ModifJcatlous) $842,683.00 

Proposed Insured: To be determined , its successors and/or assigns•• their interest may appOllr 

MORTGAGEE: 

Proposed b1Su1•ed: 

3. The estate 01· interest in the Land deso1·ibed or referred to in this Commiltnent is FEE SIMPLE (ldo11tlfy estate oove1·ed, i.e., 
fee, leasehold, etc.) 

4. Title lo the estate 01· interest ill the La11d is at the Commitment Dale vested in: 
Pali'lot Ridge LLJ.', a Fiol'ida limited ilabllity partnership 

5. The Land ls described as follows: 
See Exhibit A 

Old Republic National Title lnsurnnce Company 

AUTHORJZED SIGNATORY 
Nabol's Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 

1704501 

'l'hls page is ooly e part of n 2016 ALTA Commitment for Title Insul'!moe, 'J'hls Comudlmcnt is not valid without the Notice;. the Commit1mmt to Issua Polfoyj !he 
Cam1nlhmmt Conditions; Schedt1le A; Schedule B) Part I,.. Requirements; aud Schedule B, Pint II - Excepdous, 

rnRM Cl'6R SCH. A(8/l/l6J(Wilh Florid• Modlfioatlons) Pago lof1 CommUme11tNumbor: [200075 

https://842,683.00


OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICANLAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMYfMENT 

Scl1edule B-I 

Issuing Office File Number: 019-15120-2022(1) 

Requirements 

All of the following Requb-ements must be met: 

I. The Proposed Insured must notify the Company in writlng ofthe name of any pmty not rofo!Ted to in this Commitment who 
wlll obtain an interest in the Land or who will make a loan 011 the Land. The Company may then make additional 
Requirements 01· Exceptions. 

2. l'ay the agreed amount for the estate or interest to bo insured. 

3, l'ay the premiums, foes, ru1d clrnrges fo1· the Policy to tho Company. 

4. Documents satisfttctory to the Company that convey tho Title or create the Mot·tgago to be insured, or botl1, must be properly 
authol'ized, executed, dellvared, and recorded in tho Public Records. 

A, Wmanty Deed /\'om Patriot Ridge LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership, a Florida limited parh1e1·shlp, 
executed by a general partner(s) with authority, to the proposed insured purchaser(s). 

5. An update of tho title sout•oh must bo oompletedjustprlor to tho closb1g and the commitment t11\1st be endorsed to requko 
clearance of, or take exception for, any addltlonal title defects or advet·se matte1'S found. 

6, Sntfsfacto1y evidence must be fl1rnished establishing that Patl'iot Ridge LLl', a Florida limited JlabJllty partnership is duly 
organized, validly rod.sting, and in good standing under the laws ofthejurisdlctlon offormation from the date ofacquisition 
tlirough the date ofu•an,fo1•. 

7. Conllrn1 compllauco with the partnership ag!'eemenl ooncemlng the ailenatJon ofroal property, Record an affidavit fi:0111 0110 

or mo1·e of the geneml partners stating: (I) that the genernl partnor(s) executh1g the lnstl'\unent(s) to bo insm·ed is/a!'o 
authorized to do so under the partnenship agreement or that all part1101s have consented to the Instruments to he lnsnred; (2) 
the names of the existing general pm-tue1-s; (3) that any partners that are legal or oommerclnl entitles have 11ot boon dissolved; 
(4) that ncithet' the pm'h1ershlp 1101· any partners has been a debl:01' In bank,•uptcy; and (5) that the pm·h101~hlp has boen in tbll 
fore• and effect under a valid pnrh1ership agreement dut'ing tho entire time that the partnership has held title to tl1e real 
properly. 

8. Confirm thatthe limited liability partnership has flied a statement of qualification with fl1e Secrotm·y ofState to become a 
lfmlted Uabillty partnership and is in good standing as a lhnited JiabJllty partnership as of the dato of the t1·a11Aaotion to be 
in.sured, 

9. If any general parll101(s) Js a legal or oommernial entity, reqoire a good standing certificate from tl1e date ofpul'Ohase th1·011gh 
to the present time, 

10. l10R INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY: 2021 taxes were paid under rocelpt number 3 !5-21001797, on Decembei• B, 
2021, Parcel/Account JD# 05-2N-23-0000-0008-0010, the gl'Oss amount being $7,160.58. 

TJtis page is only npart of a 2016 AL1'A Com1ult111e11tfor Tille Jnsura11ce. This Commltn1c11t Is not valid wllhont the NoUoo; lhe Conunltmeut to I!lsuc Polloy; li1e 
Co1nInilmcnt Couditkms;8chedul~ A; Scl1edule l3, P.nrt J-Requirements; lllld SollecMe B1 Part Jl-Bxceptlons, 

FORM CP6R SCH. B•I (8/I/J6)(With FlorldoModifioatlon,) Poge2 of7 Con11nftine11I Number: 1203075 

https://7,160.58


OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENT 

Seliecl ulc B-1 

Issuing Ofilce File Number: 0l9-1512.0-2022(1) 

11. FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY: 2021 taxes were paid under receipt 11umbe1· 315-21001797, on December 8, 
2021, Parcel/Account ID# 04-2N-23-0000-0001-003A, the gross mnount being$1,652.05, 

12. FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY, the following constitute, a 24-month Chain ofTitle preceding the effective 
date hereof mtd constitutes conveyances and tl'!lllsfors of ownership only: Nothing Found 

TJ1is pttg,e: ff:I only opnrt of a.20 l6 AL'I'A Con11uitment for Thie Jnsur1111oe, Thls Com.mil111e11( Is not valid without the Notice; tho CommUn1cnt to Issue Polfoy; 1he 
Con1111itm1mt Co11ditlon9; Schcdulo A; Schedule B1 Pmt I .... Requll'ements; tmd Schedule B, Pait![ ... Exceptlot1s, 

FORM CF6R SCH. B-1 (B/l/l6)(Wlth FlorltlaModlficntlons) Pa,go 3 of7 Comrnl1111e;nfNumbcr: 120307.S 

https://being$1,652.05


OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENT 

Schednlc D•lI 

lssulng Offico File Number: 019-15120-2022(1) 

Excc11tions 

THIS COMMITMENT DOES NOT REPUBLISH ANY COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTION, OR 
LIMITATION CONTAINED IN ANY DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN THIS COMMITMENT TO THE 
EXTENT THAT THE SPECIFIC COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTION, OR LIMITATION VIOLATES 
STATE OR FEDERAL LAW BASED ON RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, 
GENDER IDENTITY, HANDICAP, FAMILIAL STATUS, OR NATIONAL ORIGJN. 

The Policy wlll not IJ1sme against loss or damage resulting from the terms and provisions of any lease or easement 
identlfied iL1 Schedule A, and wlll lnclucle the followl11g Exceptions unless cleared to the satl.sfoctio11 ofthe 
Company: 

I. De~ota, liens, enomnbrances, advo1~e clabns or other matters, if any, created, fn·st appearing in the Public 
Records or attaching subsequent to the Commlttneut Date horeofbut prior to the date tl10 Proposed Insu1·ed 
acquires foi• value ofrecord fl1e ostato 01· Interest or Mo1tgage the1•eon covered by this Commltment. 

2, a. General or special taxes and assessments required to be paid in tho year 2022 and subsequent years, 
b. Rights or claims ofparties in possession not recorded hi tho Public Records. 
c, Any encl'Oachmont, enmnnbrance, violation, val'iallon 01· advei·se circumstance that would be &,closed 

by an Inspection or m1 accurate a11d complete laud survey ofthe Land mid Inspection oftl1e Land, 
d. Easements or claims of easements not recorded in the Public Recot•ds, 
e. Any lien, 01· right ton lien, for services, labor or materhll furnished, imposed by law and not 1·eco1·ded in 

the Public Records. 

3. Any Owner's PoHoy Issued pumuant hereto will contain under Schedule B the followlng exception: Any 
adva1we ownel'shlp a/aim by the Stdte ofFlorida b)' l'lght ofsovereignty to ,my pol'tlon ofthe Land Insured 
hereunder, Including submerged, Plied and artificially exposed lands, and lands aaaretec/ to such lands, 

4, Any lien provided by County Ordinance or by Chapter 159, F.S., in favor of any city, town, village or poi't autbodty, 
for unpaid service charges for services by any water system.,, sewer systems 01· gas systems serving tho fond 
described herein; and any Hen for waste fees in favor of any 00111\ty or munlclpallty. 

5. lllgress & Eg,·ess Easement Agreomout rooorded in 0,R, Book 2961, Page 4781, Public Records of Okaloosa 
Co1mly, l11orlda, 

6, Easement i·eoorded in 0,R. Boal, 614, Page 261, Publi-0 Rooords of Okaloosa County, Florida, 

7, OJI, gas, mineral, or other 1·eservatlons as set forth in deed by 'Mad Timbe1· Company, a New York Oenerni 
Partnol'ship recorded in 0,R. Book 1242, Pnge 1662, Publlc Records of Okaloosa County, Flol'ida, No 
determination lu1S been made as to tho current record owner for the Interest excepted herein. 

8, Ensement recorded in 0,R. Book 1252, Poge 1625, Public Records of Okaloosa County, Flol'ida. 

'I'his pnge Is only a pnrt of n 20 [6 AL'I'A Commitment .tbr Tltlo Insumne1e, Thi.<:: Commitment Is not valid wJthouttl10 Notk:i:;; tba.Com111itment-10 Issue 
Policy; the Com·mltnu:ntConditlons; Sohadule A; Schedule B, Pnrt I -Rm1ulromen!s~ and Schedule B, Prut JI....,. Exceptlons, 

FORM CF6ll SCH. B•Il (Bll/l6)(Wilh Florido Modificalloas) P,go 4 of? CommlimontNumher; 1203075 



OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICAN LAND TrFLEASSOCfATION 
COMMITMENT 

Schedule U-Il 

Issuing Office File Number: 019-15120·2022(1) 

9. Distl"ibutlon Easement rooorded in O,R. Book 1252, Page 1628. Public Records ofOkaloosa County, Florida. 

10, Easemont recorded in O,R. Book 1272, Poge 626, Publlc Reco1·ds of Okaloosa County, Florida, 

11, Actual Acreage Content ls neither .inslll'ed nal' guaranteed, 

12, Rlglits of the le,sees under uru-ecorded leases. 

This: p~gc Is only a pmt ofa2016 ALTA Commllmonl for 'fltlc fosurnnce. This Commitment l6 not valid without the NollCej tltei Commftmeot to lssuo 
Pollcyj tho Commlunont Can<lltlmls; Sohedule A~ Schedule B~ Pait 1..... RcquJmmentfl; and Sahednle B, Part II ... Exceptions. 

FORM CF6R SCH, B-11 (8/l/16)(Wlth Florida Mocllfio,llons) Pagel o/7 Commltiucnt Number: 1203015 



OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

COMMITMENT 
Exhibit A 

CommltJUent Numb"1': Ili•ulng Office File Num be,·, 

1203075 019-1512_0-2022(1) 

THAT PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 3 AND 5 OF 11-lE AMERICAN PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL LTD 
PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2961. PAGE 4772), IN SECTIONS 4 AND 5, TOWNSHIP 2 
NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF SHOAL RIVER 
DRIVE AND A PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ADJACENT THERETO, LYING EAST OF 
KAITLYN'S PRESERVE (PLAT BOOK 25, PAGE_fil!), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGIN AT TIIB SOUTI-:lEAST CORNER OF SAID SEC11ON 5; THENCE N 87°26'10" WALONG 
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 5, A DISTANCE OF 2708.33 FEET TO TBE SOUTHEAST 
CORNER OF SAID KAITLYN'S PRESERVE; THENCE N 05°5 l '30" E ALONG Tl-lE EAST LINE 
TIIBREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1926.96 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY 
AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 973.87 llEET; THENCE DEPARTJNG SAID EAST LINE, PROCEED 
ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°55'51 ", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
236.78 FEET, (CHORD BEARING'- S 70°30'57" E, CHORD= 236.20 FEET); '11-lENCE N 54°23'37" 
E, A DJ.STANCE OF 23.45 FEET; THENCE N 45°14'58" E, A DISTANCE OF 51.31 l<'EET; 1HENCB 
N 39°24'43" E, A DISTANCE OF 68.39 FEET; THENCE N 27°09'58" E, A DISTANCE OF 56.70 
FEET; THENCE N 25°00'57" E, A DISTANCE OF 57.12 FEET; Tl-lENCE N 19°43'38" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 32.08 FEET; 11-lENCE N 06°58'26" E, A DISTANCE OF 34.92 FEET; Tl-lENCE N 
75050151" W, A DISTANCE OF 28,94 FEET; Tl-lENCE N 48°46'55" W, A DISTANCE OF 33.64 
FEET; THENCE N 06051 '29" E, A DISTANCE OF 49.17 FEET; THENCE N 03°22'52" W, A 
DISTANCE O:F 37.49 FEET; THENCE N 37°08107" E, ADISTANCE OF 97,98 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THB CURVED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER 
DRIVE, LYING lN A CURVE CONCAVE NORTl-lERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 488.87 
FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY AND CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE 
OF 17°29'04", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 149,l 8 FEET, (CHORD BFARING ~ N 85039'23" E, CHORD 
= 148.60FEBT); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RJGIIT-OF-WAYLJNF,PROCEBDS 49°16'56" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 36.06 FEET; Tl'lENCE S 05°10'28" w, ADISTANCE OF 29.45 FEEl'; THENCE S 
20°44'31" W, A DISTANCE OF 4.65 FEET; THENCE S 14035'20" E, A DISTANCE OF 31.98 FEET; 
THENCE S 19°11150" E, A DISTANCE OF 394.33 FEET; THENCE N 70°48'51" E, A DISTANCE OF 
566.09 FEET; THENCE S 18°26'56" E, A DISTANCE OF 82,27 FEET; THENCE N 84034'02" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 411.50 FEET; Tl-ffiNCE N 07047'28" E, A DISTANCE OF 82.18 FEET; THENCE S 
83046'25" E,ADISTANCEOF 199.76FEET; Tl-lENCEN 06013'35" E, ADISTANCEOF337.31 
FEET; Tl-lENCE N 49°40'-08" E, A DISTANCE OP 13.84 FEET; lHENCEN 07°10'34" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 37,88 FEET; THENCE N 05°36'50" w, A DISTANCE OF 54.30 FEET; T}lENCE N 
57'18'48" E, A DISTANCE OF 16.30 FEET TO APOJ.NT ON TI-IE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY 

Thls p11ge Is only apart of a 2016 ALTA Commitment for Title fasurauce. Tili:i Commltnmnf rs not va!id wlthont tho Notlr.e; the Commitment to Issue 
Por1cy; the Com.mltmo11t C011dlflons; SDltedulo A; Schedule B, l)11rt·I ~ R~q11iren1011rs; and Schednle B, Port II~ ExceJ1tlo11s, 

FORM CF6R BXfllBIT A(8/l/16)(Wilh Florldn Mocllfionllons) CommltmentNumbl;ll': 1203075 

https://ADISTANCEOF337.31


OLD REPUBLICNATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 
COMMITMENT 

Exhibit A 

Commitment Number: Issuing Ofl1cc FIie Number: 

1203075 019-15120-2022(1) 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE; THHNCB ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, THE FOLLOWING TWO 
(2) CALLS:!) S 83°50'05"E, A DISTANCE OF 360.25 FEET TO A POINTON A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHERLY AND HAVINO A RADIUS OF 2331,34 FEET; 2) THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 00°44'09", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 29,94 FEET, (CHORD 
BEARING= S 84°01'23" E, CHORD= 29,94 FEET); TfIBNCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, 
PROCEED S 80045149" E, A DISTANCE OF 86,87 FEET; THENCE S42002'38" W, A DtSTANCE 
OF 38.71 FEET; THENCES 15°46'33" W,ADISTANCE OF 46.93 FEET; THENCBS 17°37'58" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 47,80 FEET; THENCE 5 58°04'25" W, A DISTANCE OF 43.26 FEET; THENCE S 
01 °29'40" W, A DISTANCE OF 37.09 FEET; THENCE S 30°27'15" W, A D(STANCE OF 56.26 FEET; 
THENCE S 29011113" W, A DISTANCE OF 45,86 FEET; THENCE S 19°48'06" W, A DISTANCE OF 
51.51 FEET; THENCE S 21°15135" W, A DISTANCE OF 47.85 FEET; THENCE S 14°27'50" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 50.28 FEET; THENCE S 87°29'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 370.18 FEET; THENCE N 
03°30128'1W, A DISTANCE OF 429,48 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, LYING IN A CURVJJ CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS 
OF 2331.34 FEET; 11-IBNCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND CURVE, 1HROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04°05'591', AN ARC DISTANCE OF 166,81 FEET, (CHORD BEARING N 
87°38148" E, CHORD =156.78 FEET) TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE BLOCKER 
PARCEL {OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK :!2-'lbl'AGE 3782); THENCE ALONG TI-IB WEST AND 
SOUTH LINES THEREOF, Tfffi FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS: !) S 07°04154'1E, A DISTANCE 
OF 598.18 FEET; 2) S 87'51111" E, ADISTANCEOF718.35 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF SAID BLOCKER PARCEL, LYING ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF nm 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE AFORESAID SECTION 4; THENCE S 07°03'03" E ALONG SA:D 
EAST LINE, ADISTANCE OF 2056,73 TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH TfIB SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 4; THENCE N 87°47'35" W ALONG SAID SOUTH SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 
1317.33 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID PARCEL CONTAINING 187.4:3 ACRES, 
MOREORLESS, 

This Jmge is only atml of n:2016 AL'rA Comrnltmont· for Titie 111suranoo, This Commitment is nol valld·,YJtlmut the No1ice; the Commitment to ]ssuf! 
Polley; the, CommUment Conditions~ So1mdulo A; Schedule B, P11rt [ -Requirements~ nnd Schedule B~ Port H-Bxc:Cl)tio11s.. 

PORM CF6R EXl-l!BIT A(8/l/16)(W!th Florldn Mo<lifloatlons) Page 7 of7 Commltuim,t Number: 1203075 

https://ADISTANCEOF718.35


EXHIBIT 4 

PARK DONATION AGREEMENT 

THIS PARK DONATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and effective as of 
__________, 2023 (the "Effective Date"), by and between PATRIOT RIDGE, 
LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership ("DONOR"), and OKALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, a political subdivision ofthe State ofFlorida ("County"). 

WITNESS ETH: 

WHEREAS, the Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan Recreation and Open Space and 
Element as well as the Okaloosa County Land Development Code, require the establishment of 
recreational areas in cortjunction with residential developments of50 lots or greater; and 

WHEREAS, Donor and County have entered into a development agreement pursuant to 
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, establishing the entitlements and obligations of a master planned 
development known as Patriot Ridge which allows the development of up to 657 single family 
dwelling units and which requires, among other things the donation of a 186.13± acre parcel to be 
used as a neighborhood park and which provides public access to the Shoal River; and 

WHEREAS, Donor is the fee simple owner of that certain parcel of land in Okaloosa 
County, Florida, containing 186.13± acres as more particularly described on Exhibit "A" attached 
hereto and shown on the map attached as Exhibit "A-1" (the "Property"), which is part of the 
master planned community !mown as Patriot Ridge; and 

WHEREAS, Donor desires and proposes to donate the Property to the County in fee 
simple as a park in fulfillment ofthe development agreement; and 

WHEREAS, both the Donor and the County have a vested interest in realization ofa high
quality public recreational space in association with the Patriot Ridge development, commit to 
working jointly in good faith to complete their respective responsibilities as more particularly set 
forth in this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the County finds it is in the best interest of the public to enter into this 
Agreement with Donor to establish the specific tenns on which the Property will be conveyed to 
the County. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals above and for other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency ofwhich is acknowledged, it is mutually agreed 
as follows: 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by 
reference. 

2. Donation. Upon and subject to the te1ms ofthis Agreement, Donor agrees to donate 
and convey to the County and the County agrees to accept all Donor's rights, title, and interest to 



the Property. The closing of the conveyance of the Property ("Closing") shall take place via mail 
away delivery ofclosing documents, within one hundred eighty calendar (180) calendar days from 
the date of approval of this Agreement. 

3. Right of Entry. Donor agrees that from the date this Agreement is executed by 
Donor, the County and its agents, upon reasonable notice, shall have the right to enter the Property 
for all lawful purposes in connection with this Agreement. Donor shall deliver possession of the 
Property to County at Closing. 

4. Title, Appraisal & Survey. 

(a) Attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "B" is a current title insurance 
commitment (the "Title Commitment") issued by Old Republic National Title Company (the "Title 
Insurer") through title agent Nabors Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. through the Attorneys' Title Fund, 
covering the Property. The title policy issued for the Property at Closing shall be in an amount 
equal to the $2.05 million that amount established within the Development Agreement between 
the parties. The cost of the Title Commitment and title insurance policy shall be borne by Donor. 
The Title Commitment shall commit the Title Insurer to issue an owner's title insurance policy to 
the County (which shall be delivered within a reasonable time after Closing) covering the Property, 
reflecting title to the Property to be marketable and insurable, subject to the Permitted 
Encumbrances and, the standard printed exceptions contained in the title insurance policy unless 
otherwise addressed by the County. Donor shall execute at or prior to Closing, in favor ofthe Title 
Insurer, such affidavit or affidavits, and such other documents, acceptable to the Title Insurer as 
are sufficient to allow for deletion of standard exceptions from the Title Commitment other than 
the Permitted Encumbrances. 

(1) The "Permitted Encumbrances" include the following: 

i. All existing building restrictions, zoning regulations, and 
local laws, governing the Property and the use thereof. 

ii. Items 3, 5, 6, 8, 9, 10 of Schedule B II of the title insurance 
commitment. 

(2) With the exception of the items listed tmder ii. Above, Donor shall 
satisfy the County title exceptions set forth in Schedule II of the Title Connnitment attached as 
Exhibit "B" prior to Closing. 

(b) Attached as Exhibit "A-1" is a survey of the boundaiy of the Property perfo1med by a 
professional surveyor and mapper licensed by tl1e State ofFlorida and done in accordance with the 
Florida Minimum Technical Standards for Land Surveys. The survey identifies a11y easements 
located on the Property. 

(C) Donor shall obtain an appraisal for the value of the Property fuat will be used to 
establish the value of the Property. The appraisal shall be completed within ninety (90) days of 
execution of this agreement and shall be used for valuation offue Donation. 



5. Prorations. All governmental and association taxes, assessments, and charges for 
the year of Closing shall be paid by Donor pursuant to Florida law at or before Closing. 

6. Closing Procedure and Documents. At Closing: 

(a) Donor shall execute and deliver or cause to be delivered to the County a 
general warranty deed ("Deed") in accordance with Section 689.02, Florida Statutes, conveying 
the fee simple title to the Property including all timber and mineral rights, providing that the 
Prope1ty shall be used solely for public park, recreation, and community uses and any related 
supporting infrastructure; 

(b) Donor shall execute and deliver to the Title Insurer an affidavit, confirming, 
among other things, that there have been no changes to the conditions of title from that shown in 
the Title Commitment in order for the Title Company to delete the "gap" exception; 

(c) Donor shall execute and deliver instruments satisfactory to the County and 
the Title Insurer reflecting the proper power, good standing and authorization for the conveyance 
of the Property from Donor to the County hereunder; 

(d) Donor shall execute and deliver to the County and the Title Insurer a 
FIRPTA affidavit in form and substance acceptable to the County and the Title Insurer; 

(e) Donor and the County shall mutually execute and deliver to each other a 
closing statement in customary form; and 

(f) Donor shall execute and deliver such other documents as may be required 
to effectuate the purpose of this Agreement, including but not limited to any donation forms 
required by the IRS as instructed by Donor's accountant, particularly IRS Form 8283. In turn, the 
County aclmowledges and agrees to execute the Donee Acknowledgement on the IRS 8283, once 
completed by Donor's accountant and submitted to the County for execution at the time of or after 
the donation. 

7. Closing Expenses. The Donor shall pay the documentary stamp tax on the Deed, 
the costs ofthe survey, its legal expenses, recording costs for the Deed, and owner's title insurance 
premium and search fee. The County shall pay its legal expenses, any of its Property investigation 
expenses, and all of its other costs associated with this transaction. 

9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterpruts, each 
of which shall be deemed to be an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same 
Agreement. 

10. Modification Must be in Writing. No modification or termination ofthis Agreement 
shall be valid unless executed in writing and signed by the applicable duly authorized 
representatives of Donor and the County. 



11. No Waiver. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless 
it is in writing and signed by the party against whom it is asserted, and any such written waiver 
shall only be applicable to the specific instance to which it relates and shall not be deemed to be a 
continuing or foture waiver. 

12. Assignability. Except as may be specifically provided in this Agreement, this 
Agreement may not be assigned by Donor or the Coimty without the written consent of the other 
party. 

13. Time. Time is of the essence of all provisions of this Agreement. 

14. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State ofFlorida. The invalidation ofone or more 
of the terms of this Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remaining terms. It is agreed 
venue for determination of such disputes shall be in Okaloosa County. 

15. Notices. Any notice hereunder must be in writing and delivered personally or by 
United States Mail, Registered or Certified, Return Receipt Requested; United States Express 
Mail; e-mail; or Federal Express or equivalent courier service, and shall be effective only if and 
when received by the party to be notified. For purposes ofnotice, the addresses of the parties shall 
be set forth below or as may be designated by notice to the other from time to time. 

Donor: Gregory E. Matovina, 
Patriot Ridge LLP 
12443 San Jose Boulevard, Suite 504 
Jacksonville, FL 32223 

County: John Hofstad 
County Administrator 
1250 N. Eglin Parkway 
Shalimar, Florida 32579 

With a copy to: Elliot L. Kampert. AICP 
Growth Management Director 
1250 N. Eglin Parkway 
Shalimar, FL 32579 

16. Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the 
parties and there are no agreements, representations or warranties, oral or written which have not 
been incorporated herein. 

17. Applicability. This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefits 
ofthe parties hereto and their respective successors and, to the extent that assignment is permitted 
hereunder, their assigns. 

18. Inte1pretation. This Agreement has been negotiated by the parties hereto at arm's 
length. The parties represent and warrant to one another that each has, by counsel or otherwise, 



actively participated in the finalization of this Agreement, and in the event of a dispute concerning 
the interpretation of this Agreement, each party hereby waives the doctrine that an ambiguity 
should be interpreted against the party which has drafted the document. Captions used in this 
Agreement are for convenience or reference only and shall not affect the construction of any 
provision of this Agreement. Whenever used, the singular shall include the plural, the plural shall 
include the singular, and gender shall include all genders. 

19. Real Estate Collllllission. The County and Donor represent and warrant each to the 
other that neither has entered into any agreement or taken any other action which would result in 
a real estate brokerage commission, finder's fee or other similar charge being payable on account 
of the Closing of the Property. Each party hereto agrees to indemnify and hold ha11nless the other 
against any commission, fee or charge and all related costs and expenses arising out ofthe actions 
of the indemnifying party. 

20. Remedies. 

(a) If any party to this Agreement materially defaults under the terms hereof, 
then the non-defaulting party shall give the defaulting party thirty (30) calendar days' notice and 
a right to cure such breach with that time period. 

(b) • Should the County fail to timely cure a default in meeting their obligations 
set forth herein, Donor may seek any and all remedies available to it in law or equity. 

(c) Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither party shall be liable for 
consequential or punitive damages under this Agreement. 

21. Donor Representations and Warranties. Donor hereby represents and wairnnts to 
the County as follows ( and except as specifically set forth below, the County shall accept the 
Property in its as is, where is, with all faults conditions): 

(a) Donor is a limited liability partnership duly organized, validly existing and 
in good standing under the laws of the State ofFlorida and is qualified to do business and in good 
standing in Florida. 

(b) Donor has the authority and power, without the necessity of consent by any 
person, to enter into and cany out the terms of this Agreement. The persons who have or will have 
executed and/or delivered this Agreement, the Deed, and any and all other instruments, affidavits, 
certified resolutions and ai1y other documents shall have been duly authorized to do so. 

(c) Donor has not granted to any other person or other legal entity any contract 
right or option whatsoever to acquire the Property or any portion or portions thereof or any interest 
therein, except as provided herein, in the public records, or in the Title Commitment. Donor shall 
not transfer or encumber any interest in the Property prior to Closing. 

(d) The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the consunnnation ofthe 
transactions contemplated herein shall not and do not constitute a violation or breach by Donor of 



any provisions of any agreement or other instrument to which it is a party or to which it may be 
subject although not a party, or result in or constitute a violation or breach of any judgment, order, 
writ, injunction or decree issued against Donor. 

(e) Donor assumes all risk ofloss or damage to the Property prior to the Closing 
Date and warrants that the Property shall be transferred and conveyed to the County in the same 
or essentially the same condition as of the date of Donor's execution of this Agreement, ordinary 
wear and tear excepted, and Donor shall prevent and refrain from any use of the Property for any 
purpose or in any manner that would diminish its market or conservation value. Donor will 
maintain the landscaping (if any) and grounds in a comparable condition and will not engage in or 
permit any activity that would materially alter the Property. If the condition of the Property is 
materially altered by an act of God or other natural force beyond the control of Donor prior to 
Closing, however, the County may elect, at its sole option, to te1minate this Agreement and neither 
party shall have any further obligations under 1his Agreement. 

(f) Subject to anything disclosed by 1he Survey, Donor represents and warrants 
that there are no paities other than Donor in occupancy or possession of any part of the Property. 

(g) Donor warrants to the best of Donor's lmowledge and except as known by 
1he County that there are no private or governmental actions, suits, proceedings, or investigations 
pending against Donor or the Property which could have an adverse effect on the Property. 

22. County Representations and Warranties. The County represents and warrants to 
Donor that the County has approved this Agreement and the authority and power, without the 
necessity of consent by any person, entity or body, to enter into and carry out the terms of this 
Agreement and this Agreement is valid and binding on the County. 

23. Survival. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall survive Closing, 
provided that Donor's representations and warranties shall only survive for a period of two (2) 
years 

24. WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY. BUYER AND SELLER HEREBY 
EXPRESSLY COVENANT AND AGREE TO WAIVE THE RIGHT TO A TRIAL BY 
JURY IN CONNECTION WITH ANY LITIGATION OR JUDICIAL PROCEEDING 
RELATING TO, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, OR CONCERNlNG THIS 
AGREEMENT OR THE CONDUCT, OMISSION, ACTION, OBLIGATION, DUTY, 
RlGHT, BENEFIT, PRlVILEGE, OR LIABILITY OF A PARTY HEREUNDER TO THE 
FULL EXTENT PERMITTED BYLAW. THIS WAIVER OF THE RlGHT TO A TRIAL 
BY JURY IS SEPARATELY GIVEN AND IS KNOWINGLY, INTENTIONALLY, AND 
VOLUNTARILY MADE BY BUYER AND SELLER. BUYER AND SELLER HAVE HAD 
AN OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK LEGAL COUNSEL CONCERNING THIS WAIVER. 
TIDS WAIVER IS INTENDED TO AND DOES ENCOMPASS EACH INSTANCE AND 
EACH ISSUE AS TO WHICH THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRlAL WOULD OTHERWISE 
ACCRUE. BUYER AND SELLER FURTHER CERTIFY AND REPRESENT TO EACH 
OTHER THAT NO PARTY, REPRESENTATIVE, OR AGENT OF BUYER OR SELLER 
(INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, THEIR RESPECTIVE COUNSEL) HAS 



REPRESENTED, EXPRESSLY OR OTHERWISE, TO BUYER OR SELLER OR TO ANY 
AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE OF BUYER OR SELLER (INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, THEIR RESPECTIVE COUNSEL) THAT THEY WILL NOT SEEK TO 
ENFORCE THIS WAIVER OF THE RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL. THIS W AIYER SHALL 
APPLY TO THIS AGREEMENT AND ANY FUTURE AMENDMENTS, SUPPLEMENTS, 
AND/OR MODIFICATIONS TO THIS AGREEMENT. THIS SECTION SHALL 
SURVIVE CLOSING. 

[Signatures commence on following page] 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement or its 
counterparts. 

DONOR: 

PATRIOT RIDGE, LLP 

By: ~\ (_,: I 1&,,.,A,t'r-t= 
1ry E. Matovina, as President 

ofMatovina & Company, Managing 
General Partner ofPatriot Ridge, LLP 

~ of•~ -

KENNETH L. JOHNS, JR. 

Printed Name 

i{dct a~~ 
Witn~ss as to ~r 
K~+~~~ \\"It ~ij,40u.'i 

:Printed Name 

STATE OF FLORIDA) 
COUNTY OF DUVAL) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me by means of [:!'physical presence or D online 
notarization, this~ day ofJo~. , 20 ~> by Gregory E. Matovina, as President of M~vina & 
Company, Managing General Partner of Patriot Ridge, LLP, on its behalf, who [j" is personally 
known to me or LJ has produced ___________ as identification. 

By: ~(.~, 
Notru.y Public, State ofFlorid 

Print: KENNETH L. JOHNS, JR.'ubhc: Sta: 
l<ennelh L Johns Jr 
My Commission HH 040359 
Expire~ 09/08/2024 

N-""'1V~ 



COUNTY: 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 

Robert A. "Trey" Goodwin, III 
Chairman, Board of County Commissioners 

ATTEST: 

J.D. Peacock II 
Clerk of Circuit Court 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lynn M. Hoshihara 
County Attorney 



Exhibit "A" 
Legal Description of Land Donor is Donating to the County 

THAT PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 3 AND 5 OF THE AMERICAN PACIFIC 
INTERNATIONAL LTD PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2961, PAGE 4776), IN 
SECTIONS 4 AND 5, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, OKALOOSA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF SHOAL RIVER DRIVE, LYING EAST OF KAITLYN'S 
PRESERVE (PLAT BOOK 25, PAGE 69), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 
5; THENCE N 87°26'10" W ALONG THESOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 5, A DISTANCE 
OF 2708.33 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID KAITLYN'S PRESERVE; 
THENCE N 05°51'30" E ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF, ADISTANCE OF 1831.47 
FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE, PROCEEDS 73°32'17" E, A DISTANCE 
OF 215.96 FEET; THENCE N 03°18'17" E, A DISTANCE OF 82.16 FEET; THENCE S 
73°32'17" E,ADISTANCE OF 19.95 FEET; THENCEN 43°11'14" E, A DISTANCE OF 152.08 
FEET; THENCE N 02°25'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 361.23 FEET TO A POINT ON THE 
CURVED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER 
DRIVE, CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 488.87 FEET; THENCE 
ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY AND CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 
24°17'29", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 207.26 FEET,(CHORD BEARING= N 88°49'20" E, 
CHORD= 205.71 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, PROCEED S 
18°58'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 487.67 FEET; THENCE N 70°48'51" E, A DISTANCE OF 
386.07 FEET; THENCE S 18°26'32" E, A DISTANCE OF 72.01 FEET; THENCE N 70°48'51" 
E, A DISTANCE OF 180.03 FEET; THENCE S 18°26'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 96.46 FEET; 
THENCE N 84°34'02" E, A DISTANCE OF 372.45 FEET; THENCE N 07°46'58" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 123.41 FEET; THENCE S 83°46'25" E, A DISTANCE OF 200.91 FEET; 
THENCE N 06°13'35" E, A DISTANCE OF 433.57 FEET; THENCE N 05°36'50" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 50.01 FEET; THENCE N 06°09'55" E, A DISTANCE OF 47.86 FEET TO A 
POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SHOAL RIVER 
DRIVE; THENCE S 83°50'05" E ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, A DISTANCE OF 
419.67 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVING A 
RADIUS OF 2331.34 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND CURVE, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 02°55'33", AN ARCDISTANCE OF 119.05 FEET, 
(CHORD BEARING= S 85°07'05" E, CHORD = 119.04 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, PROCEEDS 23°59'22" W, A DISTANCE OF 456.50 FEET; THENCE 
S 87°29'49" E, A DISTANCE OF 363.61 FEET; THENCE N 03°30'28" W, A DISTANCE OF 
429.64 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 
SHOAL RIVER DRIVE, SAID POINT LYING IN A CURVE CONCA VE NORTHERLY AND 
HAVING A RADIUS OF 2331.34 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 
AND CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04°05'59", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
166.81 FEET, (CHORDBEARING = N 87°38'48" E, CHORD = 166.78 FEET) TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE BLOCKER PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3272, 
PAGE 3782); THENCE ALONG THE WEST AND SOUTH LINES THEREOF, THE 
FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS: 1) S 07°04'54" E, A DISTANCEOF 598.18 FEET; 2) S 



87°51'11" E, A DISTANCE OF 718.35 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNEROF SAID 
BLOCKER PARCEL, LYING ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE AFORESAID SECTION 4; THENCE S 07°03'03" E 
ALONG SAID EAST LINE, ADISTANCE OF 2056.73 TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE 
SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 4; THENCE N 87°47'35" W ALONG SAID SOUTH 
SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 1317.33 FEET TOTHE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID 
PARCEL CONTAINING 186.13 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 



Exllibit "A-1" 
Survey of the Property being donated by Donor to the County 



-- - · ·- --

z 
0 

c, --i 

~ > 
:::i ~ s
>-IC ~ o z .. 
z ;! ~ 
-U Al o 
):, -< 

~V> m e 
,- A) 

;$i 
-< "' 

I 
"'m,

I t3. 
0~ 

tt ~c:s;~ 
~N§ 
n ~~ 
g;;!~
El~~ 

Ii... V: 

I"' 

19 
~ 

~!!,,~~t:.. t::i5 

... 

~ 
KAlll.1 

(PUT 81- ,_
N 5'51'3o· E - 18~1.•7' 

-.,:i( 

C 
If- 0 
... z 
~~ ~o 
>z 
n ~ 
~~ 
Vlm 

r-

fr 
!t 
~

' ' 8 
0 

~~~_ !ii~-! a:;; ~ 
'9) I i~ §~ 

~ 
:;; 

§ 

~ 
~a o,. 
g:! 
i~ 
;a,,, 

il 
Cl ~ 

~~;._ -,.,..,,,..-r 
•~~❖~~ ~···; !:I ~ 

- :!a-;i",'t', 8~ '°r-- -.l..L_j--I 
!! , sr 
IS~ 

SEE SHEET 2 rtJI DESCRIPTION ANO SURVEY REPORT 

DONATION PARCEL AT SHOAL RIVER GOLf AND COUNlRY CLUB IN SECTIONS 4 o!c 
5, TOWNSHIP 2 NORTH, RANGE 24 WEST, OKALOOSA COUN1"f, FLORIDA. 

""""!DI SIC[1DI 
HOT VAUO WlHOOT 
TIIE SCN.1.1\!Rt AND 
TIIEORIQNALR.IJS[!) 
SEAl Of A FUmlA 
lJCEllSO) SURmcR

,... 
IWJl3 .,. 
~ 

AUDt [. 1U0CIJI. P.s.M. Na.4514 .. 
.m4UAP.lf00Q.P,SJ.lNa.tHO 

20 APR 2022 

GUS T IN , C OTHER N & TUC KER, INC. 
LAND SURVEYING &MAPPING 

(850) 678 -51 ◄1 L B. #3501 
121 HARTSTREET __,_,.......,,y1n,,,om NICEVILLE. Fl 3257B 

AND ILIPl'£II 
[CD_LU.K.SIZ 

SHffi"
180500 

INDEX 

180500.06b 1 
or 2 



Exhibit "B" 
Old Republic National Title Insurance Company Title Commitment No,1203075 



AMERICANLAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENTFOR TITLE INSURANCE 

ISSUED BY OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE C01\tJPANY 

NOTICE 

IMPORTANT-READ CAREFULLY: THIS COivfMIT.MENT IS AN OFFER TO ISSUE ONE OR 
MORE TITLE INSURANCE POLICIES. ALL CLAIMS OR REMEDIES SOUGHT AGAINST THE 
COMPANY INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS COivfMITMENT OR THE POLICY MUST BE 
BASED SOLELY IN CONTRACT. 

THIS COivfMITMENT IS NOT AN ABSTRACT OF TITLE, REPORT OF THE CONDITION OF 
TITLE, LEGAL OPINION, OPINION OF TITLE, OR OTHER REPRESENTATION OF THE STATUS 
OF TffiE. THE PROCEDURES USED BY THE COMP ANY TO DETERMINE INSURABILITY 
OF THE TITLE, INCLUDING ANY SEARCH AND EXAMINATION, ARE PROPRIETARY TO THE 
COMPANY, WERE PERFOR1'1ED SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMPANY, AND 
CREATE NO EXTRACONTRACTUAL LIABILITY TO ANY PERSON, INCLUDING A PROPOSED 
INSURED. 

THE COMP ANY'S OBLIGATION UNDER THIS COMMITMENT IS TO ISSUE A POLICY TO A 
PROPOSED INSURED IDENTIFIED IN SCHEDULE A IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS 
AND PROVISIONS OF THIS COivfMITMENT. THE COMPANY HAS NO LIABILITY OR 
OBLIGATION INVOLVING THE CONTENT OF THIS COl\lIMITMENT TO ANY OTHER PERSON. 

COMMITMENT TO ISSUE 
POLICY 

Subject to the Notice; Schedule B, Part I-Requirements; Schedule B, Prut II-Exceptions; and the Conun.itment Conditions, 
Old Republic National Title Insurance Company, a Florida Coxporntion (the "Company"), cooun.its to issue the Policy 
nccording to the terms and provisious of this Cowmitment. This Cowmitment is effective as of the Cooun.itment Date shown 
in Schedule A for each Policy described in Schedule A, only when the Company has entered in Schedule A both the specified 
dollar ammwt as the Prnposed Policy Amount and the name ofthe Proposed Insured. 

Ifall of the Schedule B, Prut I-Requirements have not been met within 6 mouths after the Cooun.itment Date, this Commitment 
temlllliltes and the Company's liability and obligation end. 

17,is pag• is 011/y a part ofa 2016 ALTA Commitmentfor Title l,,s11ra11ca. 17,is Commih111111t is not valid without tho Notica; tho Commih11t111t 
to lssua Policy; tho Commitment Co11ditio11s; Schedule A; Schad11/a B, Pnrl l -Req1tir0111BJ1ts; and Sch.du/a B, Part JI - Exct!ptio11s. 

OLD REPUBLIC NATIONALTITLE INSURANCE COMPANYIssued th.rough the Office of AStoel Company 
4(1) Sc,ondAvcnuc Sourh, Mir,nr.np<ilis, Minncsot, 55!0I 

NABORS GIBLIN & NICKERSON, P.A. -17045 (612/3!/.IIII 
1500 MAHAN DRIVE 
SUITE200 
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32/ ,,)

£, l-- /) -

uthorize~ato1~ / __,-, A11cst Secrel2IY 

FORM CF6R (8/l/16)(With Florida Modifications) FIie Number: 1203075 ePollcyManager 1 of3 



Commitment Conditions 

1, DEFINITIONS 
(a) 11Knowledge11 01· 11Kt10,m": Actual or imputed knowledge, but not constrnctive notice impmted by the Public Records. 
(b) 11Laud11 : l11e laud described in Schedule A nnd affixed improvements that by law constitute real properly. The term 11Land11 does not 

inclucle nuy pl'Opel'ty beyond the lines of the nt'ea described in Schedule A, nor any light) title, inte1·est, estnte, or easement in abutting 
streets, roads, avenues, alleys, lanes, ways, or watei'Ways, but this does not modify or limit the extent that a right of access to and from the 
Laud is to be Ulsured by the Policy. 

(c) "Mo11l,!Jtge11: Amo1tgage, deed oftmst, or other security iustnuueut, :including one evidenced by electronic n1er111s authorized byl1tw, 
(d) "Policy11: Each contract of title insurance, i.n a form ndopted by the Americon Laud Title Association, issued or tu be issued by the 

Company pursuant tu this Commitment. 
(e) 11Proposed Insured 11: Each ~erson identified in Schedule A as the P1'oposed Ios11l·ed ofench Policy to be issued pursuant to this Commitment. 
(f) "Pl'Oposed Policy Amo1mt1 : Each dollnl' runouut specified in Schedule Ans the Proposed Policy Amount ofeach Policy to be 

issued pm·suant to thls Commitment. 
(g) 11Pnblic Reoords": ReooJ'ds estnblished unde1· state stotutes at the Commitment Date for the pmpose of imparting constmctive notk:e of 

matte.cs relating to rent property to purchasers for value nud without Knowledge, 
(h) 11Title": The estate or interest descdbed in Schedule A. 

2, Ifall of the Schedule B1 Part 18 Requll'ements have not been met within the tinte period specified in the Commitment to Issue PoHey, 
this Commibnent tenniuntes mid tlte Company's 1inbili1y and obligation end, 

3. The Company's lfobility and obligation is limited by and this Commitment is not valid without: 
(a) the Notkei 
(b) the Commitment to Issue Policy; 
(c) the CommitmentConditionsj 
(d) Schedule A; 
(e) Schedule Bi Part 1-Requil'emenfsi 
(f) Schedule B, Pei1 II-Exceptions; and 
(g) a counter-signat1.1re by the Company or its issuing agent that may be in eleell'Onic fom1. 

4, COMPANY'S RIGHT TO AJl,JEND 
The Company may amend this Commitment nt any time, If tlie Company nmends this Commitment to add a defect, lien, encumbrance, 
adverse cla~ or othe1· m.1tte1· 1-eco1-ded in the Public Records pri01· to the Commitment Date, any liability of the Company is limited by 
Commitment Condition 5. The Company shall not be liable for nny other amendment to this Commitment. 

5, LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

(a) The Co1upauy's liability under Comm..itment Condition 4 is limited to the Pl'Oposed lnsured1s actual expeuse incmred in the interval 
between the Compnny's delivery to the Pmposed hmm:d of the Commitment aud the delive1y of the runended ConuuitmentJ resulting 
fi:om the Proposed lusttl'ed1s good faith 1-eliance to: 

(i) comply with the Schedule B, Pad !~Requirements; 
(ii) etiminatej with the Compa.njs written consent, nny Schedule B1 Prut II-Exccptionsj or 
(iii) acquire the Title or Cl'eate the Mo1tgage covered by this Commitme.nt. 

(b) The Company sha11 not be liable m1cle1· Commitment Condition S(a) if the P1·oposed Jns.m·ed1·eqnestcd the nmenclment 01· had Knowledge 
of the matte1· and did not notify the Company about it 1n writing. 

(c) 'The Company will only have liability under Commitment Condition 4 if the Proposed Insllt'ed would not have incun-ed the expeuse had the 
Conunihne11t iuclt1dcd the ndded mnttel' when the Comrnitmeut was first delive1-ed to the P1·oposed Insured. 

(d) 111e Company's liability shall not exceed the lesser ofthe Pmposed lnsm·ed1s nchml expense i.oc1ured in good faitl1 and described 
in Conunitruent Conditions S(a)(i) through S(a)(iii) or the Proposed Policy Amount. 

(e) The Company shall not be liable for tl1e content of the Transaction Identification Dataj ifany, 
(f) In 110 event shall the Company be obligated to isl>m: the Policy refem:d to in this Commitment unless all of the Schedule B1 Part I·

Requirements have been met to tlie satisfaction of the Compnny. 
(g) In any event, the Company's liability is limited by the temtS nnd provisions of the Policy. 

This pago is only o porl qfa 2016 ALTA Commiwumtfor 'l'itle /,rs11ro11co, Tl,is Commih111111t is not w,lidwU/1out the Notice,• tl,e Commlh11llllt to Issue Policy; the 
C'ommitme11t C01ulitio11s; Sc/Jedula At Schedule B, Part I - Reqttfremrmts,· a11d Sc1,edttloB, Pmt 11-Exceplim,s. 

FORM CF6R (8/l/16)(With Florida Modifications) 2of3 

https://Commitme.nt
https://matte.cs


Ii, LIABILITY OF TllE COMPANY MUST BE BASED ON THIS COMMITMENT 
(a) Only DProposed Insm-ed identified In Schedule A, oud no other person, may mnke a claimunder tWs Commitment. 
(b) Any claim must be based in contract and must be resh'icted solely to the temts and provisions ofthis Corrunitment. 
(c) Until the Policy is issued, this Commitment, as Inst 1-evised, is the exclusive and entire agreement between the pru·tles with 

respect to the subject matte1• ofthls Couuuitment and supel'sedes all prior commitment negotiations, 1·ep1•ese.ntatio.ns, 811d 
pJoposals of nuy kind whether written 01· oral, express or hnplied, relating to the subject matter ofthis Commitment, 

(d) !11e deletion or modification ofany Schedule B1Part n..Exception does not constitute an agreement or obligntion to provide 
coverage beyond the tenus and provisions of this Commitment or the Policy. 

(e) Any amendment or endorsement to this Commitment must be iu writing and autl1enticnted by a pe1·son authorized by the 
Company, 

(£) When the Policy is issued, nU lfo.bUity and obligation 1wder this Commitment will end nud the Comptu1y's only liability will be 
uude1· the Policy, 

7, IF THIS COMl\,UTMENT HAS BEEN ISSUED BY AN ISSUING AGENT 
The issuing agent is the Company's agent only for the limited pm·pose of issuing tlfle insumnce coouuitments and policies. The issuing agent 
is not U1e Company's agent for the pmpose ofpmvldiug closing or settlement services. 

8. PRO-FORMAPOL!CY 
Tbe Compnny may pl'Ov.ide, at tl1e l'equest of a Pl'Oposed Insm·ed, a pro-fonlla policy illustmting the coverage that the Company .m.ny 
provide. A pro-fonun policy neither reflects the stahis ofTitle at the time that the pl'o-fol'UU\ poHey is delivered to a P.1'0posed Insured, nor is 
it a conmlltmeut to iustu-e. 

TMspage Is onl)' apart ofa 2015ALTA Commfhnentfor Tft/o /11,mmnco, Thi& Commihnont is nol1•nlid without tho Notice; tlto Commftmeuf to JssurJPolicy; the 
Commltmm1t0011ditions; ScT11JduloA,' Scl,,u/11/oB, Pm1 I-Roqttii-omonls; a11d SclloduloB, Part D - F.xcopfious. 

FORM CF6R (8/1116)(With Florida Modificntioru) 3 of3 

https://1�ep1�ese.ntatio.ns


OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENT 

Schedule A 

Transaction Identification Data for reference only: 

Commitment Number: Revision Numbel': Issuing Office File Number: Issuing Office: 
1203075 None 019-15120-2022(1) 1704501 

Property Addl'ess: 

0 Shoal River Drive 

Loan ID Number: ALTA Univel'sal JD: 

None 

Issuing Agent: 
Nabors Giblin & Nickerson, 
P.A. 

Crestview, FL 32539 

J, Commitment Date: January 10, 2022 at 11:00 PM 

2, Policy to be Issued: Ptoposed Policy Amount: • 

OWNER'S: ALTA Owner's Policy (06/17/06), (With Florida Modifications) $842,683.00 

Ptoposed lnsUl'ed: Okaloosa County, a political subdivision of the state of Florida 

MORTGAGEE: ALTA Loan Policy (06/17/06), (With Florida Modifications) $842,683.00 

Proposed Insured: To be determined , its successors and/or assJgns as tbeil' interest may appear 

MORTGAGEE: 

Proposed Insured: 

3, The estate or interest in the Land described or referred to in this Commibnent is FEE SIMPLE (Identify estate coveted, i.e., 
fee, leasehold, etc.) 

4, Title to the estate or interest in the Land is at the Commitment Date vested in: 
Patriot Ridge LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership 

5, The Land is described as follows: 
See Exhibit A 

Old Republic National Title Insurance Company 
,nut South, Mhll)l,l~~la 551101, (612)371Ml 11 l 

:::::.:2 
AUTHORJZED SIGNATORY 

Nab~rs Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. 
1704501 

This page is only a part ofa2016 ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance, TJ1is Commitment Is not valld without the Notice; the Commitment lo Issue Policy; the 
Commilment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule 81 Part I- Requirements; and Schedule B, Part U- Exceptions. 

FORM CF6R SCH. A (8/L/16)(Wllh Florida Modifications) Page 1 of7 CommltmentNumbcr: 1203075 

https://842,683.00
https://842,683.00


OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICAN LAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENT 

Schell11le ll-l 

Issuing Office File Number: 019-15120-2022(1) 

Requirements 

All ofthe following Requh'ements must be met: 

1. The Pl'Oposed Insured must notify the Company in writing ofthe name of any party not refe11·ed to in this Commitment who 
will obtain an interest in the Land or who will make a loan on the Land. The Company may then make additional 
Requirements or Exceptions. 

2. Pay the agreed amount for the estate or interest to be insured. 

3. Pay the premiums, fees, and charges for the Policy to the Company. 

4. Documents satisfactory to the Company that convey the Title or create the Mortgage to be insured, or both, must be properly 
authorized, executed, delivered, and recorded in the Public Records. 

A. Warranty Deed from Patriot Ridge LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership, a Florida limited parh1el'ship, 
executed by a general partner(s) with authority, to the pl'Oposed insured purchaser(s), 

5. An update ofthe title search must be completed just prior to the closing and the commitment must be endorsed to require 
clearance of, or take exception for, any additional title defects or adverse matters found. 

6. Satisfactory evidence must be furnished establishing that Patriot Ridge LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership is duly 
organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the laws ofthe jurisdiction of formation from the date of acquisition 
tl1rough the date of transfer. 

7. Confum compliance with the partnership agreement concerning the alienation ofreal property. Record an affidavit from one 
or more of the general partnel's stating: (1) that the general partner(s) executing the instrument(s) to be insured is/are 
authorized to do so under the partnership agreement or that all parh1ers have consented to the instruments to be bJSured; (2) 
tl1e names ofthe existing general partners; (3) that any partners that are legal or commercial entitles have not been dissolved; 
(4) that neither the parh1ership nor any pat1ners has been a debtor in bankruptcy; and (5) that the pattnership has been in full 
force and effect under a valid partnership agreement during the entire time that the partnership lrns held title to the real 
property. 

8. Confirm that the limited liability partnership has filed a statement of qualification with the Secretary ofState to become a 
lhnited liability partnership and is in good standing as a !united liability partnership as ofthe date of the transaction to be 
insured. 

9. If any general partner(s) is a legal or commercial entity, require a good standing certificate from the date of purchase through 
to the pt·esent time. 

10, FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY: 2021 taxes were paid under receipt number 315-21001797, on December 8, 
2021, Parcel/Account ID# 05-2N-23-0000-0008-00IO, the gross amount being $7,160.58. 

This page is only apart of a 2016 ALTA Commitment for Tille Insurance. This Commitment is not valid without the Notice; the Commitment lo Issue Policy; the 
Commilmenl Conditions; Schedule A; Scl1cdule B, Part I- Requirements; and Schedule B, Part II- Exceptions. 

FORM CF6R SCH, B-l (8/I/16)(With Florida Modifications) Page2 of7 Commitment Number: 1203075 

https://7,160.58


OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERIC"A.NLAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENT 

Schedule B-1 

Issuing Office File Number: 019-15120-2022(1) 

11. FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY: 2021 taxes were paid under receipt number 315-21001797, on December 8, 
2021, Parcel/Account ID# 04-2N-23-0000-0001-003A, the grnss amount being $1,652.05. 

12. FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY, the followh1g constitutes a 24-month Chain ofTitle preceding the effective 
date hereof and constitutes conveyances and transfers of ownership only: Nothing Found 

This page is only a port of a 2016 ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance, This Commilment Is not valid without the Notice; the Commltment to Issue Policy; the 
Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I -Requirements; and Schedule B, Part II - Exceptions, 

FORM CF6R SCH. B-1 (B/J/16)(With Florida Modifications) Page3 of7 Commitment Number: 1203075 

https://1,652.05


OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERJCANLAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENT 

Schedule B-Il 

Issuing Office File Number: 019-15120-2022(1) 

Exce)ltions 

THIS COMMITMENT DOES NOT REPUBLISH ANY COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTION, OR 
LIMITATION CONTAINED IN ANY DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN THIS COMMITMENT TO THE 
EXTENT TI-fAT THE SPECIFIC COVENANT, CONDITION, RESTRICTION, OR LIMITATION VIOLATES 
STATE OR FEDERAL LAW BASED ON RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, SEX, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, 
GENDER IDENTITY, HANDICAP, FAMILIAL STATUS, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN. 

The Policy will not Insure against loss or damage resulting from the terms and pl'ovisions of any lease or easement 
identified in Schedule A, and will include the following Exceptions unless cleared to the satlsfuction oflhe 
Company: 

1. Defects, liens, encumbrances, adverse claims or other matters, if any, created, fn·st appearing in the Public 
Recol'ds or attaching subsequent to the Commihnent Date hereofbut prior to the date the Proposed Insured 
acquires for value of record the estate or interest or Mortgage thereon covered by this Commitment. 

2, a. General or special taxes and assessments required to be paid in the year 2022 and subsequent years. 
b, RJghts or claims ofpal'lies in possession not !'ecol'ded in the Public Recol'ds. 
c. Any encroachment, encutnbrnnce, violation, variation or adverse circumstance that would be disclosed 

by an Inspection or an accurate and complete land survey ofthe Land and inspection ofthe Land, 
d. Easements or claims of easements not recorded in the Public Records. 
e. Any lien, or right to a lien, for services, labor or material furnished, imposed by law and not reco!'ded in 

tl1e Public Records. 

3. Any Owner's Polley issued pursuant hereto wlll contain under Schedule B the following exception: Any 
adverse ownership a/aim by the State ofFlorida by right ofsovereignty to any portion ofthe Land insured 
hereunde1; ina/uding submerged,fi//ed and m·t!flcially exposed lands, and lands aaareted to such lands. 

4. Any lien provided by County Ordinance or by Chapter 159, F.S., in favor of any city, town, village or port authority, 
for unpaid service charges for se!'V]ces by any water systems, sewer systems 01· gas systems serving the land 
described herein; and any lien for waste fees in favor ofany county or municipality, 

5, Ingress & Egress Easement Agreement recorded in O.R. Book 2961, Page 4781, Public Records of Okaloosa 
County, Florida, 

6, Easement reco!'ded in O.R. Book 614, Page 261, Public Records of Okaloosa County, Florida. 

7. Oil, gas, mineral, 01· other reservatlons as set fo1th in deed by Triad Timber Company, a New York General 
Partnership recorded in O,R, Book 1242, Page 1662, Public Records of Okaloosa County, Flol'ida. No 
determination has been made as to the ct111'ent record owner for the interest excepted herein, 

8. Easement reco!'ded ln O.R. Book 1252, Page 1625, Public Records of Okaloosa County, Florida. 

Thls p11ge Is only 11 part ofu2016 ALTA Commilmcnt for Title Insurance. TJ1is Commitment is not valid without the Notice; the Commilment to Issue 
Policy; tho Commitment Conditions; Schetlule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; and Schedule B, Part JI - Exce1>tlo11s, 

FORM CF6R SCH. B•II (8/1/16)(Wlth Floridn Modificallons) Page4 of7 Commitment Number: 1203075 



OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 

AMERICANLAND TITLE ASSOCIATION 
COMMITMENT 

Schedule B-Il 

Issuing Office File Number: 019-15120-2022(1) 

9. Distribution Easement recorded in O.R. Book 1252. Page 1628, Public Records of Okaloosa County. Florida. 

I0. Easement recorded in O.R. Book 1272. Page 626, Public Records of Okaloosa County. Florida. 

I l. Actual Acreage Content is neither insured nor guarnnteed. 

12. Rights of the lessees under unrecorded leases, 

This page Is 011ly a part of a 2016 ALTA Commitment for Title Jnsurancc, This Commitment Is not valld wlthout the Notice; the Commitment to Issue 
Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Pnrtl- Requirements; and Schedule B, Part JI-Exceptions. 

FORM CF6RSCH. B'JI (8/l/16)(Wllh Florida Mocllfloa!lons) Page Sof7 CommitmentNumbcr: 1203075 



OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 
COMMITMENT 

Exhibit A 

Commitment Number: Issuing Office File Number: 

1203075 019-15120-2022(1) 

THAT PORTION OF PARCELS 2, 3 AND 5 OF THE AMERICAN PACIFIC INTERNATIONAL LTD 
PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 2961, PAGE 4776), IN SECTIONS 4 AND 5, TOWNSHIP 2 
NORTH, RANGE 23 WEST, OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING SOUTH OF SHOAL RIVER 
DRIVE AND APROPOSED DEVELOPMENT ADJACENT THERETO, LYING EAST OF 
KAITLYN'S PRESERVE (PLAT BOOK 25. PAGE 69), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGIN AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 5; THENCE N 87°26'1 O" WALONG 
THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID SECTION 5, A DISTANCE OF 2708,33 FEET TO THE SOUTI-IBAST 
CORNER OF SAID KAITLYN'S PRESERVE; THENCE N 05°51'30" E ALONG THE EAST LINE 
THEREOF, A DISTANCE OF 1926.96 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY 
AND HAYING A RADIUS OF 973 .87 FEET; THENCE DEPARTING SAID EAST LINE, PROCEED 
ALONG SAID CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 13°55'51 ", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 
236.78 FEET, (CHORD BEARING= S 70°30'57" E, CHORD= 236.20 FEET); THENCE N 54°23'37" 
E, A DISTANCE OF23.45 FEET; THENCEN 45°14'58" E,A DISTANCE OF 51.31 FEET; THENCE 
N 39°24'43" E, A DISTANCE OF 68.39 FEET; THENCE N 27°09'58" E, A DISTANCE OF 56.70 
FEET; THENCEN25°00'57" E, A DISTANCE OF 57.12 FEET; TI-IBNCEN 19°43'38" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 32.08 FEET; THENCE N 06°58'26" E, ADISTANCE OF 34.92 FEET; THENCE N 
75050151" W, ADISTANCE OF 28.94 FEET; TI-IBNCE N 48°46'55" W, A DISTANCE OF 33,64 
FEET; THENCE N 06051'29" E, A DISTANCE OF 49.17 FEET; THENCE N 03°22'52" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 37.49 FEET; TI-IBNCE N 37°08'07" E, A DISTANCE OF 97,98 FEET TO A POINT 
ON THE CURVED SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE AFORESAID SHOAL RIVER 
DRIVE, LYING IN A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND I-IAYING A RADIUS OF 488.87 
FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY AND CURVE, THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE 
OF 17°29'04", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 149.18 FEET, (CHORD BEARING= N 85039'23" E, CHORD 
= 148.60 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, PROCEEDS 49°16'56" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 36.06 FEET; THENCE S 05°10'28" w, A DISTANCE OF 29.45 FEET; THENCE S 
20°44'31" W, A DISTANCE OF 4.65 FEET; THENCE S 14035'20" E, A DISTANCE OF 31.98 FEET; 
THENCE S 19°11150" E, A DISTANCE OF 394.33 FEET; UIBNCE N 70°48'51" E, A DISTANCE OF 
566.09 FEET; THENCE S 18°26'56" E, A DISTANCE OF 82.27 FEET; THENCE N 84034'02" E, A 
DISTANCE OF 411.50 FEET; THENCE N 07047'28" E, A DISTANCE OF 82.18 FEET; THENCE S 
83046'25" E, A DISTANCE OF 199.76 FEET; THENCE N 06013'35" E, A DISTANCE OF 337.31 
FEET; THENCE N 49°40'08" E, A DISTANCE OF 13.84 FEET; THENCE N 07°10'34" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 37.88 FEET; THENCE N 05°36'50" W, A DISTANCE OF 54.30 FEET; THENCE N 
57' 18'48" E, A DISTANCE OF 76.30 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY 

This pnge ls only npart ofa 20J6 ALTA Commitment for Title Insurance. This Commitment is not valid without the Nolice; the Commitment to Issue 
PoHey; the Commitment Condltious; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; and Schedule B. Part H - Exceptions. 

FORM CF6R EXWBIT A (8/1/16)(WitilFlorldn Modlflontions) Page 6 of7 Commitment Number: 1203075 



OLD REPUBLIC NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY 
COMMITMENT 

Exhibit A 

Commitment Number: Issuing Office Filo Number: 

1203075 019-15120-2022(1) 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, THE FOLLOWING TWO 
(2) CALLS:!) s 83°50'05" E, A DISTANCE OF 360.25 FEET TO A POINT ON A CURVE CONCAVE 
NORTHERLY AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 2331.34 FEET; 2) THENCE ALONG SAID CURVE, 
THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 00°44'09", AN ARC DISTANCE OF 29.94 FEET, (CHORD 
BEARING= S 84°01'23" E, CHORD= 29.94 FEET); THENCE DEPARTING SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY, 
PROCEEDS 80045149" E, A DISTANCE OF 86.87 FEET; THENCE S 42002'38" W, A DISTANCE 
OF 38.71 FEET; THENCE S 15°46'33" W, A DISTANCE OF 46.93 FEET; THENCE S 17°37'58" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 47.80 FEET; THENCE 5 58°04'25" W, A DISTANCE OF 43.26 FEET; THENCE S 
01°29'40" W, A DISTANCE OF 37.09 FEET; THENCE S 30°27'15" W, A DISTANCE OF 56.26 FEET; 
THENCE S 29011113" W, A DISTANCE OF 45.86 FEET; THENCE S 19°48'06" W, A DISTANCE OF 
51.51 FEET; THENCE S21°15135" W, A DISTANCE OF 47.85 FEET; THENCE S 14°27'50" W, A 
DISTANCE OF 50.28 FEET; THENCE S 87°29'49" E, ADISTANCE OF 370.18 FEET; THENCE N 
03°3012811 W, ADISTANCE OF 429.48 FEET TO A POINT ON THE AFORESAID SOUTHERLY 
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, LYING IN A CURVE CONCAVE NORTHERLY AND HAVINO A RADIUS 
OF 2331.34 FEET; THENCE ALONG SAID RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND CURVE, THROUGH A 
CENTRAL ANGLE OF 04°05'591', AN ARC DISTANCE OF 166.81 FEET, (CHORD BEARING N 
87°38148" E, CHORD =156.78 FEET) TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE BLOCKER 
PARCEL (OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3272, PAGE 3782); THENCE ALONG THE WEST AND 
SOUTH LINES THEREOF, THE FOLLOWING TWO (2) CALLS: I) S 07°04154' IE, A DISTANCE 
OF 598.18 FEET; 2) S 87'51111 11 E, A DISTANCE OF 718.35 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF SAID BLOCKER PARCEL, LYING ON THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE AFORESAID SECTION 4; THENCE S 07°03'03" E ALONG SA:D 
EAST LINE, A DISTANCE OF 2056.73 TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH nm SOUTH LINE OF SAID 
SECTION 4; THENCE N 87°47'35" W ALONG SAID SOUTH SECTION LINE, A DISTANCE OF 
1317.33 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID PARCEL CONTAINING 187.43 ACRES, 
MORE OR LESS. 

This page ls only a part of a 2016 ALTA Commitment for Title lnsurnncc. This Commitment !snot valid without the Notice; lhe Commitment to Issue 
Policy; the Commitment Conditions; Schedule A; Schedule B, Part I - Requirements; and Schedule B, Part H-Exceptions. 

PORM CF6R EXHIBIT A(8/l/16)(With Plorldn Modifications) Page 7 of? Commitnient Number: 1203075 



EXHIBIT 5 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE OKALOOSA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AND PATRIOT RIDGE, LLP 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is entered into this 
day of _______, 2024, by and between the Okaloosa County Board of County 

Commissioners (the "County") and Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida Limited Liability Partnership (the 
"Developer") for the purpose of adjusting the estimated value of the lands to be dedicated to Oka loosa 
County for a Public Neighborhood Park to the current, appraised value if such lands.formalizing certain 
conditions of approval pertaining to the maintenance of dams and access to the subject properties 
established by the County at the time the Agreement was approved. 

ARTICLE I. RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the intent of the Florida Local Government Development Agreement Act (the "Act") is 
explicitly provided in Section 163.3220(2), Florida Statutes, which states as follows: 
(2) The Legislature finds and declares that: (a) The lack of certainty in the approval of development can 
result in a waste of economic and land resources, discourage sound capital investment planning and 
financing, escalate the cost of housing and development, and discourage commitment to comprehensive 
planning: (b}Assurance to a developer that upon receipt ofhis development order(s) he may proceed with 
existing laws and policies, subject to the conditions of a development agreement, strengthens the public 
planning process, encourages sound capital improvement planning and financing, assists in assuring there 
are adequate capital facilities for the development, encourages private participation in comprehensive 
planning, and reduces the economic costs ofdevelopment. 
(3) Inconformity with, in furtherance ofand to implement the Local Government Comprehensive Planning 
and Land Development Regulation Act and the Florida State Comprehensive Planning Act of1972, it is the 
intent of the Legislature to encourage a stronger commitment to comprehensive and capital facilities 
planning, ensure the provision of adequate public facilities for development, encourage the efficient use 
of resources, and reduce the economic cost of development. 
(4) This intent is affected by authorizing local governments to enter into development agreements with 
developers, subject to the procedures and requirements ofss. 163.3220-163.3243. 
(5) Sections 163.3220-163.3243 shall be regarded as supplemental and additional to the powers conferred 
upon local governments by other laws and shall not be regarded as in derogation of any powers now 
existing; and 

WHEREAS, the Okaloosa County Land Development Code has been adopted by Ordinance No. 91-
1, as amended, and does contain Section 1.11.05 "Development Agreement" which specifically authorizes 
the County to enter into development agreements with developers; and 

WHEREAS, after duly noticed public hearings conducted on October 10, 2019 and November 5, 
2019, the County and Developer entered into a Development Agreement (the Development Agreement) 
establishing the development rights of the Developer as well as the regulations and obligations that would 
apply to the development including the donation of parkland; and 

WHEREAS, during the duly noticed meeting of November 5, 2019, the County requested and the 
Developer agreed to investigate amendments to the Agreement pertaining to the maintenance of certain 

Page 1 of 4 





dams that occur on the property as well as a commitment to investigate opportunities for improved access 
to the development; and 

WHEREAS, after duly noticed public hearings conducted on August 30, 2020 and September 1, 
2020, the Board of County Commissioners adopted the First Amendment to the Development Agreement 
(First Amendment) that increased the number of allowable units from 570 to 676, added an additional 
(16th

) phase to the development schedule, and required additional transportation improvements; and 

WHEREAS, after duly noticed public hearings conducted on February 9, 2023 and March 14, 2023, 
the Board of County Commissioners adopted the Second Amendment to the Development Agreement 
(Second Amendment) that decreased the number of allowable units from 676 to 657, recognized 
transportation improvements performed by the developer to-date, clarified the area of the parkland to 
be donated as 186.13± acres, and specified remaining transportation improvements; and 

WHEREAS, after a duly noticed public hearing conducted on March 7, 2023, the Board of County 
Commissioners adopted a Park Donation Agreement to affect the transfer of the 186.13± from the 
Developer to the County; and 

WHEREAS, while the Development Agreement and Park Donation Agreement estimate the value 
of the 186.13± acre parcel as $2,050,000, a November-R-AfH=i-1 2023 appraisal performed by a real estate 
appraiser licensed in the state of Florida determined the value of the property to be $4,500,000$705,000; 
and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend the Development Agreement and Park Donation Agreement 
to reflect the value of the 186.13± acre parcel as provided in the appraisal. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein and 
other good and valuable consideration, and after duly noticed public hearings conducted on December 
14, 2023 and January 3, 2024, the Developer and the County enter into this Third Amendment to the 
Development Agreement and do hereby agree that the Development Agreement and First Amendment 
and Second Amendment are hereby amended as follows: Language to be added is underlined, language 
to be removed is stricken. 

ARTICLE Ill. ESSENTIAL REQUIREMENTS 

D. Parks and Recreational Facilities - The Developer shall satisfy concurrency requirements for parks 
and recreation as provided in Section 6.07 of the Land Development Code as follows; 

1) The Land Requirements described in Section 6.07.03 result in five (5) acres of land required 
to be dedicated since the total acreage of the proposed development is less than five hundred 
(500). The acreage requirement will be met through the dedication of a +/- 1.39 acre site in 
Phase 3 of the development for construction of a Private Neighborhood Park which shall be 
owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association and, through the dedication of a 
minimum of +/- 186.13 acres for a Public Neighborhood Park, as shown on the attached 
Exhibit D and as described by the legal description attached as Exhibit D, to provide access to 
the Shoal River. The Public Neighborhood Park shall have a minimum 40' wide access, in an 
upland area, connecting the park to Shoal River Drive on the east side of the park and shall 
have a minimum 10' wide access, in an upland area, connecting the park to Shoal River Drive 

Page 2 of4 





on the west side of the park as shown in Exhibit D. To aid with privacy and security to adjacent 
residential lots directly east of the access points, the County shall construct and maintain a 6 
foot tall privacy fence, from wood or tan vinyl, along the east side of the 40' wide and 10' 
wide access points at such time as any improvements are constructed over such access. The 
privacy fence sha ll not block sight distance at the intersection of Live Oak Church Road and 
Shoal River Drive. The Public Neighborhood Park sha ll be owned and operated by the County. 
The Developer may modify the legal description of the property to be conveyed for the Public 
Neighborhood Park prior to its conveyance provided that its configuration and general 
location is substantia lly the same as shown at Exhibit D. The Private Neighborhood Park shall 
be dedicated to the Homeowners Association prior to or in connection with the plat for Phase 
Five as shown by Exhibit C. The Public Neighborhood Park shall be dedicated to the County, 
by warranty deed including any underlying mineral rights t hat developer owns, prior to the 
recording of any plat for the proposed development. Based on the amount that Developer 
paid for the land included within the Project, the acreage being dedicated to t he County for 
the Public Neighborhood Park wou ld be approximately $4,500,000$750,000.00 2.05 million. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals this __ day of _____, 
2024. 

OKALOOSA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

By ____ _______ ___ _ 

ATTEST: 

J.D. Peacock, II 
Clerk of Circuit Court 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

Lynn M. Hoshihara 
County Attorney 

Page 3 of4 

https://4,500,000$750,000.00




DEVELOPER 

Patriot Ridge, LLP, a Florida limited liability partnership 

Gregory E. Matovina, as President of Matovina & Company, 
Managing Partner of Patriot Ridge, LLP 

Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: 

STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF DUVAL 

Before me on this __ day of ___ 2023, in __ person or via __ remote notarization appeared 
Gregory E. Matovina, as President of Matovina & Company, Managing Partner on behalf of Patriot Ridge, 
LLP, who is personally known to me or provided _____ as identification. 

Notary Public, State of Florida 
My Commission Expires 
Commission Number 
Notary Stamp 

Page 4 of 4 





EXHIBIT 6 

AMENDMENT TO PARK DONATION AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDENT TO THE PARK DONATION AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and effective as 

of ------- --~ 2023 (the "Effective Date"), by and between PATRIOT RIDGE, LLC, a 
Florida limited liability partnership ("DONOR"), and OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA, a political subdivision 
of the State of Florida ("County"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Okaloosa County Comprehensive Plan Recreation and Open Space and Element as 
well as the Okaloosa County Land Development Code, require the establishment of recreational areas in 
conjunction with residential developments of 50 lots or greater; and 

WHEREAS, Donor and County have entered into a development agreement pursuant to Chapter 
163, Florida Statutes, establishing the entitlements and obligations of a master planned development 
known as Patriot Ridge which allows the development of up to 657 single family dwelling units and which 
requires, among other things the donation of a 186.13± acre parcel to be used as a neighborhood park 
and which provides public access to the Shoal River; and 

WHEREAS, after a duly noticed public hearing conducted on March 7, 2023, the Board of County 
Commissioners adopted a Park Donation Agreement to affect the transfer of the 186.13± from the DONOR 
to the County; and 

WHEREAS, while the Development Agreement and Park Donation Agreement estimate the value 
of the 186.13± acre parcel as $2,050,000, an April 2023 appraisal performed by a real estate appraiser 
licensed in the state of Florida determined the value of the property to be $4,500,000$70S,0O0; and 

WHEREAS, the County finds it is in the best interest of the public to amend this Park Donation 
Agreement with Donor to recognize the value of the parcel as determined by the appraisal. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals above and for other good and valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated herein by reference. 

2. Amendments. Section 4(a), Title. Appraisal. & Survey, is hereby amended as follows 
(language to be added is underlined, language to be removed is stricken): 

(a) Attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "B" is a current title insurance 
commitment (the "Title Commitment") issued by Old Republic National Title Company (the "Title Insurer") 
through title agent Nabors Giblin & Nickerson, P.A. through the Attorneys' Title Fund, covering the 
Property. The title policy issued for the Property at Closing shall be in an amount equal to the 
$4,S00,000$7S0,00O 2.0S ffi#ffGfl that amount established within the Development Agreement between 
the parties. The cost of the Title Commitment and title insurance policy shall be borne by Donor. The Title 
Commitment shall commit the Title Insurer to issue an owner's title insurance policy to the County (which 
shall be delivered within a reasonable time after Closing) covering the Property, reflecting title to the 
Property to be marketable and insurable, subject to the Permitted Encumbrances and, the standard 
printed exceptions contained in the title insurance policy unless otherwise addressed by the County. 

Page 1 of3 





Donor shall execute at or prior to Closing, in favor of the Title Insurer, such affidavit or affidavits, and such 
other documents, acceptable to the Title Insurer as are sufficient to allow for deletion of standard 
exceptions from the Title Commitment other than the Permitted Encumbrances. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Amendment to the Park 
Donation Agreement or its counterparts. 

DONOR: 

PATRIOT RIDGE, LLft; 

By:._______________ 

Gregory E. Matovina 

Title:____________ 

Date:____________ 

Witness as to Donor 

Printed Name 

Witness as to Donor 

Printed Name 

STATE OF ____________, 
COUNTY OF ______~ 

This instrument was acknowledged before me by means of D physical presence or D on line 
notarization, this_ day of_, 20_ by _____~ as ______ of ______..., on 
its behalf, who[_] is personally known to me or[_] has produced __________ as 
identification. 

By: ____________ 
Notary Public, State of Florida 

Print: _____________ 

Page 2 of3 





COUNTY: 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OKALOOSA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 

ATTEST: 

J.D. Peacock II 
Clerk of Circuit Court 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

Lynn M. Hoshihara 
County Attorney 

Page3 of3 




